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COMPANY DESCRIPTION

Wynn:Resorts, Limited, a Nevada corporation, was formed in June 2002, is led by Chairman and
Chief Executive' Officer. Stephen; A Wyan, and isia leading developer -owner and -operator of des-
tination casino resoris. ‘We owniard’ opératé two; destmatlon casino resorts: In Las Vegas, Nevada,
we own and operate "Wynn Las Végas,” whlch includes "Ehcore-'at Wynn Las Vegas.”
In the: Macau Special Administrative.Region-of the People’s Republic of China ("Macau™)-we own
and operate “Wynn Macau” whitch ‘includes “Encore at'Wynn Macau:*"We present our results
based on the following two seginents: Las Vegas Operatlons and Macau Operations. For more
information-on.the finaricial. restilts.for our'segmérits; see: Note 17 * Segment Information.”
Unless the context otherwise.requires, all.references. herein to: “Wynn'Resorts," the-"Company,” "we,”
"us" or "our,” or similar terms, refer to:'Wynn Resorts, Limitedand.its consolidated subsidiaries.
Wynn Resorts files:annual reports on Form 10-Kixquarterly: reports on Form 10-Q; current reports
on Form 8-K'and amendments of such reports’ with' the Securities and Exchange Commission
(”SEC”) Any document Wynn, Resotts filesiray be., |nspected without: charge, at the SEC's public
reference room at 100 F Street; N.E. Washington, DIC. 20549 or-at-the.SEC's.internet site addréss
-at http /Iwwwisec:gov.. Information related to theroperation of the SEC's:public reference room
may be obtained: by calllng the SEC at 1-800- SEC-0330: In addition, through our own internet
address at ‘wwiv.wynnresorts:com, Wynn Resorts - prowdes a hyperlmk 1073 third-party SEC filing
website which posts these filings as.so0h as reasonably practicable, wheére they can be reviewed
without-charge. The information found on.our-websiteis not:a part of this Annual Report on Form
10-K or any other report we file orfurrish to the/SEC.

Our Resorts

Las Vegas Operations. Wynn Las Vegas opened oni April 28.2005. ' On December 22, 2008, we
opened Encore at Wynn Las Vegas, an expansion ‘of Wynn Las Vegas. We refer to the fully
integrated Wynn LasVegas and Encore at Wynn Las Vegas resart:asiour, “L:as Vegas Operations.”
‘We bélieve that thisresort offers excepﬂonal accommodatlons amenitles and service. For the sixth
consecutive.year, The Tower Suites-at Wyan Las Vegas. has réceived both the Forbes five-star and
AAA five-diamond distinctions. The [Spa at Wynn: Las:Vegas-eafnéd five-star recognition from
Forbes for the fourth year in. a.row: The-Spa at-Wynn.Las'Vegas and the Spa at Encore are two of
only four spas in'Las Vegas:to be recognized with the; Forbes:five-star award.

Our Las.Vegas Operations {eature apprommately 14,750 hotel rooms and suites, 220 table games,
2,430 slot machines and a. poker room in ‘approxifmately 186,000 square feet of ‘casino .gaming
space (including a sky casino and private gaming salons), casual and fine dining in-35 féod.and
beverage outlets, two spas and salons, lounges, and ‘approximately 97,000 square feet of retail
space featuring, boutiqués from Alexander McQueen, Brioni,-Cartier, Chanel, Dior, Graff, Hermies,
Loro Pidna, Louis Vuitton, Manolo Blahinik, Oscar de la Rénta, Vértu and others. Our Las Vegas
Operations also offerthree nightchibs; a beach:club, .z Ferrari:and:Maserati autornobite dealership,
wedding chapels, an 18-hole golf course; approximately-283,000-square feet of meeting space, a
spemally d&signed theater presenting “Le Réve-The Dream;" a water-based theatrical production,
and an Encore Theater presenting Gaith Brooks and, other headliner entertainment acts.
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We believe that the unique experience of our Las Vegas Operations drives the significant visitation
experienced since opening.

Macau Operations. Wynn Macau opened on September 6,.2006. On April 21, 2010, we opened
Encore at Wynn Macau, an expansion of Wynn Macau. We refer to the fully integrated Wynn
Macau and Encore at- Wynn Macau resort as our “Macau Operations.” We believe that this resort
offers; exceptional accommodations, amenities and service. For'the fourth. consecutive year, Wynn
Macal and The Spa at Wynn Macau received the Forbes five-star distinction.

Our Macau Operations feature approximately 1,008 hotel rooms.and suites, 486 table games, 930
slot machines and:a poker pit in-approximately 265,000 square feet of casino gaming space (includ-
ing a sky casino and private gaming salons), casual and-fine dining in eight restaurarits, two spas
and a salon, lounges, meeting facilities and approximately 54,200 square feet of retail space fea-
turing boutiques from Bvlgari, Cartier, Chanel, Dicr, Dunhill, Ferrari, Giorgio Armani, Gucci, Hermes,
Hugo: Boss, Louis Vuitton,.Miu Miu, Piaget; Prada, Rolex Tlffany, Tudor, Vacheron Constantin, Van
Cleef & Arpels, Versace, Vertu, Zegna and others. Qur-Macau Operations include a show in the
rotunda featuring a Chinese zodiac-inspired ceiling and interchangéable gold “prosperity tree”
and “dragon of fortune” attractions. i

See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—
Results of Operations” for information about our net revenues.

Construction and Development Opportunities

In January 2011, we completed a refurbishment and upgrade to the resort rooms at Wynn Las
Vegas. A remodel of the suites was completed in early May 2011. These remodels were completed
at a cost of $61 million.

In the ordinary course of our business, in response to market developmenis and customer
preferences, we have made and continue to make certain enhancements and refinements to our
resort complexes.

in 2011 we formally accepted the-terms and conditionis of a draft land concession contract from
the Macau government for approximately 51.acres of land in the Cotai area of Macau. In December
2011, we paid the initial deposit of*$62.5 million-pursuant to this draft land concession contract.
Following government approval, we anticipate constructing on this site a full-scale integrated
resort containing a casino, approximately 2,000 hotel suites, convention, retail, entertainment and
food and beverage offerings. We continue:to finalize the project. scope, timeline and budget.

Our Strategy

We believe that -Steve Wynn is the preeminent designer, developer and operator of destination
casino resorts and has developed brand name status. Mr. Wynn's involvement with our casino
resorts provides a distinct advantage over other gaming enterprises. We integrate luxurious
surroundings, distinctive entertainment and superior amenities, including convention facilities,
entertainment, fine dining and premium retail offerings, to create resorts that appeal to a variety
of customers.
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COMPANY DESCRIPTION

Our resorts are designed and built to provide a premium experience. Wynn Las Vegas and Wynn
Macau are positioned as full-service luxury resorts and casinos in‘the leisure, convention and tour
and travel industries. We market these resorts directly to gaming customers using database
marketing techniques, as well as traditional incentives, including reduced room rates and compli-
mentary meals and suites. Our rewards system offers discounted and complimentary meals, lodg-
ing and entertainment for our guests. We also create general market awareness for our resorts
through various media channels, including social media, television, radio, newspapers, magazines,
the internet, direct mail and billboards.

Mr. Wynn and his team bring significant experierice in desigriing, developing and operating casino
resorts. The senior executive team has an. average of over 25 years of .experience in the hotel
and gaming industries. We also have an approximately 90-person design, development and
construction subsidiary, the senior management of which has significant experience in all major
construction disciplines.

We continually seek out new opportunities for additional gaming or related businesses in the
United States and worldwide.

Market and Competition

Las Vegas. Las Vegas is the largest gaming market'in: the United States. The casino/hotel industry
in Las Vegas is highly competitive. Over the last several years, Las Vegas has been impacted by
economic disruptions. In 2011, Las Vegas visitation and gaming statistics began to improve, but
uncertainty remains regarding the ‘future gaming; tourism and convention environment. Our Las
Vegas Operations are located on the Las Vegas Strip and compete with other high-quality resorts
and hotel casinos in Las Vegas. Many competing properties draw a significant number of visitors
and directly compete with our operations. Resorts-located.on.or near the Las Vegas Strip compete
with other Las Vegas Strip hotels and with other hotel casinos in Las Vegas on the basis of overall
atmosphere, range of amenities, level of servicé, price, location, entertainment, themes and size,
among other factors. We seek to differentiate our Las Vegas Operations from other major
Las Vegas resorts by concentrating on our fundamental elements of design, atmosphere, personal
service and.luxury.

QOur Las Vegas Operations also compete, to some extent, with other hotel/casino {acilities in
Nevada and throughout the United States, casino resorts throughout Asia, and elsewhere in the
world. In addition, the legalization of casino gaming in or near metropolitan areas from which we
attract customers, such-as the recently passed legislation in Massachusetts, could have a negative
effect on our business. New or renovated casinos in Asia, including two new resorts in Singapore,
resorts in the Philippines, and our resort in Macau, could draw gaming customers away from
Las Vegas
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Macal. Macau, which-was a Portuguese colony for approximately 450 years, was transferred from
Portuguese to Chinese: polltlcal control in December 1999. Macau is governed as a special admin-
istrative region of China and is located approxumately 37 miles southwest of, and approximately
one hour away via ferry from, Hong Kong. Macau, which has been a casino destination for more
than 40 years, consists principally of a peninsula on mainland China, and’two neighboring islands,
Taipa and Coloane. We believe that Macau is located in one of the world’s largest concentrations
of potential gaming customers. According to Macau Statistical Information, casinos in Macau, the-
largest gaming market in the world, generated approximately $33.5 billion in garming revenue in
2011, a 42% increase over the approximately $23.5 billion generated in 2010.

Macau's gaming market is primarily dependent ‘on tourists. Tourist arrivals.in 2011 were 28 million,
compared to 25 million in 2010. The Macau market.has also experienced tremendous growth
in capacity in the last few years. As of December 31, 2011, there were 22,356 hotel rooms and
5,302 table games in Macau, compared to 12,978 hotel rooms and 2,762 table games as of
December 31, 2006.

Gaming customers traveling to Macau have typically come from nearby destinations in Asia includ-

ing Hong Kong, mainland China, Taiwan, South -Korea and Japan. According to the Macau Statistics
and Census Service Monthly Bulletin' of Statistics, approximately 89% of ‘the tourists who visited
Macais in 2011 came from mainland China, Hong Kong'and Taiwan. Macau completed construction
of aniinternational airport in 1995, which accommodates large commercial aircraft and provides
direct air service to major cities in Asia, incliding Beijing, Shangha| Jakarta, Taipei, Manila,

Singapore and Bangkok. Travel to Macau by citizens of mainland China requires a visa. Chinese
government officials have, on occasion, exercised their authority to adjust the visa policy and may
do so in the future.

Prior to 2002, gaming in Macau was permitted as a government-sanctioned monopoly concession
awarded to a single concessionaire. However, the government of Macau liberalized the gaming
industry in 2002 by granting ‘concessions to operate casinos to three concessionaires {including
Wynr Macau), who in turn were permitted, subject to the approval of the government of Macau,
to each grant one sub-concession to other.gaming-operators. There is no limit to the number of
casinos each concessionaire is permitted to operate but each facility is subject to government
approval. Currently, therg are 34 operating casinos in Macau.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

1

The following tables reflect selectediconsolidated financial data of Wynn Resorts and its subsidiaries.
This data should be-read.together with- our Consolidated Financial Staternents.and Notes thereto,
“Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and the
other information contained in this Annual Report. Operating results for the periods presented are
not indicative of the results that may be expected for future years. Significant events impacting our
operational results include:

» On April 28, 2005, we opened our Wynn Las Vegas resort.
» On September 6,,2006, we opened our Wynn Macau resort.
* On.December 24, 2007, we opened an expansion of our Wynn Macau resort.

* OniDecember 22, 2008, we opéned Encare at Wynn Las Vegas, an expansion of
Wynn Las Vegas.

* OniOctober 9,2009, Wynn Macau, Limited listed'its shares of common stock on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Wynn Macau, Limited sold 27.7% of
its cormmon stock through:an.initial publicioffering.

* On,April 21, 2010, we opened Encore-at Wynn Macau, an expansmn of Wynn Macau.
Years Ended Décember 31,
{in thousands, except per share amounts) 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007

Consolidated Statements
of Income Data:

Net revenues $5:269,792  $4,184,698 '$3,045:611 $2,987,324 $2,687,519
Pre-opening costs — 9.49% 1,817 72,375 - 7,063
Operating income 1,008,240 625:252 234,963 312,136 427,355
Net income 825,113 316,596 39,107 210,479 196,336
Less: Net income atiributable to )

noncontrolling interest!” (211,742) {156,469) (18,453) — —
Net income attributable to

Wynn Reésorts 613,371 160,127 20,654 210,479 196,336
Basiclincome pef'share 4,94 1:30 0.17 1.94 1.85
Diluted income per share 4.88 1.29 017 1.92 1.80

[+]
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. As of December 31,
{in thousands, except per share amounts} 20m3 2010 2009 2008 2007

Consolidated Balance Sheets Data:
Cash and cash equivalents 1 $1,262,587  $1,258,499 $1,991,830 $1,133,904 $1,275,120
Censtruction in progress 28,477 22,901 457,594 221,696 923,325
Total assets 6,899,496 6,674,497 7,581,769 6,755,788 6,312,820
Total long-term obligations® 3,096,149 3,405,983 3,695,821 4,430,436  3,774951
Stockholders’ equity 2,223,454 2,380,585 3,160,363 1,601,595 1,956,959
Cash distribution declared per

common share $ 650 § 850 $ 400 §% — 3 6.00

(1} In October-2009, Wynn Macau, Limited, our.indirect wholly-owned suBs:dJary and the developer, owner
and operator of Wynn Macau, listed its ordmary shares of common.stock on'The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. Wynn Macau, Limited sold 1,437,500;000 shares (27.7%) of its common stock through an
initial public offering. Net income attnbutabie to nencontrolling interest represents the noncontrolling
interests’ share of our net income of Wynn Macau, Limited.

{2} Includes long-term debit, the required contract premium paymients under our land concession contract at
Wynn Macau, future charitable contributions and deferred income taxes.
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MANAGEMENT'S. DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the
consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report.

Overview

We are a developer owner and operator of destination casino fesorts. We currently own and
operate two;casino resort complexes. In LasVegas, Nevada, we own and operate Wynn Las Vegas,
a destination casino resort which opened on April 28, 2005. In December 2008, we expanded
Wynn Las Vegas with the-opening of Encore at Wynn Las Vegas. We refer to the fully integrated
Wynn Las Vegas and Encore at Wynn Las Vegas resort as our Las Vegas Operations. In the
Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China ("Macau”), we own and
operate-Wynn Macau, which opened on September 6, 2006. On April 21, 2010 we opened Encore
at Wynn Macau, a further expansion of Wynn Macau. We refer to the’ fully integrated Wynn Macau
and Encore at Wynn Macau as our Macau Operations.

Our Resorts

Theifollowing table sets forth information about’our resorts as of February 2012:

Hotel Rooms  Approximate Casino  Approximate Number  Approximate Number

& Suites Square Footage of Table Games. of Slots
Las Vegas Operations 4,750 186,000 220 2,430
Macau Operations 1,008 265,000 486 : 930

Las Vegas Operations. Wynn Las Vegas.| Encore,is locatéd at the intersection of the.Las Vegas Strip
and 'Sands Avenue, and occupies approximately. 217 acres of land fronting the Las Vegas Strip.
In" addition, we own approximately 18 acres across Sands Avenue, a portion of which is utilized
for employee parking, and approximately 5 acres adjacent to the golf course on which an office

building is located.

Our Las Vegas.resort complex features:

* Approximately 186,000 square feet of casino space, offering 24-hour gaming-and a full range of
games, including private gaming:salons, a'sky-casino;a poker room, and a race and sports book;
Two luxury hotel towers with a total of 4,750.spacious-hotel rooms, suites and villas;

35'food and beverage outlets featuring signature chefs;

A Ferrari and Maserati automobile 'dealérship;

* Approximately 97,000 square-feet of high-end, brand-name retail shopping, including stores and
boutiques by Alexander McQueen, Brioni, Cartier, Chanel, Dior, Graff, Hermes, Loro Piana, Louis
Vuitton, Manolo Blahnik, Oscar de |a Renta, Vértu-and others;
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* Recreation and leisure facilities, including an 18-hole golf course, swimming pools, private
cabanas and two full-service spas and salons;

* Two showrooms; and
* Three nightclubs and a beach club.

In January 2011, we completed a refurbishment and upgrade to the resort rooms at Wynn Las
Vegas. A remodel of the suites was completed in early May 2011. These remodels were completed
at a cost of $61 million. '

In response to our evaluation of our Las Vegas.Operations and the reactions of our guests, we have
and expect to continue to make enhancements and refinements to this resort complex.

Macau Operations. We operate Wynn Macau | Encore under a 20-year casino concession agreement
granted by the Macau government in June 2002.

Our Macau resort complex features:

. Apprommately 265,000 square feet of casino space, offering 24-hour gaming and a full range of
games, including private gaming salons, sky casinos and a poker pit;

* Two luxury’hotel towers with a total of 1,008 spacious rooms.and suites;
* Casual and fine:dining in eight restaurants;

s Approximately-54,200 square' feet of high-end, brand-name retail shopping, including stores
and boutiques by Bvlgari, Cartier, Chanel, Dior, Dunhill, Ferrari, Giorgio. Armani, Gucci, Hermes,
Hugo Boss, Louis Vuitton, Miu Miu, Piaget, Prada, Rolex, Tiffany, Tudor, Vacheron Constantin,
Van Cleef & Arpels, Versace, Vertu, Zegna and others;

* Recreation and'leisure facilities; including two health clubs and spas, a salon, a pool; and
¢ Lounges and meeting facilities.

In response to.our evaluation of our Macau Operations and the reactions of our guests, we have
made and expect io continue o make enhancements and.refinements:to this resort complex.

Future Development. Approximately 142 acres of land comprising our Las Vegas. Operations is
currently improved with a golf course. While we may develop this property in the future, we have
no immediate plans to do so.

Wynn Resorts, Limited / Wynn PA, tnc-— November 2012
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MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

In September 2011, Palo Real Estate Company Limited and Wynn Resorts (Macau) S.A., each
an indirect subsidiary.of Wynn. Macau, Limited, formally accepted the terms and conditions of
a draft land concession contract from the Macau government, and in December 2011 made a
$62.5 million initial deposit for approximately 51 acres of land in the Cotai area of Macau. Following
government approval, we anticipate constructing a full-scale integrated resort containing a casino,
approximately: 2,000 hotel suites, convention, retail, entertainment and food and beverage
offerings on this land. We continue to finalize the project scope, timeline and budget.

Resilts of Operations

Our operating results in Macau were significantly higher in 2011 as the Macau market continued to
grow, and the Las Vegas market began to improve with. increased levels of gaming revenue, visita-
tion, and hotel room demand. Our results for the years presented-are not comparable as the year

ended December 31, 2011 includes a full year of operations for Encore at Wynn Macau which
opened on April 21, 2010.

The'table below presents our net revenues (amounts in thousandsy:

Far'the Years Ended December 31,

‘ 2011 2010 2009
Net Revenues: .
Las Vegas Operations $1,480,719 $1,296,064 $1,229,573

Macau Operations 3,789,073 2,888,634 1,815,038
; $5,269,792  $4,184,698 $3,045,611

Reliance on only two resort complexes (in two .geographic regions) for our operating cash flow
exposes us to certain risks that competitors, whose operations are more geographically diversified,
may be better able to control. In addition to the concentration of operations in two resort com-
plexes, many of our customers are premium:gaming customers who wager on credit, thus exposing
us to increased credit risk. High-end gaming also increases the potential for variability in our results.

Operating Measures. Certain key operating statistics specific to the gaming industry are included
in our discussion of our operational performance. for the periods for which a Consolidated
Statément of Income is presented. There are two methods used to calculate win percentage in
the casina industry. In.Las Vegas and in the general casing in Macau, customers usually purchase
cash. chips at the gaming tables. The cash and net markers used to purchase the cash chips are
deposited in the gaming table’s drop box. This is the base of measurement that we use in
the casino at our Las Vegas Operations and in-the general casino at our Macau Operations for
calculating win percentage.

10
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In our VIP casino in Macau, customers primarily purchase non-negotiable chips, commonly referred

to as rolling chips, from the casino cage and there is no deposit intd a gaming table drop box from -

chips purchased from the cage. Non:negotiablechips.can only be used to make wagers. Winning
wagers are paid in cash chips. The loss of the non-negotiable chips in the VIP casino is recorded as
turnover and provides a base for calcdlating VIP-casino win percentage. Because of this difference
in chip purchase activity, the measurement base used in the general casino is not the same that
is used in the VIP casino. It is: customary in Macau to measure VIP casino play using this rolling
chip method.

Thé. measurement method in Las Vegas and in the general casino in Macau tracks the initial
purchase of chips at the table while the measurement method in our VIP casino in Macau tracks the
sum of all losing wagers. Accordingly, the base measuremerit in the VIP casino is much larger than
theigeneral casino. As a result, the expected win percentage with the same amount of gaming

win! is. smaller in the VIP casino in Macau when compared to the general casino in Las Vegas
and Macau.

Even though both use the same measurement method, we experience different win percentages
in the general casino activity in Las Vegas versus Macau. This diiference is primarily due to the
difference in the mix of table games and customer playing habits between the two casinos.
Each type.of table game has its own,theoretical win percentage..In the second quarter of 2011, we
increased our‘éxpectations for table games win percentage in the general casino at Wynn Macau
from 21%-23% to 26%—-28% based on our-experience since the opening of the Encore at Wynn
Macau expansion.

Below are definitions of the statistics discussed:

* Table games win is the amount of drop or turnover that is retained and recorded as casino
révenue,

+ Drop is the amount of cash and ‘net markers issued that are deposited in a gaming table’s
drop box.

e Turnover is the sum of all losing rolling chip wagers'within our Macau VIP program.

* Rolling chips are identifiable chips, that are used to track*VIP wagering volume (turnover) for
purposes of calculating incentives.

* Slot win is the amount of handle (representing the total amount wagered) that is retained by us
and is recorded as casino revenue.

* AVerage Daily Rate (“ADR") is calculated by dividing total room revenue (less service charges
if any) by total rooms occupied.

. Revenue per Available Room ("REVPAR") is calculated by dividing total room revenue (less
service charges, if any) by total rooms available.

11
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYS!S OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Financial Results for the Year Ended December 31, 2011 Compared to the Year Ended
December 31, 2010

Revenues. Net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2011 are comprised of $4,190.5 million
in casino revenues (79.5% of total net revenues) and $1,079.3 million of net non-casino revenues
(20:5% of total net revenues). Net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2010 are comprised
of $3,245.1 million in casino revenues (77.5% of total net revenues} and $939.6 million of net
non-casino revenues {22.5% of total net revenues).

Casino revenues are primarily comprised of the net win from our table games and slot machine
‘operations. Casino revenues for the year ended December 31,2011 of $4,190.5 million represents
a $945.4 million (29.1%) increase ‘from casino revenues of $3,245.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010.

Our Las Vegas Operations experienced 2:$90.9 rmlllon {17%) increase in casino revenues to $625.2
million, compared to the prior year due to a 99% increase in drop and an increase in our average
table games win percentage. Our average table games:win percentage (before discounts) for the
year ended December 31, 2011 was 24.9%, which was above the expected range of 21% to 24%
and compares to 22.2% for the prior year: Slot machine handle at our Las Vegas Operations
increased slightly compared to the prior year; however, slot machine win increased 7.0% as more
play shifted to higher hold slot machines.

Our Macau Operations experienced an $854.5 million (31.5%} increase in casino revenues to
$3,565.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to the prior year. Our VIP reve-
nueisegment increased 28.9% due to a 34.9% increase in turnover, offset by a lower win percent-
age; all compared to the prior year. Our win as a percent of turnover was'2.93%, which is within our
expected range of 2.7% to 3.0%, and compares to 3.0% in the prior year. For the year ended
December 31, 2011, we: benefited from an increase in the number of VIP tables and a full year of
operations from Encore at Wyhn Macau which opened in April 2010. In our general casino, drop
increased 18.1%, when compared to the.prior year and the:average table games win percentage
was 28.4%, which is slightly above our expected range of 26% to 28%. The average table game win
percentage for-the year ended December 31,.2010 was 23.6%. Slot machine handle increased
28.4% compared to the prior year as a result of increased visitation to our resort and a full year of
operations for Encore at ‘Wynn Macau. Slot machine win increased 26.8% due to the increased
handle partially offset by a slight decrease in hold percentage.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, room revenues were $472.1 million, an increase of
$71.8 million.{17.9%) compared to prior year room revenue of $400.3 million. Room revenue at our
Las Vegas Operations increased $45.6 million (14.8%) compared to the prioryear. In Las Vegas, we
experienced an increase in room rates'during the year erided December 31, 2011, compared to the

12
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‘prior year, with a 1.9 percentage point decrease in occupancy rate. We were able to achieve an
increase in ADR as we adjusted rates:to attract a higher quality customer who would take advan-
tage of all aspects of our resort. Room revenue at.our Macau Operations increased $26.2 million
(2815%) due to increases in both occupancy rate and room rates compared.to the prior year, as well
as the inclusion of a full_year of the 414 additional suites added with the opening of Encore at
Wynn Macau in April 2010.

The table below sets forth key operating measures related to room revenue.

Years Ended
December 31,

20M 200

Average Daily Rate

Las Vegas : $ 242 $210

Macau 315 2N
Occupancy '

Las Vegas 86.1% 88.0%

Macau ) . 91.8% 87.8%
REVPAR

Las Vegas $ 208 $185

Macau 289 256

Other non-casinc revenues for the year ended _Decerr'lbe'r 31, 2011 ‘included food and beverage
revenues of $547.7 million, retail revenues of $260.8 million, entertainment revenues of $82.2
million, and other revenues from outlets such as the spa and salon of $71.8 million. Other non-
gaming revenues for the.year ended December 31, 2010 included food-and beverage revenues of
$488.1 million, retail revenues of $214.6 million, entertainment revenues of $72 million, and other
revenues from outlets, including the spa and salon, of $67.7 million. Food and beverage revenues
.at our Las Vegas Operations.increased $37.5 million (9.0%), while our Macau Operations-increased
$22.1 million (31.3%), as compared 1o the prior year. The increase in Las Vegas is due primarily to
business in our nightclubs including the full year of operations for the Encore Beach Club and
Surrénder Nightclub (which opened in. May 2010) and increases in our catering and restaurant
business. The increase in Macau is due to increased visitation to our resort and a full year of opera-
tions from Encore at Wynn Macau which opened in. April 2010. Retail revenues at our Macau
Operations increased $42.6 million (32.3%), while retail at our Las Vegas Operations increased by
$3.6 million (4.3%). The increase at Wynn Macau is'due:primarily to strong same-store sales growth
and the addition of three new boutiques at Encore at Wynn Macau. Entertainment revenues
increased $10.2 million (14.1%) over the prior year primarily due to increased revenue from
Garth Brooks, who performs:in the Encore Theater, and the Sinatra * ‘Dance with Me" show, both in
Las Vegas. The Sinatra “Dance with Me" show ended'its run on Aprll 23, 2011.
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Departmental, Administrative and Other Expenses. For the year ended December 31, 2011,
departmental expenses included casino expenses of $2,686.4 million, room expenses of $125.3
million, food and beverage expenses of $283.9 million, and entertainment, retail and other
expenses of $214.4 million. Also included are general and administrative expenses of approxi-
mately $389.1 million and $33.8 million charged as.a provision for doubtful accounts receivable.
For the year ended December 31, 2010, departmental expenses included casino expenses of
$2,100.% million, room expenses-of $122.3 million, food and beverage expenses of $272.7 million,
and entertainment, retail and Gther expenses of $204.6 million. Also included are general and
administrative expensés of approximately $391:3 million and approximately $28.3 million charged
as a provision for doubtful accounts receivable. Casino expenses have increased during the year
ended December 31, 2011 due to an increase in casino revenues at both of our Las Vegas
Operations and at our Macau Operations (where we‘incur a gaming tax and other levies at-a rate
totaling 39% in accordance with the concession agreement).-Although our room revenues increased
17.9%, room expenses increased only 2.5% as the revenue increase was driven primarily by
increased ADR. Food and beverage and enteftainment, retail and other expenses increased com-
mensurate with the increase in revenues. The increase in the provision for doubtful accounts relates
pr:manly to Wynn Las Vegas and is.a result of the higher casinorevenue base experienced during
the year ended December 31, 2011, compared to the prior year.

Pre- Opemng Costs. We incurred no pre- opening costs during the year ended December 31, 2011.
For the year ended December 31, 2010, we incurred $9.5 million of pre-opening costs primarily
related to Encore at Wynn Macau which opened on April 21, 2010 and the Encore Beach Club and
Surrender Nightclub which opened in Las Vegas on May 28, 2010.

Depreciation and Amortization. Depreciation arid amortization for the year ended December 31,
2011, was $398 million compared to $405.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. While
there was little change between periods, depreciation expense decreased due to assets with a
5-year life being fully depreciated as of September 2011 at Wynn Macau and assets with a 5-year
life being fully depreciated as of April 2010 .at' Wynn Las Vegas. These decreases were offset by
additional depreciation for the assets of Encore at Wynn Macau which were placed into service in
April 2010 and the assets of the Encore Beach Club and Surrender Nightclub in Las Vegas which
were placed into service in May 2010.

During the construction of our resorts, costs incurred in the construction of the buildings, improve-
ments to land and the purchases ofassets for-use in operations were capitalized. Once these
resorts opened, their assets were placed into service and we began recognizing the associated
depreciation expense. Depreciation expenses will continue throughout the estimated useful lives
of these assets. In addition, we continually evaluate the useful life of our-property and equipment,
intangibles and other assets.and adjust them when warranted.

The maximum useful life of assets at our Macau Opeérations is the remaining life of the gaming
concession or land concession, which currently expire in June 2022 and August 2029, respectively.
Consequently, depreciation related to .our MacauOperations is charged on an accelerated basis
when compared to our Las Vegas Operations.
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Property Charges and Other. Property chargés and other forthe year ended December 31, 2011
were $130.6 million compared to $25.2 million. for the year ended December 31, 2010. Property
charges and other for the year ended December 31, 2011 include a charge of $109.6 million reflecting
the present value of a charitable contribution made by Wynn Matcau to the University -of Macau
Development Foundation. This contribution consists of 'a $25 million payment made in May 2011,
and a commitment for additional donations of $10 million each year for the calendar years 2012
through 2022 inclusive, for a total of $135 miillion. The amount reflected in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Income.has been discounted using ourthen estimated borrowing rate
over the time period of the remaining committed payments. Also included are the write-off of
certain off-site golf memberships by Wynn Las Vegas, miscellaneous renovations and abandon-
ments at our resarts, including modifications of the Encore.at Wynp Las Vegas and Wynn Macau
retail esplanades, closure of the Blush Nightclub. and the write-off-of certain costs related to a
show that ended its run in Las Vegas in April 2011.

Property charges and other for the year'ended December 31, 2010 include a contract termination
payment of $14.9 million related to @ management contract for certain of the nightclubs at Wynn
Las Vegas and miscellaneous renovations, abandonments-and gain/loss on sale of equipment at
our resorts.

Other Non- -Operating Costs and Expenses. Intérest income was $7.7 million and $2.5 million for
the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Buring: 2011 and 2010, our short-term
investment strategy has been to preserve capital while retaining sufficient liquidity. While the
majority of our short-term investments were primarily in money market accounts, U.S. Treasury Bills
and'time deposits with a maturity of three moriths or less, beginning in May 2011 we have invested
in certain corporate bond securities and commercial paper which contributed to the increase in
intefest income.

Interest expense was $229.9 million, net of capitalized interest of $0, for the year ended December 31,
2011, comparéd to $2229 million, net. of capitalized interest of $7.2 million, for the year ended
December 31, 2010. Ourinterest expense’increased compared to the prior year primarily due to a
decrease in interest capitalized and.an increase in interest rates on our first mortgage notes, offset
by a decrease.in amounts outstanding-under our Wynn Las Vegas and Wynn Macau bank credit
revolving facilities compared to the prior year.

Changes in the fair value of our interest rate swaps are récorded as an increase (decrease) in swap
fair value'in each period We recorded a gain.of $14.2.million-for the year ended December 31, 2011,
resulting from the increase in the fair value of our interest rate swaps from December 31, 2010 to
December 31, 2011. For the year ended December 31,.2010, weirecorded an expense of $0.9-million
resulting from the decrease in the fair value of inteest rate swaps between December 31, 2009
and December 31, 2010. For further information on our interest rate swaps, see "Quantitative .and
Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.”
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in April 2010, we completed an exchange offer for a portion of our outstanding 6%% First Mortgage
Notes (the ¥2014 Notes”). In connection with that exchange offer, the direct costs incurred with
third parties of $4.4 million were expensed. In. August 2010, we completed a tender offer for the
then outstanding 2014 Notes and subsequent call of all the remaining amounts once the tender was
completed. In connection with this transaction, we.recorded a loss on extinguishment of debt of
$63 million. This included the tender offer consideration, the call premium and the related write-off
of the unameortized debt issue costs and original issue discount.

Income Taxes. For the-year ended December 31, 2011, we recorded a tax benefit of $19.5 million.
Our income-tax benefit is primarily related to tax benefits resulting from an.increase in our deferred
tax assets, a decrease in our liability for uncertain tax:positions as the result of the statute of limita-
tions. iapse reduced by foreign taxes assessable on the dividends of Wynn Macau, S.A. and foreign
tax ‘provisions related to our international marketlng offices. Since June 30, 2010, we have no
longer considered. our portion of the tax.earnings and profits of Wynn Macau, Limited to be
permanently invested. No additional U.S. tax provision has been made with respect to amounts
not considered permanently'invested-as we anticipate that U.S. foreign tax credits should be suf-
ficient to eliminate any U.S. tax provision relating to such repatriation. To the extent that book
earnings exceed the tax earnings and profits of Wynn Macau, Limited, such excess is considered
permanently invested. For the years.ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, we recognized income
tax benefits related to excess tax deductions associated with stock compensation costs of $11.2
million and-$10.5 million, respectively.

Effective September 6, 2006, Wynn Macau;.S:A. received a 5-year exemption from Macau's 12%
Complementary Tax on casino gaming profits. ©@n November 30, 2010, Wynn Macau, S.A. received
an additional 5-year-exemption through December 31, 2015. Accordmgly, we were exempted from
the payment.of approximately $82.7 million and $64.4 million in such taxes for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Our non-gaming profits remain subject to the Macau
‘Complementary Tax and casino winnings remain subject to the Macau Special Gaming tax and
other levies at a rate totaling 39% in accordance with our concession agreement.

During the year ended December 31, 2011, Wynn Macau, S.A. received the results of the Macau
Finance Bureau's examination of its, 2006 and 2007 Macau Complementary Tax returns and filed an
appeal related to the examination’s disallowance of certain deductions claimed in its 2006 Macau
Complementary Tax Return. In August 2011, the 2006 Macau tax issues under appeal were
resolved. As part of the settlement, the Company paid $1.1 million in Macau Complementary Tax
substantially all of which was provided: forin prioryears. As the result of the resolution of these
Macau tax issues and expiration of the statute of limitations for 2006 Macau Complementary Tax
assessments on December 31, 2011, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits decreased
$10.8 million.

During 2010, we received the results of an IRS examination of -our 2006 through 2008 U.S. income
tax returns and filed an appeal of the examination’s findings with the Appellate division of the IRS.
In connection with that appeal, we agreed to-extend the statute. of limitations for our 2006 and
2007 US. income tax returns-to December 31, 2012. The issues under examination in these years
are temporary differences and relate'to the treatment of discounts extended to Las Vegas casino
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customers gambling on credit, the.deduction of certain costs incurred during the development
and construction of Encore at Wynn Las Vegas and the appropriate tax depreciation recovery-peri-
ods applicable to certain. assets; Upon the. settlemeiit of these issues, unrecognized tax benefits
could decrease by $0 to $54 million.. The resolution of the 2004 -2007 and 2008 examination is not
expected to result in any-significant cash payment but rather the utilization of a portion of our
foreign tax credit carryforward.

During the fourth quarter of 2010, the IRS commenced an examination of our 2009 U.S. income tax
return. We believe that our liability for uncertain tax: posjtions related to the period covered by
theiexamination is adequate. The resolution of the 2009 IRS examination is not expected to result
in any significant cash payment, but rather ‘the utilization of .a portion of our foreign tax
credit carryforward.

During October 2011, the IRS began:an examination-of our 2010-U:S. income tax return. Since the
examination is.in its initial stages we are'unable to determine if it will be concluded within the next
twelve months. We believe our liability for uncertain tax positions related to the period covered by
this;examination is adequate.

We are participating in the IRS Compliance Assurance Program (“CAP") for the 2011 tax year.
Under the CAP program, the IRS and the taxpayer work together in 3 pre-filing environment to
examine transactions -and ‘issues and thus complete the tax examination before the tax return is
filed. Participation in this program should enable us to reduce time spent on tax administration
and:enhance téx reserve and financial statemerit reporting integrity. In January 2012, we received
notification that.we had been accepted into the:IRS CAP for the-2012 tax year.

Net Income Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests. In October 2009, Wynn Macau, Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, listed its ordinary shares of common stock-on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited. Wynn Macau, Limited sold '1,437,500,000 shares (27.7%) of its common
stock through an initial public offering. We recorded. net; income [attributable to noncontrolling
interests of $211.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, cofnpared to $156.5 million for
the year ended December 31, 2010. This represents the noncontrolling interests’ share of net
income from Wynn Macau, Limited for each year.

Financial Results for the Year Ended December 31, 2010 Compared to the Year Ended
December 31, 2009

Revenues. Net revenues for the year ended December 31, 2010 are comprised of $3,245.1 million
in casino. revenues (77.5% of total net revenues) and $939:46 million of net non-casino revenues
(22.5% of total net revenues). Net revenues for the year ended December 31,.2009 were comprised
of $2,206.8 million in casino revenues (72.5% of total net revenues) and $838.8 million of net
non-casino revenues {27.5% of total net revenues).

Casino revenues are-comprised of the:net-win from oir table.games and slot machine operations.
Casino revenues for the year ended December 31, 2010 of approximately $3,245.1 million repre-
sents a $1,038.3 million {or 47%) increase from casino revenues of $2;206.8 million for the year
ended December 31, 2009.
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Our Las Vegas Operations experienced a $28.5 million increase in casino revenues compared to
the prior year due to a 3:4% increase in drop and an increase in our average table games win
percentage. Our average table games win percentage (before discounts) for the year ended
December 31, 2010 was 22.2% which was within the expected range ‘of 21% to 24% and compares
to 20.2% for the prior year. Slot handle.at our Las Vegas Operations.decreased 18.3% compared to
the.prior year; however, slot win decreased only'6.9% as more play shifted to higher hold machines.

Casino revenues at our Macau Operations increased $1,009.8 miilion during the year ended
December 31, 2010, compared to the prior year. We experienced a 77.8% increase in the: VIP
revénue segment due to a 68.0% increase in turnover. Our win as a percent of turnover was 3.0%,
which is.at the high end.of the .expected range of 2.7%.to 3.0%, and compares to 2.9% in the prior
year. In November 2009 we added two new private gaming salons with 29 VIP tables and on
April 21, 2010 we added 37 VIP tables with the opening:of Encore at Wynn Macau, which helped
drive some of the growth in our VIP segment during the year ended December 31, 2010 compared
to the prior year. Our VIP casino segment win as a percent of turnover includes a nominal beneficial
effect attributable.to.non-rolling chip play. In our general casino, drop increased 17.4% when com-
pared to the prior'year and the average table: games win percentage was 23.6%, which is above
the expected range of 19% to 21%. The average table.game-win percentage for the year ended
December-31, 2009 was 21.9%. Slot handle increased 23.8% compared to the prior year primarily
due;to the opening of Encore at Wynn Macau-and slot win increased by 29.8%.

For the year ended December 31, 2010, room revénues were approximately $400.3 million, an
increase 6f'$22.8 million compared to prior year room revenue of $377.5 million. Room revenue at
our Las Vegas Operations decreased approximately $12.7 million compared to the prior year.
In Las Vegas, we continued to experience a decrease in room rates during the year ended
December 31, 2010, compared to the year-ended December 31, 2009. We believe this was due to
the economic conditions in the U.S. and the increased capacity in the Las Vegas market including
the opening of a new large scale casino hotel in Las Vegas in December 2009. In addition, in July
2010, we commenced a project to.remodel all of the rooms at' Wynn Las Vegas. Accordingly, we
had 3.8% fewer room nights available during the: year ended December 31, 2010 which had a
negative impact on our room revenues in Las'Vegas. This foom remadel was completed in the
second quarter of 2011. Room revenue at our Macau Operations increased approximately $35.5
million due to the 414.additional suites added with Encore at Wynn Macau and an increase in the
average daily room rate compared to the prior year.
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The table below:sets forth key operating measures relatedito foom revenue.

Years Ended
December 31,

2010 2009

Average Daily Rate

Las Vegas $ 210 §217

Macau 291 264
Occupancy

Las Vegas , 88:0% 85.2%

Macau . 87.8% 87.5%
REVPAR

Las Vegas ' %185 $185

Macau ' 256, 233

Other non=casino revenues for the year ended; December 31, 2010 included food and beverage
revenues of approximately $488.1 m||||0n,1retai| révénues of’approx;mately $214.6 million, enter-
tainment revénués of approximately. $72 iiillidn, and other revenues from outlets such as the
spa and salon of appfoximately :$67.7 million. Other non-casino revenues for the year ended
December 31, 2009 included food and, ‘beverageirevenues. of apprommately $436.4 million, retail
revenues of approwmately $145: A, mllho , ‘entertainment révenues of approximately $57.1 million,
and:other revenues from outlets, mcluding thé spa.and salon, of approximately $66.2 million. Food.
and beverage revénles at ouf Las Vegas Operations increased approximately $31. 4 million,while
our; Macau.Operations increased:$20.3 million; fas compared to thé prior year. The increase in Las
Vegads iis due.primarily to business in our nlghtclubs |nc]ud:ng the opening of the Encore Beach
Club and Surrender nghtclub in May 2010 Thie incredse/in.Macau is- primarily due to the opening
of Encore .at Wynn Macau and, increaséd Visitation to our resort. Retail revenues. at our Macau
Operations increased.$52.2 million, offsetiby, a decrease of $2.7 million in Las Vegas. The increase
in Macau is. due primarily-to increased sales -at several outlets ‘the " opening of Wynn and Co.
Watches and Jewelry in November, 2009 Wthh seIIs Cartuer énd Jaeger Le Coultre products, and
new outlets at Encore at Wynn Macau mcludlng Chanel Riaget and Cartier. Entertainment reve-
nues mcreased over'the prior year: primarily due fo. performances.by Garth Brooks in the:Encore
Theater in'L:as Vegas which commenced'in December 2009, as well as increased revenue from our
“Le Réve" show.
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Departmental, Administrative and Other Expenses During the year-ended December 31, 2010,
departmental expenses included casino expenses of $2,100:1 million, room expenses of $122.3
million, food ‘and beverage expenses of $272.7 million; and entertainment, retail and other
expenses of $204.6 million. Also included are ‘general. and administiative expenseés of -approxi-
mately $391.3 miltion and* apprommately $28. 3millionicharged as.a jprovision for doubtful accounts
recaivable. During the year ended Decembef 31, 2009, departmental-expenses included casino
expenses of $1,460:1 million, room expensestof $111.6 million; food and beverage expenses of
$252.7 million, and enterfainment; retail and. other-expenses.of $166.6 million. Also included are
general and administrative:expenses of approximately $365:1 friillion.and approximately:$13.7 mil-
liory charged-as a provision for doubtiul accotints fecéivable. Casino.expenses haveincreased: dur-
ing the year ended December 31, 2010 due prlmanly tosan increase in casino revenues especrally
at our Macau Operations where-we incur'a gaming tax:and-other levies at a rate totaling 39% in
accordance with.our concession agreemenrt: Room expenses increased during the year ended
December 31, 2010 compared.to the priar year, prlmarlly due tolincreased customer acquisition
and marketlng costsiand theiopening.of Encore.atWynn: Macau in April 2010. Food and beverage
-expenses inicreased commensurate with.thesincreasesin revenue.

Entertamment retail and other expense increased primarily as.a result of performances by Garth
Brooks in the Encore Theater at Wynn Las Vegas and incréased retail sales in Macau as noted
above. General'and administrative ekpenses:increased.pfimarily due to higher spending associated
with corporate:activities. The; provision.for.doubtful accounts receivable, increased $14.6 million due
to an increase in:credit issuances commensurate with the incréase in business volume.

Pre-Opening Costs. During the year, ended December 31, 2010, we incurred $9.5 million of pre-
opening costs conipared to $1.8:million during the; year ended December 31, 2009. Pre-opening
costs incurred: during the year ended December: 31, 2010, pnmaniy related to Encore at'Wynn
Macau which opened on April 21, 2010,-and the: Encore Beach Club and Surrender Nightclub
which opened in Las Vegas on May 28,2010,

Deprecaataon and Amortization: Dépreciationand: damartization.for the year ended December 31,
2010, was $405.6 million.compared to $410:5 million.for the year ended December 31,.2009. This
detrease is primarily due to assets-with a S:year life being fully depreciated as of Apnl 2010 at
Wyhn Las Vegas, offset by depreciation:of thetassets of ‘Encore at Wynn Macau which.were placed
into-service in April 2010 and the assets}of the Encofe Béach Club which were placed into service
in May 2010.

Dufing the construction of our.resorts, costsincurred in the'construction of the buildings, improve-
ments to land and the purchases of*assetsiforiuse in operations were capitalized. Once-these
resorts- -opened, their assets: were placed into! service and we began.recognizing the associated
depreciation expénse. Depreoatlon eXperises wifl cofitinue throughout the estimated useful lives
of these assets. In addition, we continually evaluate the useful life of our property and equipment,
intangibles and- other assets and:adjust them when warranted:
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The maximum, useful lifé of assets at our Macau Operations is the remaining life of the gaiming
coficession. or.Jand concession, which-currently expire’in June 2022 and:August 2029, respectively.
Co}wsequent\y, depreciation. related to-our Macau:Operations is charged on an accelerated basis
when comparedito our Las Vegas‘@perations. :

-Property’ Charges and Other..Property'chargés and other genérally include costs related to the
retlrement of assets fof remodsls.and asset.abandonments. Property charges and other for the
year ended December.31, 2010, were:$25.2 million compared-to $28.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009. Property charges and other‘forthe*year ended December 31, 2010 include a
contract termination payment of $14.9 million related to.amanagementicontract for certain of the
n|ghtc|ubs at Wyhn Las Vegas.and Encore at Wynn Las Vegas and.miscellaneous renovations,
abandonments-and gain/loss onisale.of equipment:at Wynn Las Vegas and Wynn Macau. Property
charges.and' otherfor the year ended December 31, 2009 include 2 $16.7 million charge for the
abandonment of the front porte=cochere at Encore;at'Wynn’ Las Vegas to make way for the Encore
Beach Club, the write-off 6 $6:8 million of alrcraft plirchase: deposits:and $5 million related to
miscellaneous renovations, abandonmenits;and. loss on:saleof, .equipment.

In response to-our evaluation of.our resortsiand the reactions.of 'our guests, we continue to remodel
and make:enhancements-at our resorts:

Other Non-Operating Costs-and Expenses. |hterest income was $2.5 million and $1.7 million for
the yearsiended Decermiber 31, 2010.and"2009, respectively. During 2010 and 2009, our short-term
investment-strategy has been-to preserve: capltal while retaining sufficient liquidity. Accordmg!y,
our short-term investments include pfimarily money market funds, S, Treasury Bills and time
deposits with a purchase maturity of threeimonths of less:

Intérest expense was:$222°9 million, 'net.of capitalized intérest of $7.2 million, for the year ended
December.31, 2010, compared.to $211:A:million, net of capitalized interest of $10.7 million, for the
year ended December 31, 2009. Our interest; expense: increased, approxifnately $11.5 million
primarily, due'to interest expense for ther Wyan' Tas Vegas $500 mllllon 7%% First Mortgage Notes
issuéd-in Actober 2009 and the incréased rate.ari olrireriaining Wynin Las Vegas first mortgage
notes as discussed below; offset. partially by the. payoff of the Wynn Resorts term loan in
June 2009 and reduction in amounts outstanding under'the Wynn Las Vegas and Wynn Macau
bank revolving credit facilities:comparedito’the prior year:

Changes in' the fair value ofour: interest rate-swapsiare.recorded as an increase {decrease) in swap
fair value in.each yéar. We recorded an expense:of.approximately $0.9 million for the year ended
December. 31,.2010 resulting from the .decrease. in the fair'value of-our interest rate.swaps from
December 31, 200%'to December-31, 2010; During the yearended December 31, 2009 we récorded
an ;expense of $2.3 million resulting from, the decrease in the fait'value of interest.rate swaps
between Déecember 31, 2008 arid December’31, 2009. Eor fusther information on our interest rate
swaps, see “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk.”
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In April 2010, we completed an exchange offer for a portion of the Wynn Las Vegas 6%% First
Mortgage Notes due 2014 {"the 2014 Notes’). In connection.with that.exchange offer, the direct
costs incurred with third parties of $4.4 million were expensed. Also, in connection with our July
2010 tender offer for the then outstanding 2014 Notes and subsequent call of all:the remaining
amounts once the tender-was' completed, we recorded a loss onrextinguishment of debt of $63
million. This included the tender-offer considération, the call premium and the related write-off of
the unamortized debt issue cosis and original issue discount.

Dufing the year ended December 31, 2009, we recorded a gain on early extinguishment of debt
of $18.7 million as a result of several debt retirements. We purchased.and retired outstanding loans
of $375 million under the Wynn Resorts Ter Loan Facility. ata discounted price of 97.25%. In con-
nectlon with this transaction, we recognized an $8.8'million gain on early retirement of debt, net of
thejwrite-off of uriamortized debtissue cost. During this.sarie period; we purchased $65.8 million
face amount of the 2014 Notes-through open market purchases at a discount. This transaction
resulted in a gain on early extinguishment of debt of-313.7 million, net of the write-off of unamor-
tized debt discount and debt issue costs. ‘We participated in the April 2010 tender offer noted
above with respect to $35.8 million of these notes and accordingly, as of December 31, 2011 and
2010, Wynh Resorts holds $30 million. of this debt which has not been contributed to its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Wynn Las Vegas. For ‘accounting purposes these notes were treated as having
been extinguished by Wynn Resorts in 2009. In October 2009, we purchased loans through an
offer to purchase loans outstanding under the Wynn Las Vegas credlt agreement, with a face value
of $87.6 million for $84.4 million, reflecting a discounted price of 96.37%. In connection with this
transaction, 'we ‘recognized a net gain of approxmately $2:1 million on early retirement of debt.
Offsetting these gains was the write-off of debst i§sue.costs of approximately $5.9 million related to
permanent reductions in our bank credit facility.

Income Taxes. During the year ended December 31,-2010, we recorded a tax expense of $20.4
million. Qur provision for income taxes was prlmanly comprised of increases in our foreign and
domestic valuation allowances relating to foreign tax loss carryforwards, other foreign deferred tax
asséts and US. foreign tax credits not considered more: likely than not realizable in the future.
The- tax provision recorded for the valuation allowance increases was reduced by an income tax
benefit recorded for the loss from.our U.S. operations.;As of June 30, 2010, we no longer consider
our portion of the tax earnings and profits of Wynn Macau, Limited to be permanently reinvested.
No:additional U.S. tax provision has been made with respect to this amount as we anticipate that
U.S. foreign tax credits should Be.sufficient té. eliminate any U.S. tax provision relating to such
repatriation. Prior to this change our-earnings-attributable’ to perrods after September 2009, were
pnmanly attributable to the repatriation of $1 14 bnll|on of Wynin Macau, Limited IPO proceeds not
considered permanently reinvested. During the year ended December 31, 2010, we recognized
income tax benefits related to excess tax deductions associated with: stock-based compensation
costs of $10.5 million.
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Effectrve September 6, 2006, Wynn Macau S:A. received .a 5- -year exemption from Macaus 12%
Complementary Tax on:casino. gaming profits: Accordingly, we were exempted from the payment
of $64.4 million in such taxes-for‘the year ended December 31,:2010..Our -non-gaming profits
remain subject to the Macau-Complementary Tax and casino winnings remain subject to the Macau
~Special Gaming tax and other levies at a rate totaling 39% in accordance with our concession
agreement. On November 30, 2010, Wynn Macau S.A. received an additional 5-year exemption
from Macau's 12% Complementary. Tax-on casino.gaming. profits to December 31, 2015,

Net Income Attributableto Noncontrolling Interests: In-©ctober.2009, Wynn Macau, Limited, our
|nd|rect wholly-owned ‘subsidiary, and the- developer owneriand opérator 6f Wynn Macau, listed its
ordrnary shares of common:stock on The Stock: Exchange of Hong: Kong Limited. Wynn Macau,
Limited sold 1,437,500,000 shares. (27.7%).of its common stockethrough an initial public offering.
We recorded net income attributablesto inoncontrolling interests; of :$156.5 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010, compared t0;$18.5 million for. the perlod October9, 2009, the date of
the;initial public offering, to.Deceriber 31, 2009, This répresents:thé noncontrolling interests’ share
of net income from:Wynn Macau, Limited..

Adjusted Property EBITDA

We use adjusted property EBITDA ‘to manage the operating restlts of-our segments. Adjusted
property EBITDA is earnings beforeiinterest; taxes; depreciation, amortization, pre-opening costs,
property charges and other, corporate:expenses, stock-based compensation, and other non-
operating 'income and expenses, and 'includes. equny in“income from unconsolidated affiliates.
Adjusted property. EBITDA is’ presented éxciusively asra supplemental disclosure because we
believe that it is widely Used to measure thee eperformance,.andas 3 basis for valuation, of-gaming
companies. We use adjusted property EBITDA asia-measure.of the operating. performance of our
segments and'to compare, the:operating performance ofiour properties with'those of our competi-
tors. We also- present ad;usted property, EBITDA because it is used by some.investors.as a way to
measure a company’s ability to incur and service d_ebt ma_ke)capltal expenditures and.meet work-
ingicapital requirements. Gaming.companies:have;historically reporied EBITDA as a supplement to
financial measures in accordance with U.S..generally.accepted accounting principles {"GAAP").
in"order to view the operations of‘theircasinos .on ;a more: stand-alone'basis, gaming companies,
including’ us, have historically excluded” from their EBITDA caleulations pre-opening expenses,
property. .charges and corporate expenses: ‘that:do riot relate to the ‘management of specific casino
properties. However, adjusted property EBITDA should not be considered as an alternative to
operating income as an indicator-of our'performance; as.an alternative to cash flows from operat-
ing: activities as a measure of liquidity, or'as an glternative to’ any other measure determined in
accordance with GAAP. Unlike.net income, adjusted property’ EBITDA does not include deprecia-
tion of intérest expense and. thieréfore.doesiioteflect current or future. capital expenditures-or the
cost of capital. We have significant uses of cash flows, including capital expenditures, interest pay-
ments, debt principal repayments, taxes:and.othernon-recurring'charges, which are not reflected in
adjusted property EBITDA. Also; our'calculation;of adjusted property EBITDA may be different from
the calculation methods used. by other/companles and, therefdre, comparability may be limited.
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The following table {amounts in thousands) summarizes adjusted property EBITDA for our Las
Vegas and Macau Operations as reviewed by management and summarized in “Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statement—Segment Information.” That footriote also presents a reconcili-
ation of adjusted property EBITDA to net income.

Years Ended December 31,

S 2011 2010 2009
Las Vegas $ 439,036 § 270,299 32440465
Macau 1,196,232 892,686 502,087
Total adjusted property EBITDA $1,635,268  $1,162,985 $746,152

During 2011, the economic environment in the gaming and hotel markets in Las Vegas began to
improve with' increased levels of gaming revenue, visitation.and hotel room demand. While these
gaming and hotel statistics have inereased.from prior year levels, uncertainty stilt exists in the Las
Vegas market. Dirring 2017, the average’ daily room rate increased 10.7%, visitation increased 4.3%
t0;38.9 million visitors, and'Las Vegas Strip gaming revenues increased.5.1%, all as compared to the
year ended December 31, 2010. During 2010, the average daily room rate increased 2%, visitation
increased 2. 7% to0,37.3 million visitors, and Las Vegas 5trip gaming revenues increased 4.5%, all as
compared to the year ended December 31, 2009.

For 2011, our Las Vegas Operations benefited fromyincreased gaming volumes, a higher than normal
table games'win percentage, improved. ADR, and an overall increase in. all other revenue streams
including food and beverage, entertainment and retail. While we experienced a slight decrease in
our occupancy compared to the prior year, we were able to achieve an increase in ADR as we
adjusted rates to attract a higher quality customerwho would take advantage of all aspects of our
resort. While we benefited from' higher win percentages on our-table games and higher non-casino
revenues for the year, the economic environment in the Las Vegas market is still uncertain.

Our Macau Operations’ adjusted property EBITDA has increased as the Macau market continues to
grow and as a result of our expansion of that resort as detailed in the discussions above regarding
our results of operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Flow from Operations

Qur operating cash flows primarily consist of -our operating income generated by our Las Vegas
and Macau operations (excluding deprematlon and other non=cash charges), interest paid, and
changes in working capital accounts such as receivables, inventories, prepaid expenses, and pay-
ables. Our table games play both in Macau and Las Vegas_is a mix of cash play and credit play,
while our slot machine play is conducted primarily.on a cash basis. A portion of our table games
revenue is attributable to the play of a limited number of premium international custorers that
gamble on credit. The ability-to collect these gaming receivables may impact our operating cash
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flow for the period. Our rooms, food and beverage, and entertainment, retail, and other revenue is
conducted primarily on a cash basis or as'a trade receivable. Accordingly, operating cash flows will
belimpacted by changes in operating income and accounts receivables:

Net cash provided from operations for the'year ended December 31, 2011 was $1.5 billion com-
pared to $1.1 billion provided by operations for the:year ended’ December 31, 2010. This increase
is primarily due to the increase in operating income as a result of increased operating department
profitability at both our'Las Vegas Operations and our Macau Operations, especially in the casino,
room and food and beverage departments. Offsetting this increase was the impact of ordinary
working capital changes primarily driven by customer deposits and accounts receivable and an
increase in cash paid for interest of $49.5 million.

Capital Resources

We require a certain amount of cash on hand for operations. At December 31, 2011, we had
approximately $1.3 billion of cash-and cash equivalents available for operations, debt service and
retirement, development activities, general corporate. purposes:and enhancements to our resorts.
Of this amount $663.5 million was held by Wynn Macau, Limited and its subsidiaries of which we
own 72.3%. If repatriated-to the U.S,, substantially all of'our portion of such cash would be sub-
ject to U.S. tax in the year of repatriation. Cash'balances held by Wynn Resorts, Limited, which is
not a guarantor of the debt of its subsidiaries, was $378:5 million. We also have available-for-sale
investments in foreign and domestic debt securities with maturities of 1 to 3 years totaling
$213.6 million.

in addition, as of December 31, 2011, we had approximately $351.1 million of availability under our
Wynn Las Vegas Revolving Credit Facility and approximately $849.6 million of availability under our
Wynn Macau Senior Revolving Credit Facility. Debt maturities in 2012 are $407.9 million.

We believe that cash flow from operations; availability.under our bank credit facilities and our exist-
ing cash. balances will be.adequate to satisfy our anticipated uses of capital during 2012. If any
additional financing became necessary, we cannot provude assurance that future borrowings will
be available.

Cash and cash equivalents include investments in.money market funds, domestic and foreign bank
time deposits and commercial paper, all with maturities of less than 90 days.

Investing Activities

Capltal expenditures were approximately $184.1 million, $283.8 million and $540.9 million for the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009. For 2011, our capital expenditures primarily relate
to the room and suite remodel .at Wynn Las Vegas; a new high limit slot salon, new Las Vegas
Tower Suites lobby and lounge and other property remodels. In addition, 2011 includes a $62.5
million initial payment, pursuant to the terms of a draft land concession in Macau: For 2010 and
2009, our capital expendutures relate primarily to the construction cost associated with Encore at
Wynn Macau, which opened in Apsil 2010, the Encore Beach Cluband Surrender Nightclub, which
opened in May 2010 and'final costs associated with Encore at Wynn Las Vegas, which opened in
December 2008.
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During the year ended December 31, 2011, we invested $316.5 million in corporate debt securities
and commercial paper.

Financing Activities

Las Vegas Operations. As of December 31, 2011, .our Wynn Las Vegas credit facilities, as amended,
consisted of a $108.5 million revolving credit facility due Jily 2013, and a $258.4 million revolving
credit facility. due July 2015 (together the “Wynn Las.Vegas’ Revolver”), and a fully drawn $40.3 mil-
lion term loan facility due August 2013 and a fully drawn $330:6 million term loan facility due
August 2015 (togetherthe "Wynn Las Vegas Term Loan"). The Wynn Las Vegas Revolver.and the
Wynn.Las Vegas Term Loan aré together referred to as the “Wynn Las Vegas Credit Facilities.”
During the year ended December 31, 2011, we repaid $20.1 millioh of borrowings under the Wynn
Las.Vegas Revolver and $4 miflion under the Wynn Las Vegas Term Loan. As of December 31, 2011,

the Wynn Las Vegas Term Loan-was fully drawn and we had no borrowings outstanding under the
'Wynn Las Vegas Revolver. We had $15.8 million of outstanding letters of credit that reduce
availability for borrowing under the’ Wynn Las Vegas Revolver. Accordingly, we had availability of
$351.1 million under the Wynn Las Vegas Revolver as of December 31, 2011.

Loans under the Wynn Las Vegas Credit Facilities:bear mterest at fluctuating rates, based on either
LIBOR or an alternative base rate, plus an applicable margin..As of December 31, 2011, the
applicable margin for LIBOR.loans.under the-Wynn Las Vegas Revolver and the Wynn Las Vegas
Term Loan due August 17, 2015 was 3.0%, and the® applicable margin for LIBOR loans under the
Wynn Las Vegas Term Loan due August 15, 2013 was 1.875%. Base Rate Loans bear interest at
{a)'the greatest of (i} the rate:most recently announced by Deutsche Bank as its * "‘prime rate,"” (i) the
Federal Funds Rate plus 1/2 of 1% per annum, and {jii) in the case.of a Wynn Las Vegas Revolver
loan the one month Eurodollar rate; plus (b) a borrowing margin- of 2.0% for Wynn Las Vegas

. Revolver loans and 0.875% for Wynn Las Vegas. Term Loans. Interest on Base Rate Loans will be
payable quarterly in arrears. Wynn Las Vegas, LLC also pays, quarterly in arrears, 1.0% per annum
on the daily average of unused commitments under the Wynn Las Vegas Revolver.

In addition to scheduled amortization payments, Wynn Las Vegas, LLC is required to make
mandatory prepayments of indebtedness under the Wynn Las Vegas Credit Facilities from the
net proceeds of all debt offerings (other than those constituting certain permitted debt).
Wynn Las Vegas, LLC is also required to make mandatory repayments of indebtedness under the
Wynn Las Vegas Credit Facilities from: specified percentages of excess cash flow, which percent-
ages.may' decrease and/or be. eliminated based on Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's leverage ratio. For
2012, Wynn Las Vegas, LLC expects to make a mandatory repayment of approximately $88 million
in March pursuant to this provision of the Wynn Las Vegas Credit Facilities. Wynn Las Vegas, LLC
has the option to prepay all or any portion of the indebtedness under the Wynn Las Vegas Credit
Facilities at any time without premium or penalty.

The Wynn Las Vegas Credit Fadilities contain customary negative covenants and financial
covenants, including, but not limited to,. negative covenants that restrict Wynn.Las Vegas, LLC's

ability, to: incur-additional indebtedness, including guarantees;. create, incur, assume or permit to
exist liens on property and assets;:declare or pay dividends and make distributions or restrict the
ability of Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's. subsidiaries to pay dividends and make distributions; engage
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in mergers, investments and acquisitions; enter into transactions with affiliates; enter into
sale-leaseback transactions; execute modifications to material contracts; engage in sales of assets;
make capital expenditures; and make optional prepayments of certain indebtedness. The financial
covenants include maintaining a Consolidated interest Coverage Ratio, as defined, not less than
1.00to 1 as of December.31, 2011. Management believes that Wynn Las Vegas, LLC was in compli-
ance with: all covenants at December 31, 2011. The Consolidated Interest Coverage Ratio remains
at 1.00 to 1 through June 2013. As of December 31, 2011, approximately $1 billion of net assets of
Wynn Las Vegas, LLC were restricted from being distributed under the terms of its long-term debt.

As of December 31, 2011, we had the-following first mortgage notes outstanding:

77% First Mortgage Notes due 2017. In October 2009, Wynn Las Vegas, LLC and Wynn Las Vegas
Capital Corp. {together the “lssuers”) issued, in a private offering; $500 million aggregate principal
amount of 7%% First Mortgage Notes due November 1, 2017 {the “2017 Notes”) at a price of
97.823% of the principal amount. Interest is due on the 2017 Notes on May 1st and November 1st
of each year. Commencing November 1, 2013, the 2017 Notes are redeemable at the.Issuer's
option at.a price equal to 103.938% of the principal amount redeemed and the premium over the
principal amount declines ratably on November 1st of each year thereafter to zero on or after
November 1, 2015. The 2017 Notes are senior secured obligations of the Issuers, guaranteed by
certain of Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's subsidiaries and secured’ by-a first-priority lien on substantially all
of the. existing and future assets of the Issuers and guarantors, and a first priority lien on the equity
interests of Wynn Las Vegas, LLC, all of which 'is the same collateral that secures borrowings under
Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's credit facilities. The. mdentgre governing the 2017 Notes contains customary
negative covenants and financial covenants, including, but.not limited to, negative covenants that
restrict Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's ability to: pay-dividends or distributions or repurchase equity; incur
additional debt; make investments; create liens on assets to secure debt; enter into transactions
with affiliates; enter into sale-leaseback transactions; merge or consolidate with another company;
transfer and sell assets or create dividend and other payment restriction affecting subsidiaries.

7%% First Mortgage Notes due 2020. In April’2010, the Issuers'issued, in a private offering, $352
million aggregate principal amount of 7%% First Mortgage Notes due May 1, 2020 (the 2020
Notes”). The 2020 Notes were issued pursuant to-an.exchange offer for previously issued notes
that were to mature in.December 2014. Interest is due on the 2020 Notes on May 1st and November
1st of each year. Comméncing May 1, 2015, the 2020 Notes are redeemable at the Issuer’s option
at a price equal to 103.938% of the pincipal amount redeemed and the premium over the princi-
pal amount declines ratably on-May 1st.of each year thereafter to zero on or after May 1, 2018. The
2020 Notes rank pari passu in right.of payment with borrowings under Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's
credit facilities and 2017 Notes. The:2020 Notes are senior secured obhgatnons of the Issuers, guar-
anteed by certain of Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's subsidiaries and secured by a first priority lien.on sub-
stantially all of the existing and future assets of the Issuers and guarantors, and a first priority lien
on the equity interests of Wynn Las Vegas, LLC, all of ‘which is'the same collateral that secures
borrowings under Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's credit facilities and the 2017 Notes. The indenture gov-
erning the 2020 Notes contains customary negative covenants and financial covenants, including,
but not limited to, negative covenants that-restrict Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's ability to: pay dividends
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or distributions or repurchase equity; incur additional debt; make investments; create liens on
assets to secure debt; enter into transactions with affiliates; enter into sale-leaseback transactions;
merge or consolidate with another company; transfer.and, sell assets or create dividend and other
payment restriction affecting subsidiaries.

7%% First Mortgage Notes due 2020. In. August 2010, the issuers issued $1.32 billion aggregate
principal amount of 7%:% first mortgage notes due August 15, 2020 (the “New 2020 Notes").
The New 2020 Notes were issued at par. The:New 2020 Notes' refinanced a previous note issue
that was to mature in December 2014. Interest is due on 'the New 2020 Notes on February 15th
and August 15th of each year. Commencing August.15, 2015, the New 2020 Notes are redeemable
at the Issuer's option at a price'equal to 103.875%0f the principal amount redeemed and the pre-
mium over the principal amount declines ratably on August 15th of each year thereafter to zero on
orafter August 15, 2018. The New 2020 Notes rank'pari passu‘in right of payment with borrowings
under Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's credit facilities, the 2017 Notes and the 2020 Notes. The New 2020
Notes are senior secured obligations of the Issuers, guaranteed by certain of Wynn Las Vegas,
LLC's subsidiaries and secured on an equal and ratable basis (with cértain exceptions) by a first
priority lien on substantially all of the existing and future assets of the Issuers and guarantors, and
a first priority lien on the equity interests of Wynn Las Vegas, LLC, all of which is the same.collateral
that secures borrowings under Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's credit facilities, the'2017 Notes and the 2020
Notes. The indenture governing the New 2020 Notes contains customary negative covenants and
financial covenants; including, but not limited to, negative covenants that restrict Wynn Las Vegas,
LLC’s ability to: pay dividends or distributions or repurchase equity; incur additional debt; make
investments; create liens.on assets'to secure debt; enter into transactions with affiliates; enter into
sale-leaseback transactions; merge or consolidate with another company; transfer and sell assets
or create dividend and other payment restriction affecting subsidiaries.

Macau Operations. As of December 3,‘[, 2011, our Wynn Macau credit facilities, as amended,
consisted of a-$550 million equivalent fully-funded senior term loan facility {the “Wynn Macau
Term Loan"), and a $1 billion-equivalent-senior. revolving credit facility (the “Wynn Macau Revolver”)
in a combination of'Hong Kong and U.S. daliars. The Wynn Macau Revolver and the Wynn Macau
Term Loan are together referred to as the "Wynn Macau- Credit Facilities.” Wynn Macau, S.A. also
has the ability to increase the total-facilities:by an additional $50 million pursuant to the terms and
provisions of the Amended Common Territs Agreement. During the year ended December 31,

2011, we repaid $100.2 million ‘of borrowings under the Wynn Macau Révolver in the first part of
the year and borrowed $150.4 million in December 2011. Beginning in September 2011, quarterly
payments became due under the’ Wynn Macau Term Loan and for 2011 the total amount repaid
was $74 million. As.of December 31, 2011, the Wynn Macau Term Loan was fully drawn, with total
amounts outstanding of $477.3 million: and wé had $150.4 million in borrowings cutstariding under
the Wyhn Macau Revolver. We had $849.6 million of avaliablhty under the Wynn Macau Revolver as
of December 31,.2011.
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The Wynn Macau Term Loan matures‘in June 2014, and the Wynn Macau Revolver matures in June
2012. The principal amount of the Wynn Macau Term ‘Loan is required to be repaid in quarterly
installments that commenced in September 2011, with $145.9 million due in 2012, Borrowings
under the Wynn Macau Credit Facilities bear interest at LIBOR or the Hong Kong Interbank Offer
Rate ("HIBOR") plus a margin which was 1.75% through September 30, 2010. Commencing in the
fourth quarter of 2010, the Wynn Macau Credit Facilities are subject to a margin of 1.25% to 2.00%
depending on Wynn Macau’s leverage ratio at-the end of each quarter. At December 31, 2011, the
margin was 1.25% to 1.75%. '

The Wynn Macau Credit Facilities: contain a requirement that we must make mandatory repay-
ments of indebtedness from specified percentages of excess cash-flow. If the Wynn Macau subsid-
iary meets a Consolidated Leverage Ratio, as defined, of greater-than 4.0 to 1, such repayment is
defined as 50% of Excess Cash Flow, as defined. If the Consolidated Leverage Ratio is less than
4.0 to 1, then no repayment is required. Based on current estimates we do not believe that the
Wynn Macau Consolidated Leverage Ratio during the year ending.December 31, 2012 will exceed
4.0 to 1. Accordingly we do not expect to make any mandatory repayments pursuant to this
requirement during 2012.

The Wynn Macau Credit Facilities contain customary covenants restricting certain activities includ-
ing, but not limited to: the incurrence of additional indebtedness, the incurrence or creation of
liens on any of its property, sales and leaseback transactions, the ability to dispose of assets, and
make loans or other investments. In addition, Wynn Macau was required by the financial covenants
to maintain a Leverage Ratio, as defined, of'not-greater than 3.50 to 1 as of December 31, 2011,

and an Interest Coverage Ratio, as defined, of not fess than 2.00 to 1. Management believes that
Wynn Macau was in compliance with all covenants.at December 31, 2011.

Wynn Resorts, Limited. in October 2009, Wynn Macau, Limited, our indirect wholly-owned subsid-
iary, listed its ordinary shares of common stock on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
Through an initial public offering,. including the over allotment, Wynn Macau, Limited sold
1,437,500,000 shares (27.7%) of its common stock. We received proceeds, net of related costs, of
approximately $1.8 billion as a result of this transaction.

During the years ended December 31,2011, 2010 and 2009, we paid cash dividends totaling $6.50
per share, $8.50 per share and $4.00 per share, respectively.

Our Board of Directors has authorized an equity repurchase program of up to $1.7 billion.
The repurchéase program may include repurchases from time to time through open market
purchases, in privately negotiated trarisactions,.and under plans complying with Rules 10b5-1 and
10b-18 under the Exchange Act. No share repurchases were made during the years ended
December 31, 2010 or 2009. During, 2011, the Company fepurchased a total of 51,136 shares
{6,160 shares during the fourth quarter) in satisfaction of tax withholding obligations on vested
restricted stock. As of December 31, 2011, we had repurchased a total of 12,856,090 shares of our
'common stock for a net cost of $1.1 billion under the program.
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Off Balance Sheet Arrangements. We have not entered into any transactions with special purpose
entities nor do we engage in any derivatives except for previously discussed interest rate swaps.
We do not have any retained or contingent interest in assets transferred to an unconsolidated
entity. At December 31, 2011, we had outstanding letters of credit totaling $15.8 million.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table summarizes our scheduled contractual commitments at December 31, 2011
(amounts in millions):

Payments Due By Period
Less Than 1t0-3 4t05 After 5

1 Year Years Years Years Total
Long-term debt obligations $407.9  $364.8 $254.7 $2,200.7 $3,228.1
Fixed.interest payments 169.4 3388 3388 496.1 1,343.1
Estimated variable interest paymenis®™ 28.9 38.4 9.7 0.2 77.2
Operating leases 50 5.1 3.3 4.6 18.0
Construction contracts and commitments 62.6 17.8 20 — 82.4
Leasehold interest in land 13.4 57.2 46.7 — 117.3
Employment agreements 45.8 48.3 17.5 20.1 131.7
Other® 88.1 741 38.7 112.5 313.4
Total commitments $821.1  $9445 $711.4 $2834.2 $5311.2

(1) Amounts:for alf periods represent our estimated future interest payments on our debt facilities based upon amounts
outstanding and UBOR or HIBOR rates at December. 31, 2011. Such rates are at historical lows as of December 31, 2011.
Actual rates wilf vary.

(2) Other includes open purchase orders, commitments for an aircraft purchase, future charitable contributions, fixed gam-
ing tax payments in Macay and other contracts. As further discussed in Note 15 “Income Taxes,” of this report, we had
$85.5'million of unrecognized tax benefits:as of December:31, 2011..Due to-the inherent uncertainty of the underlying
tax positions, it is not practicable to assign this liability to any particular year and therefore it is not included in the table
above as of December 31, 2011.

Other Liquidity Matters

Wynn Resorts is.a holding company and, as a result, our ability to pay dividends is highly depen-
dent on our abilityto obtain funds and our subsidiaries’ ability to provide funds to us. Restrictions
imposed by our Wynn Las Vegas and Wynn Macau'debt instruments significantly restrict our ability
to pay dividends. Specifically, Wynn Las'Vegas, LLC and certainof its subsidiaries are restricted
under the indentures governing the 2017 Notes, the 2020 Notes and the New 2020 Notes from
makmg certain “restricted payments” as defined in the indentures. These restricted payments
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include the payment of dividends or distributions to any direct or indirect holders of equity interests
of Wynn Las Vegas, LLC. These restricted payments may .not be made unless certain financial and
non-financial criteria have been satisfied. The Wynn Las Vegas, LLC Credit Facilities contain similar
restrictions. While the Wynn Macau Credit Facilities contains similar restrictions, Wynn Macau is
currently in compliance with all requirements, namely satisfaction of its leverage ratio, which must
be:met in order to.pay dividends and is presently able to pay dividends in accordance with the
Wynn Macau Credit Facilities.

Wynn Las Vegas, LLC intends to fund its operations and capital requirements from operating cash
flow and availability under the Wynn Las Vegas Revolver. We cannot assure you; however, that our
Las Vegas Operations will generate sufficient cash flow from operations or the availability of addi-
tional indebtedness will be sufficient to enable us to service and repay Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's
indebtedness and to fund its other liquidity needs. Similarly, we expect that Wynn Macau will fund
Wynn Macau, S.A's debt service obligations with existing cash, operating cash flow and availability
under the Wynn Macau Revolver. However, we cannot assure you that operating cash flows will be
sufficient to do so. We may refinance all or a portion of our indebtedness on or before maturity.
We cannot assure you that we will be able to refinance any of the indebtedness on acceptable
terms or at all.

New business developments or other unforeseen events may occur, resulting in the need to raise
additional funds. We continue to explore opportunities to develop additional gaming or related
businesses in domestic and international markets. There can be no assurances regarding the busi-
ness prospects with respect to any other opportunity. Any new development would require us to
obtain additional financing. We may decide to conduct any such development through Wynn
Resorts or through subsidiaries separate from the Las Vegas or Macau-related entities.

The Company's articles of incorporation prov:de that, to the extent required by the gaming authority
making the determination.of unsuitability or to the extent the Board of Directors determines, in its
sole discretion, that.a person is likely to 5eopardtze_the Company’s or any affiliate’s application for,
receipt of, approval for, right to the use of, or entitlement to, any gaming license, shares of Wynn
Resorts’ capital stock that are owned or controlled by an unsuitable person or its affiliates are sub-
ject to redemption by Wynn Resorts. The redemption price may be paid in cash, by promissory
note or both, as required by the applicable gaming authority and, if not, as we elect. Any promis-
sory note that we issue to an unsuitable person or its affiliate in exchange for its shares could
increase our debt to equity ratio and would increase our leverage ratio.
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On.February 18, 2012, the Board of Directors of Wynn Resorts determined that Aruze USA, Inc.,

Universal Entertainment Corporation and Mr. Kazuo Okada are “unsuitable” under the provisions
of Wynn Resorts' articles of incorporation and redeemed all of Aruze USA, Inc's 24,549,222 shares of
Wynn Resorts’ common stock. Pursuant to Wynn Resorts’ articles of incorporation, Wynn Resorts
issued the Redemption Price Promissory Note to Aruze USA, Inc. in redemption of the shares.
For additional information on the redemption and the Redemptlon Price Promissory Note, see
“Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements,” Note 19 "Subse_quent Events.”

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Management's discussion and analysis of our results of operations and liquidity and capital
resources are based on our consolidated financial statements. Qur consolidated financial state-
ments were prepared in. conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. A summary of our significant accounting policies are presented in Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Certain of our accounting policies require management to
apply significant judgment in defining the appropriate assumptions integral to financial estimates.
On an ongoing basis, management evaluates.those estimates, including those relating to the esti-
mated fives of depreciable assets, asset impairment, allowances for doubtful accounts, accruals for
customer loyalty rewards, self:insurance, contingencies, litigation and other items. Judgments are
based on historical experience, terms of existing contracts, industry trends and information avail-
able from outside. sources, as appropriate. However, by their nature, judgments are subject to an
inherent degree of-uncertainty, and therefore.actual results could differ from our estimates.

Development, Construction and Property-and Equipment Estimates. During the construction and
development of a resort, pre-opening;or:stari-up costs are expensed when incurred. In connection
with the construction and development of ourresorts, significant start-up costs are incurred and
charged to pre- openlng costs through- thelr respective openings. Once our resorts open, expenses
associated with the opening of the.resorts are no longer charged as pre-opening costs.

During the construction and development stage, direct costs such as those incurred for the design
and consiruction of our resorts, including applicable portions of interest, are capitalized.
Accordingly, the recorded amounts of property and. equipment increase significantly during
construction periods. Depreciation expense related to capitalized construction costs is recognized
when the related assets are placed in service: Upon the opening of our resorts, we began.
recognizing depreciation expense on the resort's fixed assets.

The remaining estimated useful lives of assets are periodically reviewed.
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Qur leasehold interest in land in Macau under the land concession contract entered into in
June 2004 is being amortized over 25 years, to the initial term of the concession contract, which
currently terminates in August 2029. Depreciation. on a majority of the assets comprising Wynn
Macau commenced in September of:2006, when Wynn Macau opened. The maximum useful life of
assets at Wynn Macau is deemed to be the remaining life of the land concession which currently
expires in August 2029, or the gaming concession which currently expires in June 2022.
Consequently, depreciation related to-Wynn Macau will generally be:charged over shorter periods
when compared to Wynn Las Vegas.

Costs of repairs and maintenance are charged to expense when incurred. The cost and accumu-
lated depreciation of property and equipment retired or otherwise disposed of are eliminated
from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in operating income.

We also evaluate our property and equipment and other long-lived assets for impairment in accor-
dance with applicable accounting standards. For assets to be disposed of, we recognize the asset
at the lower of carrying value or fair market value less costs of disposal, as estimated based on
comparable asset sales, solicited offers, or a discounted cash flow model. For assets to be held
and used, we review for impairment whenever indicators’ of'impairment exist. In reviewing for
impairment, we compare the.estimated future cash flows of the asset, on an.undiscounted basis, to
the carrying value of the asset: If the undiscounted cash flows exceed the carrying value, no impair-
ment is indicated. If the undiscounted cash flows do not exceed the.carrying value, an impairment
is recorded based on the fair valie of the asset, typically measured using a discounted cash flow
model. If an asset is still under development, future cash flows include remaining construction
costs. All recognized impairment losses, whether for-assets to be disposed of or assets to be held
and used, are recorded as operating expenses.

Investments and Fair Value. We have made-investments in domestic and foreign corporate debt
securities and commercial paper. Our investment policy requires investments to be .investment
grade and limits the amount of exposure to any one issuer with the objective of minimizing
the potential risk of principal loss. We determine the appropriate classification (held-to-maturity/
available-for-sale) of our investmentsat the time,of purchase and reevaluate such designation as of
each balance sheet date.. Our invéstments are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and
losses, net of tax, reported in other'comprehensive income (loss). Adjustments are made for amor-
tization of premiums and accretion of discounts to maturity computed under the effective interest
method. Such amortization is included in interest income together with realized gains and losses
and the stated interest on such securities.
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We measure certain of our-financial assets and liabilities, such as cash equivalents, available-for-sale
securities and interest rate swaps, at fair value on a recurring basis pursuant to accounting
standards for fair value measurements. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement.date. These accounting standards- establish a three-tler fair value hierarchy, which
prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. These tiers include: Level 1, defined as observ-
able inputs such as quoted prices in active' markets; Level 2, defined.as inputs other than quoted
prices in active markets that are either directly or indirectly observable; and Level 3, defined as
unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring an entity to develop
its own assumptions.

We obtain pricing information in determining the fair value of our available-for-sale securities from
independent pricing vendors. Based on our inquiries, the pricing vendors use various pricing mod-
els consistent with what other market participants would use. The assumptions and inputs used
by the pricing vendors are derived from market observable sources including: reported trades,
broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads; benchmark curves, bids, offers and other market-related
data. We have not made adjustments to such prices. Each quarter, we validate the fair value pric-
ing methodology to determine the-fair value consistent with applicable accounting guidance and
to confirm that the securities are classified properly in the fair value hierarchy. We also compare the
pricing received from our-vendors to-independent sources for the same or simifar securities.

Allowance for Estimated Doubtful Accounts Receivable. A substantial portion of our outstanding
receivables relates to casino credit play. Credit'play, through the issuance of markers, represents a
significant portion of the table games volume at our Las Vegas Operations. While offered, the issu-
ance of credit at our Macau Operations is.less:significant when compared to Las Vegas. Our goal
is to maintain strict controls over the issuance of credit,and aggressively pursue collection from
those customers who fail to pay their balances in a timely fashion. These collection efforts may
include the mailing of statements and delinquency notices, personal contacts, the use of outside
collection agencies, and litigation. Markers issued at our Las Vegas Operations are generally legally
enforceable instruments in the United, States, and United States assets of ‘foreign customers may
be used to satisfy judgments entered in the United States.

The enforceability of markers and other forms of credit related to gaming debt outside of the
United States varies from country to.country. Some foreign countries do not recognize the-enforce-
ability of gaming-related debt, or make enforcement burdensome. We closely consider the likeli-
hood and difficulty of enforceability, among other factors, when issuing credit to customers who
are not residents of the United States. In addition to our internal credit and collection depart-
ments, located in both Las Vegas and Macau, we have a.netiork of legal, accounting and collec-
tion professionals to assist us in our detérminations regarding enforceability and our overall
collection efforts.
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As of December 31, 2011 and 2010; approximately 85% and 82%, respectively, of our casino
accounts receivable were owed by customers from foreign countries; primarily in Asia. In addition
10 enforceabrh‘ty issues, the collectability of markers given by foreign customers is affected by a
number of factors including changes’in currency exchange rates and. economic conditions in the
customers’ home countries.

We regularly evaluate our reserve for bad debts based on a specific review of customer accounts
as well as management's prior experience with collection trends in-the casino industry and current
economic and business conditions. In determining our allowance for estimated doubtful accounts
receivable, we apply industry standard reserve percentages to aged account balances and we spe-
cifically analyze. the collectability of each account with a balance over a specified dollar amount,

based upon the age, the customer's financial condition, collection history and any other known
information. The standard reserve percentages app!ned ‘are based on our historical experience and
take into consideration. current industry and economic.conditions.

The following table presents key statistics related to our casino accounts receivable (amounts
in thousands):

December 31,

2011 2010
Casino accounts receivable ‘ $301,658 $256,807
Allowance for doubtful casino accounts receivable $128,875 $113,203
Allowance as a percentage of casino accounts receivable 42.7% 44.1%
Percentage of casino accounts.receivable outstanding.over 180 days 30.1% 31.2%

Our reserve for doubtful casino accounts receivable is based.on our estimates of amounts collect-
ible and.depends on-the risk assessments and judgments by management regarding realizability,
the state of the economy and our credlt policy. Our reserve methodology is applied similarly to
credit extended at each of our resorts. A§ of December 31,.2011 and 2010, approximately 41.7%
and 35.1%, respectively, of our outstanding’ casino account recewable balance originated at our
Macau Operations.

At December 31, 2011, a 100 basis: point-change in theé. allowance for-doubtiul accounts as a per-
centage of casino accounts receivable would change the' provision for doubtful accounts by
approximately $1.3 miflion.

As our customer payment -experience evolves, we will continue to refine our estimated reserve for
bad debis. Accordingly, the -associated provision for doubtful accounts expense may fluctuate.
Because mdwldual customer account balances can be 5|gn|ficant the' reserve and the prowsmn

customer or changes occurin a region’s economy or legal systern.

35

‘Wynn Resorts, Limited / Wynn PA, Inc. — November 2012




2011 AnNuaL REPORT

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Derivative Financial Instruments. We seek to manage our market risk, including interest rate risk
associated with variable rate borrowings, through balancing fixed-rate and variable-rate borrow-
ings and the use of derivative financial instruments. We account for derivative financial instruments
in accordance with applicable accounting standards. Derivative financial instruments are recog-
nized as assets or liabilities, with changes in fair value affecting net income. As of December 31,
2011, changes in our interest rate swap fair values are. being recorded in our Consolidated
Statements of Income, as the'swaps do not qualify for hedge accounting.

- We:measure the fair value of our interest rate.swaps on a recurring.basis. We categorize our interest
rate swap contracts as Level 2 in the hierarchy as described above. The fair value approximates the
amount we would receive (pay) if these contracts were settled at the respective valuation dates.
Fair value is estimated based upon current, and predictions of future, interest rate levels along a
yleld curve, the remaining duration of the instruments and other market conditions, and theréfore
is subject to significant estimation and a h|gh degree ofvariability of fluctuation between periods.
We adjust this amount by applying a non-performance valuation; considering our creditworthiness
or the creditworthiness of our counterparties ‘at each settlement date, as applicable.

Stbck-Based"COmpensation Accounting standards for'stock-based payments establish-standards
for the accounting for transactions.in which-an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods
and services or incurs a liability in exchange for goods and services that-are based on the fair value
of 'the entity’s equity instruments or that may, be settled by the issuance of those equity instru-
ments. It requires an entity to measure‘the costs; of employee services received in exchange for an
award of equity instruments based on the grant:date fair value of the award and recognize that
cost over the service period. We use the Black-Scholes valuation model to value the equity instru-
ments we issue. The Black-Scholes valuation model uses assumptions of expected volatility, risk-
free interest rates, the expected term of options granted, and expected rates of dividends.
Management determines these assumptions by reviewing current market rates, making industry
comparisons and reviewing conditions relevant to our Company.

The expected volatility and expected term. assumptions can significantly impact the fair value of
stock options. We believe that the valuation techniques and the approach utilized to develop our
assumptions are reasonable in calculating the fair value of the options we grant. We estimate the
expected stock price volatility using-a combination of implied and historical factors related to our
stock price in accordance with applicable.accounting standards. As our stock price fluctuates, this
estimate will change. For example,:a 10% change in the volatility-assumption for the 25,200 options
granted in 2011 would have resulted in an approximate $117,000 change in fair value. Expected
term represents the estimated: average time between'the option’s grant date and its exercise date.
A 10% change in the expected térm assumption for the 25,200 options granted”in 2011 would
have resulted in an approximate.$20,000.change in fair value. These assumed changes in fair value
would have been recognized over the vesting schedule of such awards.
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Accounting standards also require the classification of stock compensation expense in the same
financial statement line items as cash compensation, and therefore impacts our departmental
expenses {and related opérating margins), pre-opening costs and construction in progress for our
development projects, and our general and administrative.expenses (including corporate expenses).

Self-Insurance Reserves. We are self-insured up to certain limits for costs of employee health cov-
erage {fully insured for employee health coverage beginning January 1, 2012), workers’ compensa-
tion and general habthty claims. Insurance claims and reserves mclude accruals of estimated
settlements for known claims, as well as:accruals of estimates for claims incurred but not yet
reported. In.estimating these-accruals, we consider historical loss experience and make judgments
about the expected level of costs per claim. Management believes. the-estimates of future liability
are reasonable based upon its methodology; however, changes in healthcare costs, accident
frequency and severity could materially affect the estimate for these liabilities.

Customer Loyalty Program. We offér a slot club program whereby cusiomers may earn points
based on their level of play that may be.redeemed for free credit:that must be replayed in the slot
machine. We accrue a liability based on the points earned times the redemption value, less an
estimate for breakage, and record a related reduction in casino revenue.

Slot Machine Jackpots. We do not accrue a liability for-base jackpots because we have the ability
to avoid payment of such as the slot machine can.legally be removed from the gaming floor without
payment of the base amount. Conversely, when.we are unable to avoid payment of the jackpot (i.e.,
the incremental amount on a progressive machine) due.to legal requirements, the jackpot.is accrued
as the obligation becomes unavoidable. This liability is accrued over the time penod in which the
incremental progressive jackpot amount is generated with-a related reduction in casino revenue.

Income Taxes. We are subject to income taxes.in the United States and other foreign jurisdictions
where we operate. Accounting standards require the recognition of deferred tax assets, net of
applicable reserves, and liabilities for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differ-
ences between financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit: carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and lia-
bilities are measured using enacted tax rates in.effect for the'year in which those temporary differ-
ences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of a change in tax rates on the income
tax provision and deferred tax assets-and liabilities is recognized in the results of operations in the
period that includes the-enactment date. Accountlng standards require recognition of a future tax
benefit to the extent that realization of such benefit is'more likely than not. Otherwise, a valuation
allowance is applied.
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As of December 31, 2011, we have a foreign tax credit carryover of $1,848 million and we have
recorded a valuation allowance of $1,777 million against this asset based on our estimate of future
realization. The foreign tax credits are attributable to the Macau special gaming tax which is 35% of
gross gaming revenue in Macau. The U.S. taxing regime only allowsa credit for 35% of “net” foreign
source income. Due to our current operating history of U.S. losses, we currently do not rely on'fore-
casted taxable income in order to support the utilization of the foreign tax credits. The estimated
future foreign tex credit realization was based upon the estimated future taxable income from the
reversal of “net” U.S. taxable temporary. differences that we expect will reverse during the 10-year
foreign tax credit carryover period. The amount of the valuation allowance is subject to change
based upon the actual reversal of temporary differences and future taxable income exclusive of
reversing temporary differences. :

Our income. tax returns are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service {"IRS")
and other tax authorities in the focations where we operate. We assess potent:ally unfavorable
oltcomes of such examinations based on. accounting standards for uncertain income taxes.
The accounting standards prescribe 2 minimum recognition threshold a tax position is required to
meet before being recognized in the financial statements.

Uncertain tax position accounting standards apply to all tax positions related to income taxes.
These accounting standards utilize a two-step approach for evaluating tax positions. Recognition
{Step I} occurs when the Company concludes that:a tax position, based on its technical merits, is
more likely than not to be sustained upon examination. Measurement (Step 1) is only addressed if
tl?e position is deemed to be more likely than not to be-sustained. Under Step ll, the tax benefit is
measured as the Iargest amount of benefit-that is more likely than not to be realized upon settle-
ment. Use of the term “more likely than not” is consistent with how that term is used in accounting
for income taxes {i.e., likelihood.of, occurrence is greater than 50%)

Tax positions failing to quahfy for initial recogmtlon are recognized in the first subsequent interim
period that.they meet-the “more likely than not” standard. If it is subsequently determined that a
previously recognized tax position no longer meets the "more likely than not” standard, it is
required that the tax position is derecognized..Accounting standards for uncertain tax positions
specifically prohibit the use of a valuation-allowance as a-substitute for derecognition of tax posi-
tions. As applicable we recognize accrued penaltiesand interést related to unrecognized tax ben-
efits in the provision for income taxes. During the year ended December 31, 2011, we recognized
interest and penalties of approximately $40,000. During the years ended December 31, 2010 and
2009, we recognized no amounts.for interest.or penalties.
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Etffective September 6, 2006, we received a 5-year exemption from Macau’s 12% Complementary
Tax on casino gaming profits. On November 30,2010, we received an additional 5-year exemption
to December 31, 2015 related to this tax.. Accordingly, during 2011 we were exempted from the
payment of approximately $82.7 million in such taxes. Wynn Macau's non-gaming profits remain
subject to the Macau Complementary Tax and Wynn Macau's casino winnings remain subject to
the Macau Special Gaming tax and other levies in accordance with its concession agreement.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In'May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the "FASB”) issued an accounting stan-
dards update that is intended-to align the principles for fair value.measurements and the related
disclosure requirements Under GAAP and IFRS. From a GAAP perspective, the updates are largely
clarifications and certain additional disclosures. The effective date for this update is for years, and
the interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2011. This update is not
expected to have a material impact on our financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued an-accounting standards update that will require items of net income,
items of other comprehensive income (*OCI"} and total: comprehensive income to be presented in
one continuous statement or two separate but consecutive statements. This will make the presen-
tation of:items within OC! more prominent. Companies will nG longer be allowed to present OCl in
the statement of stockholders’ equity. The. effective date for this update is for years, and the
interim periods.within those years, beginning after December 15, 2011.
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Market risk-is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices, such as interest
rates, foreign currency exchange rates and commodity prices.

Interest Rate Risks

One of our primary exposures to market risk is interest rate risk associated with our debt facilities
that bear interest based on'floating rates. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Financing Activities.”
We attempt to manage interest rate risk by managing:the mix of long-term fixed rate borrowings
and variable raté borrowings supplemented:by hedging activities as believed by us to be appropri-
ate. We cannot assure you that theserisk mianagement strategies-have had the desired effect, and
interest rate fluctuations could have a'negative impact on our results.of-operations.

The following table provides estimated future cash flow information derived from our best esti-
mates of repayments at: December 31, 2011 of our expected long-term indebtedness and related
weighted average interest rates by expected maturity dates. However, we cannot predict the LIBOR
or HIBOR rates that will be ip effect in the future. As of December 31, 2011, such rates remain at
historic lows. Actual rates will vary. The one-month LIBOR and HIBOR rates at December 31, 2011 of
0.295% and 0.341%, respectively, were used for all variable rate calculations in the table below.

The information is presented in U.S. dollar equivalents as applica_"ble.

Years Ending December 31,
Expected Maturity Date

(in mifions}). 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Thereafter Total
Long-Term Debt:

Fixed rate — — —_ — —  $2172.0 $2,1720
Average.interest rate — — - — —_ 7.8% 71.8%
Variable rate $407.9 $17555 $189.4 32532 $ 1.4 $ 287 $1,056.1
Average interest rate 1.92% 149%  187%  3.29% 1.55% 1.55% 219%

Interest Rate Swap Information

We have entered into floating-for-fixed interest.rate swap arrangements relating to certain of our
floating-rate debt facilities. We measure the fair value of our interest rate swaps on a recurring
basis. Changes in the fair values of our interest rate swaps for each reporting period recorded are,
and will continue to be, recognized as an incréase/{decrease) in swap fair value in our Consolidated
Statements of Income, as the swaps do not qualify for hedge accounting.

Las Vegas Operations. As of Decerriber’31, 2011, we have one interest rate swap intended to
hedge a portion of the underlying interest rate risk on borrowings uridér the Wynn Las Vegas Credit
Facilities. Under this swap agreement, we pay‘a fixed interest rate of 2.485% on borrowings of $250
illion-incurred under the Wynn Las Vegas Credit Facilities in exchange for receipts on the same
‘amount at & variable interest rate based on'the applicable LIBOR:at-the time of- payment. This inter-
est rate swap fixes the interest rate on $250 million of borrowings under the Wynn Las Vegas Credit
Facilities at approximately. 5:485%. This interest rate swap agreement matures in November 2012.
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Macau Operations. As of December 31, 2011, we have'one‘interest-rate swap intended to hedge a
portion of the underlying interest rate’ rlsk on borrowings under the Wynn Macau Credit, Facilities.
Under this swap agreement we pay & fixed interest rate of 2.15% on borrowings of approximately
HK$2.3 billion (approximately US$300 mllllon) incdrred under the Wynn Macau Credit Facilities in
exchange for receipts on the sare amount.at a variable interest rate based on the applicable HIBOR
at-the time of payment. This interest rate swap fixes:the interest rate on HK$2.3 billion {approxi-
mately US$300 million) of borrowings under the Wynn Macau Credit Facilities at.approximately
3.4%. This interest rate swap agreement matures in June 2012.

We had two interest rate swap agreements to hedge a portion of the underlying interest rate risk
on borrowings under the Wynn Macau Credit Facilities, both of which expired in August 2011,
Under the first.swap agreement, we paid a fixed interest rate of 3.632% on U.S. dollar borrowings
of $153.8:million incurred under the Wynn Macau Credit Facilities in exchange for receipts on the
same amount at a variable interest rate based on the applicable LIBOR at the time of payment.
Under the second swap agreement, we paid a fixed interest rate of 3.39% on Hong Kong dollar
borrowings of HK$991.6 million (approximately US$127 million) incurred under the Wynn Macau
Credit Facilities in exchange for receipts on the same amount at a variable interest rate based on
the applicable HIBOR at the time of payment. Until they expired.in August 2011, these interest rate
swaps fixed.the interest rates on the U.S. dollar and the Hong Kong dollar borrowings under the
Wynn Macau Credit Facilities at 4. 88%-5. 38% and 4.64%, respectively.

Summary of Historical Fair Values. The following table presents the historical liability fair values as
of December 31, 2011 and 2010, of our interest rate swap-arrangements {amounts in thousands):

Las Vegas Macau Total Interest
Operations Operations Rate Swaps
Liability Fair Value at;
December 31, 2011 $4,628 $ 2,670 $ 7,298
December 31, 2010 $8,457 $12,992 $21,449

The fair value approximates the amount we would pay if theése contracts were settled at the
respective valuation dates. Fair value is éstimated based upon current, and predictions of future,
interest rate levels along a yield curve, the remaining duration of the instruments and other mar-
ket conditions, and therefore'is subject to significant estimation and a high degree of variability of
fluctuation between periods. We adjust this amount by ‘applying a non-performance valuation,
considering our creditworthinéss or the ¢reditworthiness of our counterparties at each settlement
date, as applicable.
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Other Interest Rate Swap Information. The following table provides information about our interest
rate swaps, by contractual maturity dates, as of December 31, 2011 and using estimated future
LIBOR and HIBOR rates based upon implied forward rates in the yield curve. The.information is
presented in U.S. dollar equivalents, which is our reporting currency:

Years Ending December 31,
Expected Maturity Date

{in millions) 2012 2013 2004 2015 2016 Thereafter  Total
Average notional amount $5500 $— f— &— 3 $— $550.0

. Average pay rate 2.35%. — — — — — 2.35%
Average receive rate 0.40% — —_ C— — — 0.40%

We do not use derivative financial instruments, other financial instruments or derivative commodity
instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Interest Rate Sensitivity. As of December 31, 2011, approximately 84% of our long-term debt was
based on fixed rates, including the notional amounts related to intefest rate swaps. Based on our
borrowings as of December 31, 2011, an assumed 1% change in variable rates would cause our
annual interest cost to change by $5.1 miilion.

Foreign Currency Risks. The currency delineated in Wynn Macau’s concession agreement with the
government of Macau is the Macau pataca. The Macau pataca, which is not a freely convertible
currency, is linked to the Hong.Kong dollar, and in many cases the two are used interchangeably in
Macau. The Horig Kong doliar is linked to the U.S. dollar and the exchange rate between these two
currencies has remained relatively. stable over the past several years. However, the exchange link-
ages of the Hong Kong dollar and the Macau pataca, and the Hong Kong dollar and the U.S. dollar,
are subject to potential changes due-to, among .other things, changes in Chinese governmental
policies and international economic and political developments.

If the Hong Kong dollar and the Macau pataca are not linked.to the U.S. dollar in the future, severe
fluctuations in the exchange rate for these currencies may result. We also cannot assure you that
the current rate of exchange fixed by the applicable monetary authorities for these currencies will
remam at the same level.

Because many of Wynn Macau’s payment and expenditure oblugatlons are in Macau patacas,
in the event of unfavorable Macau pataca or Hong Kong dollar rate changes, Wyrin Macau's
obligations, as denominated in U.S. dollars, would increase. In addition, because we expect that
most.of the revenues for any casino that Wynn Macau operates in Macau Wl" be in Hong Kong del-
lars, we are subject to foreign exchange risk with, respect to the exchange rate between
the 'Hong Kong dollar and the U.S. dollar. Also, if-any of our Macau-related entities incur U.S.
dollar:denominated debt, fluctuations in the exchange rates of the Macau pataca or the Hong
Kong dollar, in relation to the U'S. dollar, could have adverse effects on Wynn Macau's results of
‘operations, financial condition, dand ability to service its debt. To date, we have not engaged in
‘hedging activities intended to protect against foreign currency risk:

-As of December 31, 2011, in addition to Hong Kong dollars, Wynn Macau also holds other foreign
currencies, primarily CNH {offshore renminbi).
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a “safe harbor” for forward-locking
statements. Certain information included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K contains statements
that are forward-looking, including, but not limited to, statements relating to our business strategy
and development activities as well as other capital spending, financing sources, the effects of
regulation (including gaming and tax regulations}, expectations concerning future operations, prof-
itability and competition. Any statemerits contained in this report that-are not statements of his-
torical fact may be deemed to be forward-looking statements. Without limiting the generality of
the foregoing, in some cases you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as

i would,” “"could,” "believe,” "expect,” "anticipate,” “estimate,” "intend,”

[T "o "o oo oo

"may, will,” "should,
“plan,” “continue” or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. Such forward-
Iookmg information involves important risks and uncertainties that could significantly affect antici-
pated results in the future and, accordingly, such results may differ from those expressed in any
forward-looking statements made by us. These risks and uncertainties include, but are not limited

to the following;

* adverse tourism and trends reflecting current domestic and international economic conditions;

« volatility and weakness in world-wide credit and financial markets and from governmental
intervention in the financial markets; ’

* " general global macroeconomic conditions;

+ decreases!in levels of travel, leisure and consumer spending;

+ continued high unemployment;

¢ fluctuations in occupancy rates and‘average daily room rates;

» conditions precedent to funding under our credit facilities;

* continuedcompliance with all provisions in aur ¢redit agreements;

+ competition in the casino/hotel and resort industries and actions taken by our competitors;

* doing business in foreign locations such as Macau (including the risks associated with developing
gaming regulatory framewdarks);

¢ restrictions or conditions on visitation by citizens.of mainland China to Macau;

» new development and construction activities'of competitors;

* our dependence on Stephen A. Wynn and existing managemient;

» our dependence on a limited number of resorts and locations for all of our cash flow;
* leverage and debit service {including sensitivity to fluctuations in interest rates);

» changes in federal or state tax laws or-the administration of such laws;

* changes in state law regarding water rights;

* changes in U.S. laws regarding healthcare;
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changes in gaming laws or regulations (including the legalization of gaming in certain

jurisdictions});

approvals under applicable jurisdictional laws and regulations (including gaming laws and

regulations),

the impact that an outbreak of an infectious disease or the impact of a natural disaster may have

.on the travel and leisure industry;

terrorist attacks;
regulatory or enforcement actions/probity; and

pending or future legal proceedings.

.the consequences of military conflicts in the Middle East and any future security alerts and/or

Further information on.potential factors that could affect our financial condition, results of opera-
tions and business are included in this report and our other filings with the SEC. You should not
place undue reliance on- any forward-locking statements, which are based only on information
currently available to us: We undertake no obligation to publicly release any revisions to such
forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances.after the date of this report.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

(amounts in thousands, except share data) 201 2010
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $1,262,587 $1,258,499
Investment securities 122,066 —_
Receivables, net 238,490 187,464
Inventories 72,061 86,847
Prepaid expenses and other 31,248 28,326
- Total current assets 1,726,452 1,561,136
Property and equipment, net 4,865,332 4,921,259
Investmeént securities 91,501 —
Intangibles, net 35,751 40,205
Deferred financing costs 50,372 61,863
Deposits and other assets 125,712 85,802
Investment in unconsolidated affiliates 4,376 4,232
Total assets ' $ 6,899,496 $ 6,674,497
{continued)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
(amounts in thousands, except share data} 2011 2010

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts and construction payable $ 171,608 $ 168,135
Current portion of long-term debt 407,934 2,675
Current portion of land concession obligation 13,425 —
Customner deposits 576,011 368,621
Gaming taxes payable 177,504 173,888
Accrued compensation and benefits 78,717 70,834
Accrued interest 49,989 53,999
Other accrued liabilities 94,642 32,476
Construction retention 4,471 12,266
'Deferred income taxes, net 3,575 2,974
Income taxes payable _ 2,017 2,061
Total current liabilities 1,579,893 887,929
Long-term debt 2,809,785 3,264,854
Land concession obligation. 103,854 —
Other long-term liabilities 128,216 64,248
Deferred income taxes, net 54,294 76,881
Total liabilities 4,676,042 4,293,912

Commitments and contingencies {Note 16)

Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, par value $0.01; 40,000,000 shares authorized;
zero shares issued and outstanding — —
Common stock, par value $0.01; 400,000,000-shares authorized;
137,937,088 and 137,404,462 shares issued; 125,080,998 and

124,599,508 shares outstanding ) 1,379 1,374
Treasury stock, at cost; 12,856,090 and 12,804,954 shares (1,127,036} (1,119,407)
Additional paid-in capital 3,177,471 3,346,050
Accumulated other comprehensive.income 840 889
Retained earnings 36,348 2,042

Total Wynn Resorts, Limited stockholders’ equity 2,089,022 2,237,948
Noncontrolling interest 134,432 142,637
Total equity , 2,223,454 2,380,585
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 6,899,496 56,674,497

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LimiTED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31,

The accompanying notes are-an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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(amounts in thousands, except share data) 2011 2010 2009
Operating Revenues: ‘ ' _
Casino $4,190,507 $3,245,104 $2,206,829
Rooms 472,074 400,291 377,520
Food and beverage 547,735 488,108 436,361
Entertainment,-retail and other 414,786 354,332 288,432
Gross revenues 5,625;102 4,487,835 3,309,142
Less: promotional-allowances (355,310) (303,137)  (263,531)
Net revenues 5,269,792 4,184,698 3,045,611
Operating Costs and Expenses: -
‘Casino 2,686,372 2,100,050 1,460,130
Rooms 125,286 122,260 111,596
Food and beverage 283,940 272,747 252,687
_Entertainment; retail and other 214,435 204,558 166,636
General and administrative 389,053 391,254 365,070
Provision for doubtful accounts 33,778 28,304 13,707
Pre-opening costs = 9,496 1,817
Depreciation and amortization 398,039 405,558 410,547
Property charges and other 130,649 25,219 28,458
Total operating costs and*expenses- 4,261,552 3,559,446 2,810,648
Operating income 1,008,240 625,252 234,963
Other Income {Expense): o
Interest income 7.654 2,498 1,740
Interest expense, net of amounts capitalized (229 918) (222,863) (211,385)
Increase {decrease) in swap fair value 14,151 (880) (2,258)
Gain (loss) on extinguishment of deﬁbt/exchange offer — (67,990) 18,734
Equity in income from unconsolidated affiliates 1,472 801 121
Other 3,968 225 191
‘ Other‘inqome (expense), net (202,673) (288,209) (192,857}
Income before income taxes 805 567 337,043 42,106
Benefit {provision) for income taxes 19 546 (20,447) (2,999)
Net income _ ' 825,113 316,596 39,107
Less: net income attributable to Aoncontrolling interests  (211,742) (156,469) (18,453)
Net income attributable to Wynn Resorts, Limited $ 613,371 $ 160,127 $ 20,654
Basjc and diluted income per.common share:
Net income attributable to Wynn Resorts, Limited:
Basic '$ 494 % 1.30 % 0.17
Diluted $ 488 3 1.29 % 0.17
Weighted average common shares outstanding: ,
Basic 124,039 122,787 119,840
Diluted 125,667 123,939 120,185
Dividends declared per-common share, $ 650 % 850 % 4.00
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ANNuaL REPORT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

{armounts in thousands) 2011 201Q 2009
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income $ 825113 $ 316,596 $ 39,107
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 398,039 405,558 410,547
Deferred income taxes (10,822) 18,875 {656}
Stock-based compensation 23,881 27,168 24,336
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation (11.052) (9,833) {44,909)
Amortization and write-offs of deferred financing
costs and other 19,683 24,347 26,160
Loss (gain) on extinguishment.of
debt/exchange offer — 62,608 (18,734)
Provision for doubtful accounts 33,778 28,304 13,707
Property charges and other 104,223 10,270 28,458
Equity in income of unconsolidated affiliates,
net of distributions (144) {130 594
{Increase)- decrease in swap fair value (14,15%) 880 2,258
+Increase {decrease) in cash from changes in:
Receivables, net 7 (84,653) {(63,073) {(41,416)
Inventories and prepaid expenses and other 11,168 22,169 3,265
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 220,772 213,578 151,239
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,515,835 1,057,312 593,956
‘Cash Flows Used in lnvesting Activities:
- Capital expenditures, net of ‘construction payables
and retention N {184,146) (283,828) (540,929)
Purchase of investment securities (316,533} — -—
Proceeds from.sales or maturities of
investment securities 101,017 — —
Deposits and purchase of other assets (60,135) {13,034) {11,258}
Proceeds from-sale of equipment 697 739 1,107
Net cash used in investing activities (459,100 (296,123) (551,080}
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Years Ended December 31,

{amounts in thousadnds) 201 2010 2009
Cash Flows from Financing Activities: o
Proceeds from exercise of stock options $ 23859 $ 66,186 $ 6,347
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation 11,052 9,833 44,909
Proceeds from issuance of common stock —_ —_ 202:145
Proceedsfrom Wynn Macau, Ltd. IPO — — 1,869,653
Dividends paid {1,033,447) (1,192,138) (489,876)
Proceeds from issuance of long:term debt 150,483 2,246,361 1,151,781
Principal payments on long-term debt {201,901)  (2,551,561) {1,799,040)
Repurchase of Wynn Las Vegas first mortgage notes - — (50,048y
Purchase of treasury stock ' (7,629) — —
Interest rate swap iransactions —_ — {9,561)
Payments on long-term land concession obligation —_ —_ {6,065)
Payment of financing costs (58) {71,317) (104,730)
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities (1,057,641)  (1,492,638) 815,515
Effect of exchange rate oncash 4,994 (1,884} {465)
Cash and Cash Eguivalents:
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 4,088 (733,331) 857,926
Balance, beginning of year 1,258,499 1,991,830 1,133,904
Balance, end of year $:1,262,587 $ 1,258,499 $1,991,830

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures:
Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized § 221123 $ 171,663 $ 209,093
Change in property and equipment:included in

accounts and construction payables 13,794 (27,670} {181,366}
Cash-paid for income taxes 2,088 1,019 2,894
Increase’in liability for cash distributions declared

on nonvested stock 1,003 6,703 3,556

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these.consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

Wynn Resorts, Limited, a Nevada corporation (together with its subsidiaries, “Wynn Resorts”
the "Company”), was formed in June 2002 and completed an initial public offering of its common
stock on October 25, 2002.

In June 2002, the Company’s indirect subsidiary, Wynin Resorts (Macau), S.A. ("Wynn Macau, S.A."),
entered into an agreement with the government of the Macau Special Administrative Region of the
People's Republic of China, ("Macau”), granting Wynn Macauy, S.A.the right to construct arid oper-
ate one or more casino gaming properties in Macau. Wynn Macau, S.As first casino resort in
Macau is hereinafter referred to as "Wynn Macau.”

The Company currently owns and operates casino hotel resort properties in Las Vegas, Nevada,
and Macau. In Las Vegas, Nevada, the- Company owns Wynn Las Vegas, which opened on April 28,
2005 and was. expanded with the opening of Encore at' Wynn Las Vegas on December 22, 2008
(together "Wynn Las Vegas” or the “Las Vegas Operations”). In Macau, the Company owns Wynn
Macau, which opened on Seéptember 6, 2006 and was expanded with the opening of Encore at
Wynn Macau on April 21, 2010 ({together "Wynn Macau” or'the "Macau Operations”).

In October 2009, Wynn Macau, Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
listed its ordinary shares of common stock on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Through
an initial public offering, including the over allotment, Wynn Macau, Limited sold 1,437,500,000
shares (27.7%)} of this subsidiary's comman stock.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation. The accompanymg consolidated financial statements include the
accounts of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries. Investments in the 50%-owned joint
ventures operating the Ferrari and Maserati automobile dealership and the Brioni men's retalil
clothlng store inside Wynn Las Vegas are dccoufted for under the equity method. All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Certain amounts in the consoli-
dated financial statements for the previous years have been reclassified to be consistent with
the current year presentation. These: reclassifications had no effect on the previously reported
net income,

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles requires management-to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities-and disclosure of contingent assets:and liabili-
ties at the date of the financial statements . and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period~Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents’are comprised of highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less and include  both U.S. dollar-denominated and
foreign currency-denominated securities. Cash equivalents are carried at cost, which approximates
fair value. Cash equivalents of $545 million and $663.9 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, were invested in bank time deposits, money market funds, U.S. Treasuries and
commercial paper.
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Investment Securities. Investment securities consist of short-term. and long-term investments in
domestic and foreign corporate debt securities.and commercial paper. The Company's investment
policy requires investments o be.investment grade and limits the amount of exposure to any one
issuer with the objective of minimizing:the potential risk of principal loss. Management determines
the appropriate classification (held-to-maturity/available-for-sale) of its securities at the time of
purchase and reevaluates such designation as of each balance sheet date. The Company's invest-
ments are reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, reported in other
comprehensive income: Adjustments are made for amortization of premiums and accretion of dis-
counts to maturity computed under the effectivé interest method. Such amortization is included in
interest income together with realized gains and losses and the stated interest on such securities.

Accounts Receivable and Credit Risk. Financial instruments that potentially subject'the Company
to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of casino accounts receivable. The Company
issues credit in the form. of "markers” to approved casino customers following investigations of
creditworthiness. At December 31,2011 and 2010, approximately 85% and 82%, respectively,
of the Company’s markers were due from customers residing outside the. United States, primarily
in Asia. Business or economic conditions or other significant events.in these countries could affect
the collectability of such receivables.

Accounts receivable, including casino and hotel receivables, are typically non-interest bearing and
are initially recorded atcost. Accounts are written off when management deems them to be uncol-
lectible. Recoveries of accounts previously written off are recorded when received. An estimated
allowance for doubtiul accounts’is maintained to reduce - the Company's receivables to their carry-
ing amount, which approximates fair value. The allowance is-estimated based on specific review of
customer accounts as well as management’s expetience with collection trends in the casino industry
and current economic and business conditions.

Inventories. Inventories consist of retail merchandise, food and beverage items which are stated at
the lower of cost or market value and certain operating supplies. Cost is:determined by the first-in,
first-out, average and specific identification methods.

Property and Equipment: Purchases of property and equipment-are-stated at cost. Depreciation is
provided over the estimated useful lives of the assets:using the straight-line method as follows:

Buildings and improvements 10 to 45 years
Land improvements 10 to 45 years
Leasehold interest in land 25 years
Airplanes 7 to 20 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment : 3 to:20 years

Costs'related to improvements are.capitalized,.while costs-of repairs and maintenance are charged
to expense as incurred. The cost and accumulated depreciation.of property and equipment retired
or otherwise disposed of are eliminated from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or
loss is included in operations,
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Capitalized Interest. The interest cost associated with major development and construction projects
is capitalized and included in the cost of the project. Interest capitalization ceases once a project
is substantially complete or no longer undergoing construction activities to prepare it for its
intended use. When no debt is specifically identified as being incurred in connection with a con-
struction project, the Company capitalizes interest on amounts expended on the project at the
Company’s weighted average cost of borrowed money. Interest of $0,.$7.2 million and $10.7 miliion
was capitalized for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Intangibles. The Company’s indefinite-lived intangible assets consist primarily of water rights
acquired as part of the original purchase price of the property on'which Wynn Las Vegas is located,
and trademarks. Indefinite-lived intangible assets are_not amortized but are reviewed for impair-
ment annually. The Company’s finite-lived intangible assets consist of a Macau gaming concession
and show production rights. Finite-lived intangible assets are amortized over the shorter of their
contractual terms or estimated useful lives.

Long-Lived Assets..Long-lived assets, which are to be held and used, including intangibles and
property and equipment, are periodically reviewed by management for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the asset may not be recov-
erable. If an indicator of impairment.exists, the Company compares the estimated future cash
flows of the asset, on an undiscounted basis, to"the carrying value of the asset. If the undiscounted
cash flows exceed the carrying value, no impairment is indicated.. If the undiscounted cash flows
do not exceed the carrying value, then impairment is measured as the difference between fair
value and carrying value, with fair value*typically based on a discounted cash flow model. If an
asset is still under development; future cash flows include remaining construction costs.

Deferred Financing Costs. Direct and incremental costs incurred.in obtaining loans or in connec-
tion with the issuance-of.long-term debt are capitalized,and amortized to interest expense over the
terms of the rélated debt agreements.-Approximately $11.6 million, $13.2 miltion and $15.4.million
were amortized to interest expense during the years ended De,cember 31, 2011, 2010 and 20089,
respectively. Debt discounts incurred in-connection with the issuance of debt have been capitalized
and are being amortized to interest expense Using the effective-interest method.

Derivative Financial Instruments. The Company.seeks.to manage its market risk, including interest
rate risk associated with variable rate borrowings, through balancing fixed-rate and variable-rate
borrowings with the use of derivative financial instruments. The fair value of derivative financial
instruments-are recognized as assets or liabilities-at each balance sheet date, with.changes in fair
value affecting net income as the Company's-current interest rate swaps do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Accordingly, changeés in the fair value of the interest rate swaps are presented as an
increase {decrease) in swap fair value in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.
The differentials paid or received on interest rate swap agreementsiaré recognized as adjustments
to interest expense.

Revenue Recognition and Promotional Allowances. The Company recognizes revenues at the time
persuasive -evidence of an arrangemerit exists, the service'is provided or the retail goods are sold,
prices are fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably assured.
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Casmo revenues.are measured by the aggregate net difference between gaming wins and losses,
W|th liabilities recognized for funds deposited by customers before gaming play occurs and for
chips in the customers' possession. Gash discounts, other cash incentives related to casino play
and commissions rebated through junkets to customers are recorded as a reduction to casino rev-
enye. Hotel, food and beverage, entertainment and other operating revenues are recognized
when services are performed. Entertainment, retail and other revenue includes rental income which
is recognized on a time proportuon basis over the lease term. Contingent rental income is recog-
nized when the.right to receive such. rental income is estabhshed according to the lease agree-
ments. Advance deposits on rooms and advance ticket sales are recorded as customer deposits
until services are provided to the customer.

Revenues are recognized net of certain sales incentives which are required to be recorded as a
reduction of revenue; consequently, the Company's casino revenues are reduced by discounts,
commissions and points earned in the player’s club loyalty program.

The retail value of accommodations, food and beverage, and other services furnished to guests
W|thout chargé is included ‘in gross revenues. Such amounts are then deducted as promotional
allowances. The estimated cost.of prowdlng such promotional allowances is primarily included in
casino expenses as follows ([amounts in thousands}):

Years Ended-December 31,

1 St 20m 2010 2009
Rooms $ 52,019 $ 52017 $ 53,325
Food and beverage 104,413 94,220 86,798
Entertainment, retail and other 17,017 21,09 12,787

5173449 $147,328 $152,910

Self-Insurance Reserves. The Company is self-insured up'to certain limits for costs of employee
health coverage (fully insured for emiployee health coverage beginning January 1,.2012), workers’
compensation and general liability claims. Insurance claims and reserves include accruals of esti-
mated settlements for known claims, as well as'accruals of estimates for claims incurred but not yet
reported. In estimating these accruals, the Company considers historical loss experience and
makes judgments about.the expected level of costs periclaim. Management believes the estimates
of future liability are reasonable based upon its methodology, however, changes in healthcare
costs, accident-frequency and severity could materially affect-the estimate for these liabilities.

Customer Loyalty Program. The Company offers a slot club program whereby customers may-earn
points based on their level. of play that may be redeemed for free credit that must be replayed in
the slot machine. The Company accrues a liability based on the points earned times the redemption
value, less an estimate for breakage, and records a related reduction in casino revenue.

Slot Machine Jackpots. The Company does not-accrue a liability for base jackpots because it has
the ability to avoid such payment as slot machines can legally be removed from the gaming floor
without payment of the base amount. When the Company is unable to avoid payment of the jackpot
{i.e., the incremental amount on a progressive slot machine) due to legal requirements, the
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jackpot is accrued as the obligation becomes unavoidable. This liability is accrued over the time
period in which the incremental progressive jackpot amount-is generated with a related reduction
in casino revenue.

Gaming Taxes. The Company is subject to taxes based on gross gaming revenue in the jurisdictions
in which it operates, subject to applicable jurisdictional adjustments. These gaming taxes are
an-assessment on the Company’s gaming revenue and are recorded as an expense within the
“Casina” line item in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income. These taxes totaled
$1.9 billion, $1.4 billion and $892.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively.

Adbvertising Costs. The Company expenses advertising costs the first time the advertising takes
place. Advertising costs incurred in development periods are included in pre- opening costs. Once
a project is completed, advertising costs are included in general and administrative expenses.
Total advertising costs were $19.5 million, $19 million and $20.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2070 and 2009, respectively.

Pre-Opening Costs. Pre-opening costs consists primarily of direct salaries and wages, legal and
consulting fees, insurance, utilities.and advertising, and are-expensed as incurred. During the year
ended December 31; 2010, the Company incurred pre-opening costs.in connection with the Encore
Beach Club and Surrender Nightclub which opened in May 2010, and Encore at Wynn Macau prior
to its opening in April 2010.

Income’ Taxes. The Company is_subject to income taxes in the United States and other foreign
jurisdictions where it operates. Accounting standards. requireithe recognition of deferred tax
assets, net of applicable reserves, and liabilities for the:estimated future tax consequences attribut-
able to differences between financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities
and their respective tax bases'and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or setfled. The effect of a change in tax rates on the
income tax provision and deferred tax assets and liabilities is recdgnizedin the results of opera-
tions in the period that includes the enactment date. Accounting standards also require recogni-
tion of a future tax benefit to the extent that realization of such benefit is more likely than not.
Otherwise, a valuation allowance is applied.

The Company’s income tax returns are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service
("IRS”) and other tax authorities in the locations where it operates. The Company assesses poten-
tially unfavorable outcomes of such examinations based on accounting standards for uncertain
income taxes. The accounting staridards prescribe @ minimum recognition threshold a tax position
is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements.
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Uncertain tax position accounting standards apply to all tax positions related to income taxes.
These accounting standards utilize a two-step. approach for evaluating tax positions. Recognition
{Step I} occurs when the Company concludes: that a tax position, based on its technical merits, is
mare likely than not to be sustained upon examination. Measurement (Step |l) is only addressed if
the position is deemed to be more likely than ot to be sustained. Under Step Il, the tax benefit is
measured as the largest amount of benefit that is:more likely than not to be reallzed upon settle-
ment. Use of the term "more likely than not!” is consistentwith how that:term is used in accounting
forf income taxes {i.e., likelihood of occurrence is greater than 50%).

Tax positions failing to qualn‘y for initial recogmtlon ,are recognized in the first subsequent.interim
period that they meet the "more likely than not” standard. If it is subsequently determined that a
previously recognized tax position no longer meets the “more likely than not” standard, it is
required that the tax position is derecogrized. Accounting standards for uncertain tax positions
specifically prohibit the use of a valuation allowance as a substitute for derecognition of tax
positions. As applicable, the Company will recogrize accrued penalties and interest related to
unrecognized tax benefits.in the provision for income taxes.

Currency Translation. Gains or losses from foreign currency remeasurements are included in other
income/expense in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income. The-results of opera-
tions and the balance sheet of Wynn Macau, Limited.and its subsidiaries are translated from Macau
patacas to U.5: dollars. Balance sheet accounts are translated at the exchange rate in effect at each
year-end. Income statement accounts are translated at the average rate of exchange prevailing
during the year. Translation adjustments resulting from this ‘process are charged or credited to
other comprehensive income.

Comprehensive Income. Comprehensive income includes net income and all. other non-
stockholder changes in equity; or other comprehensive income. Components of the Company’s
comprehensive income are reported in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’
Equity. The cumulative balance of other comprehensive income consists solely of currency translation
adjustments and unrealized.gain {loss) on available-for-sale securities.

Fair Value Measurements. The Company measures certain of its financial assets and liabilities,
such as cash equivalenits, available-for-sale securities and interest rate swaps, at fair value on a
recurring basis pursuant to accounting standards for fair-value measurements. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset.or pald to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. These accounting standards establish a
three-tier fair value-hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair value. These tiers
include: Level 1, defined as observable-inputs-such as quoted prices in active markets; Level 2,
defined as inputs other than quoted pricés in active markets-that are either directly or indirectly
observable; and Level 3, defined as unobservable inputs in which little or no market data exists,
therefore requiring an entity to develop its own assumptions.
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The following table presents assets and liabilities carried at fair value (amounts in thousands):

- Fair Value Measurements Using:

Quoted
Market
Prices in Other
Total Active Observabla  Unobservable
Carrying Markets Inputs Inputs
Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3}
As'of December 31, 2011
Cash equivalents $545,045 $363,104 $181,941 —
interest rate swaps $ 7,298 — $ 7,298 —
Available-for-sale securities $213,567 —  $213,567 —
As of December 31, 2010
Cash equivalents $663,948 $480,218  $183,030 —
Interest rate swaps $ 21,449 —  § 21,449 —

Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings per share {"EPS") is computed by dividing net income attribut-
able to Wynn Resorts by the weighted average number of shares ocutstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS reflects'the addition of potentially dilutive securities which for the Company include:
stock options-and nonvested stock.

The weighted average number of common and common. equivalent shares used in the calculation
of basic and diluted EPS for the years énded December 31, 2011 2010 and 2009, consisted of the
following (amounts in-thousands):

2011 2010 2009

Weigﬁted average common shares outstanding {used in calculation

of basic earnings:per share) 124,039 122,787 119,840
Potential dilution from the assumed exer¢ise of stock-options and

nonvested- stock 1,628 1,152 345
Weighted average common and common equivalent shares outstanding

{used in calculation of diluted earnings per share) 125,667 123,939 120,185
Anti-dilutive stock options excluded from the calculation of diluted

earnings per share 610 1,078 4,900

Stock-Based Compensation. Accotinting standards require the Company to measure the cost of
employee services received in exchange for an award of eqmty instruments based on the grant-
date fair value of the award and recognize that cost over the service period. The Company uses the
Black-Scholes valuation mode].to determine the estimated fair value for each option grant issued.
The Black-Scholes determined fair value net of estimated forfeitures is amortized as compensation
cost on a straight-line basis overthe service period.

Further information on the Company's stock:based compensation arrangements is included in
Note 14 Benefit Plans—Stock-Based Compensation.
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Recently Issued Accounting Standards. In May 2011, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
{the "FASB") issued an accounting standards update that is intended to align the principles for fair
val;ue measurements and the related disclosure requirements'under GAAP and IFRS. From a GAAP
perspective, the u‘pdates are largely clarifications and certain additional disclosures. The effective
date for this update is for years, and the interim periods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2011. This update is not expected to have a material impact on the Company's
financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued an accounting'standards update that will require items of net income,
items of other comprehensive income ("OCI") and total’ comprehensive income to be presented in
one continuous statement or two separate but consecutive statements. This will make the presen-
tation of items within OC| more prominent. Companies will no longer be allowed to present OCl in
the statement of stockholders’ equity. The effective date for this update is for years, and the
interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2011,

3. Investment Securities
Investment securities consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):

Available-For-Sale Securities

Fair Value
Gross Gross {Net
Amortized  Unrealized  Unrealized  Carrying
Cost Gains Losses Amount)
December 31, 2011

Domestic.and forei_gn corporate bonds $196,986 $20 $(2.070) $194,9356
Commercial paper 18,651 1 (21 18,631
$215,637 .,  $21 $(2,091)  $213,567

For investments with unrealized losses as of December 31, 2011, the Company has determined that
(i) it does not have the intent-to sell any of-these investments, and (i) it is not likely that the
Company will be required to sell these investments prior-to the recovery of the amortized cost.
Accordingly, the Company has determined that no other-than-temporary impairments exist at the
reporting date. All of the investmenits in a continuous loss position have been so for less than
12 months.

The Company obiains pricing information in determining -the fair value of its available-for-sale
securities from indepeﬁdent pricing vendors, Based on management’s inquiries, the pricing
vendors use various pricing models consistent with what other market participants would use.
The assumptions and inputs used by the pricing vendorssare derived from market observable
sources including: reported trades, broker/dealer quotes, issuer spreads, benchmark curves, bids,
offers and other market-related data. The' Company .has not made adjustments to such prices.
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Each quarter, the Company validates the fairvalue pricing methodadlogy to determine the fair value
consistent with applicable accounting guidance and to confirm that the securities are classified
properly in the fair value hierarchy. The Company compares the pricing received from its vendors
to independent sourcés for the same or similar.securities.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of these investment securities at December 31, 2011,
by contractual maturity are shown below (amounts in thousands):

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
Available-For-Sale Securities
Due in one year or less $122,451 $122,066
Due after one year through three years 93,184 91,501

$215,637  $213,567

4. Receivables, Net
Receivables, net consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):
As of December 31,

2011 2010
C:asind $ 301,658 $ 256,807
Hotel 20,790 15,900
Retail leases and other 45,520 28,848
‘ 367,968 301,555
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (129,478} (114,091)

$ 238,490 $187,464

5. Property and Equipment, Net.
F’roperty and equipment, net consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):

As of December 31,

7 2011 2010
Land and improvements ) $ 730,335 $ 731,810
Buildings and improvements 3,777,612 3,735,633
Airplanes 77,434 77,421
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,655,655 1,647,424
Leasehold.interest in land 316,437 85,545
Construction in progress 28,477 22,901
6,585,952 6,300,734
Less: accumulated depreciation 1,720,620y (1,379,475)

$4,865,332 $4,921,259
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Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010.and 2009, was $389.8 million,
$394.9 million and $395.2 million, respectively.

6. Intangibles, Net
lnt:angibles, net consisted of the fallowing {amounts in thousands):

Macau Show Total
Gaming Praduction = Water Intangibles,
Concession Rights- Rights  Trademarks Net
January 1, 2010 $29,784 $7,074 £5,400 $1,399 $44,659
Amortization (2,383) (2,071) — — (4,454}
December 31, 2010 27,40 5,005 6,400 1,399 40,205
Amaortization (2,383} (2,071) — — (4,454}
Décember 31, 2011 $25,018 $2934  $6,400 $1,399 $35,751

The Macau gaming concession intangible is being amortized over the 20-year life of the conces-
sion. The Company expects that amortization of the Macau gaming. concession will be $2.4 million
each year from 2012 through 2021, and $1 million in:2022,

Show production, rights represent amounts paid to purchase the rights to the “Le Réve” produc-
tion show, which is performed at-Wynn Las Vegas. The Company expects that amortization of
show production rights will be.$2.1 million for 2012.and-$0.8 miilion for 2013.

Water rights reflect the fair value allocation determined in the purchase of the property on which
Wynn Las Vegas is located in April 2000. The value of the trademarks primarily represents the
costs to acquire the “Le Réve” name. The water rights and trademarks are indefinite-lived assets
and, accordingly, not amortized.

7. Deposits and Other Assets
Deposits and other assets consisted of the following {amounts in thousands):

As of December 31,

2011 2010
bepbsits and other $100,399 352,664
Base stock ' 23,117 26,289
Entertainment:production costs R 2,196 6,849

$125712 385,802

Aircraft Deposits. As of December 31, 2011, the Company has made deposits of $48 million toward
the purchase of an aircraft, with addltlonal payments to be made totaling $9.3 million. The delivery
date for this aircraft is scheduted for June 2012.
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8. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):
As of December .31,
201 2010

77%% Wynn Las Vegas First Mortgage Notes, due November 1, 2017,
net of original issue discount of 38,578 at December'31, 2011 and
$9,679 at December 31, 2010 $ 491,422 % 490,321
7%% Wynn Las Vegas First Mortgage Notes, due May 1, 2020,
net of original issue discount of $1,789 at December 31, 2011 and

$1,933 at December 31, 2010 . 350,221 350,077
7%% Wynn Las Vegas First Mortgage Notes, due August 15, 2020 " 1,320,000 1,320,000
Wynn Las Vegas Revelving Credit Facnhty, due July 15, 2013;

.interest at LIBOR plus 3% —_ 3,868
Wynn Las Vegas Revolving Credit Facility, due July 17, 2015;

interest at LIBOR. plus 3% — 16,187
Wrynn Las Vegas Term Loan Facility, due August 15, 2013;

interest at LIBOR plus 1.875% 40,262 44,281
Wynn Las Vegas Term Loan Facility, due August 17, 2015;

sinterest at LIBOR plus 3% 330,605 330,605

Wynn Macau Senior Term Loan Facilities (as amended June 2007),

-due June 27, 2014; interest at LIBOR or HIBOR plus 1.25%-1:75%

at December 31, 2011 and 1.25%-1.75%at.December 31, 2010 477,251 550,900
Wynn Macau: Semor Revolving Credit Facility, due June 27, 2012;

interest at LIBOR or HIBOR plus 1.25% at.December31, 201

and 1.25% at December 31, 2010 150,400 100,165
$42 million Note Payable, due April 1, 2017; interest at.LIBOR plus 1.25% 35,350 356,750
$32.5 million Note Payable, due August 10;2012;-interest at.LIBOR plus 1.15% 22,208 24,375

: 3,217,719 3,267,529
Current portion of long-term debt (407,934) (2,675)

$2,809,785 $3,264,854

774% Wynn Las Vegas First Mortgage Notes due 2017

In October 2009, Wynn Las Vegas, LLC and Wynn Las Vegas Capital Corp. (together, the "Issuers”)
issued, in a private offering, $500 million aggregate principal amount of 7%4% First Mortgage
Notes due November- 1, 2017 (the “2017 Notes”) at-a price of 97.823% of the principal amount.
Interest is due on the 2017 Notes on May 1st and November 1st of each year. Commencing
November 1, 2013, the 2017 Notes are redeemable at the Issuer's option at a price equal to
103.938% of the principal amount redeemed and the premium over the principal amount
declines ratably on November 1st of each year thereafter to zero on or after November 1, 2015.
The 2017 Notes are senior secured obligations of the lssuers, guaranteed by certain of
Wynn Las Vegas, LLC’s subsidiaries and secured by a first priority lien on substantially all of the
jexisting and future assets of the Issuers and guarantors, and a first priority lien on the equity
interests of Wynn Las Vegas, LLC, ail of which is the same collateral that secures borrowings under
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Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's credit facilities. The indenture governing the 2017 Notes contains customary
negative covenants.and financial covenants, including, but not limited to, covenants that restrict
Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's ability to: pay dividends.or distributions ‘or repurchase equity; incur addi-
t|ona| debt; make investments; create liens on assets to:secure debt; enter into transactions with
alfflluates enter info sale-leaseback transactions; merge or consolidate with another company;
transfer and sell assets or create dividend and other payment restriction affecting subsidiaries.

77% Wynn Las Vegas First Mortgage Notes due 2020

In April 2010, the Issuersissued,.in a private offeting, $352 million aggregate principal amount of
7%% First Mortgage Notes due May 1, 2020 (the “2020 Notes"). The 2020 Notes were issued pur-
suant to an exchange -offer for prewously issued notes that were to mature in December 2014.
Interest is due on the 2020 Notes on May 1st and November 15t of each year. Commencing May 1,
2015, the 2020 Notes are redeemable' at the Issuer's option at‘a price equal to 103.938% of the
principal amount redeemed and the .premium over the principal amount declines ratably on
May 1st of each year thereafter to zero on or after May. 1, 2018. The 2020 Notes rank paii passu in
right of payment-with' borrowings under Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's credit facilities and 2017 Notes.
The 2020 Notes .are senior secured obligations of the Issuers, guaranteed by certain of Wynn Las
Vegas, LLC's subsidiaries and secured by a first priority lien on substantially all of the existing and
future assets of the Issuers and guarantors,,and a-first priority lien on the equity interests 6f Wynn
Las Vegas, LLC, all of which is the same collateral that'secures borrowings under Wynn Las Vegas,
LLC's credit: facilities and the 2017 Notes.. The indenturé governing the 2020 Notes contains
customary -negative covenants-and financial covenants, including, but not limited to, covenants that
restrict Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's ability to:pay dividends ordistributions or repurchase equity; incur
additional debt; make investments; create liens on assets to secure debt; enter into transactions
with affiliates; eriter into sale leaseback transactions; merge or ¢onsolidate with another company;
transfer and-sell assets or create dividend and other payment restriction affecting subsidiaries.

,7%% Wynn Las Vegas First Mortgage Notes.

In Augist 2010, the Issuers issued $1.32'billion aggregate principal amount of 7%% First Mortgage
Notes due August 15, 2020 (the "New-2020 Notes”). The New 2020 Notes were issued at par.
The New 2020 Notes refinanced a previous note issue that was to mature in December 2014.
Interest is due on the New 2020 Notes'on‘February 15th and August 15th of each year. Commencing
August 15, 2015, the New 2020 Notes'are redeemable at the Issuer’s option at a price equal to
103.875% of the principal amount redeemed and the. premium over the-principal amount declines
ratably on August 15th of each year thereafter to zero on or-after August 15; 2018. The New 2020
Notes rank pari'passu in right of payment with borrowings under Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's credit
facilities, the 2017 Notes and:.the 2020 Notes: The:New 2020 Notes are senior secured obligations
of the Issuers, guaranteed by certain of Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's subsidiaries and secured on an
equal and ratable basis {with certain exceptions) by # first priority lien on substantially all of the
.existing and future assets of the Issuers and guarantors, and a first'priority lien on the equity inter-
ests of Wynn Las Vegas, LLC, all of’ which is the same collateral that secures borrowings under Wynn
Las Vegas, LLC's credit facilities, the 2017 Notes and the 2020 Notes. The indenture. governing the
New 2020 Notes contains customary negative covenants and financial covenants, including, but not
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limited to, covenants that restrict Wynn Las Vegas, LLC's ability to: pay dividends or distributions or
repurchase.equity; incur additional debt; make investments; create liens on assets to secure debt;
enter into transactions with affiliates; enter into sale-leaseback transactions; merge or consolidate
with anothér company; transfer and sell.assets or create dividend and other payment restriction
affecting subsidiaries.

Wynn Las Vegas Credit Facilities

As of December 31, 2011, the Wynn Las Vegas Amended and Restated Credit Agreement (the
“Credit Agreement") consmted of a $108.5 million revolving credit facility due July 2013, a $258.4
million revolving ¢redit, facility due July 2015 (together the “Wynn Las Vegas Revolver"), a fully
drawn $40.3 million term loan facility due August 2013 and a fully drawn $330.6 million term loan
facility due August 2015 {together the “Wynn Las Vegas Term Loan"). The Wynn Las Vegas Revolver
and the Wynn Las Vegas Term Loan are together referred to as the "Wynn Las Vegas Credit
Facilities.” Duriﬁg the.year ended December 31, 2011, Wynn Las'Vegas repaid'$20.1 miltion of bor-
rowings under the Wynn Las Vegas Revolver and $4 miltion under the Wynn Las Vegas Term Loan.
As of December 31, 2011, the Wynn Las Vegas Term Loan was fully drawn and no borrowings were
outstanding under the Wynn Las Vegas Révolver. Wynn,Las Vegas, LLC had $15.8 million of out-
standing letters of credit that reduce availability for: borrowmg under the' Wynn Las Vegas Revolver.
Wynn Las Vegas, LLC had availability of $351.1 million urider the Wynn Las Vegas Revolver as of
December 31, 2011.

Loans’underthe Wynn Las Vegas Crédit Facilities bear interest-at fluctuating rates, based on either
LIBOR or an alternative base rate, plus an applicable margin. As of December 31, 2011, the applica-
ble margin for LIBOR loans under the Wynn'Las Vegas Revolver and the Wynn Las Vegas Term Loan
due August 17, 2015 was 3.0%, and the applicable margin for LIBOR loans under the Wynn Las
Vegas Term Loan due August 15, 2013 was 1.875%. Base Rate Loans bear interest at (@) the great-
est of (i) the rate most recently announced by Deutsche Bank as its “prime rate,” (i) the Federal
Funds Rate plus 1/2 of 1% per-annum, and (jii}'in the case of a Wynn Las Vegas Revolver loan the
one month Eurodollar rate; plus (b) a borrowing margin.of 2.0% for Wynn Las Vegas Revolver loans
and 0.875% for Wynn Las Vegas Term Loans. Interest on Base Rate Loans will be payable.quarterly

in arrears. Wynn Las Vegas, LLC also pays, quarterly in arrears, 1.0% per annum on the daily average

of unused commitments under the Wynn Las Vegas Revolver.

The Wynn Las Vegas Credit Facilities.are obligations of Wynn Las Vegas, LLC, guaranteed by each
of the subsidiaries of Wynn Las Vegas, LLC, other than Wynn Completion Guarantor, LLC. Subject
to an intercreditor agreement, and cértain exceptions, the obligations of Wynn Las Vegas, LLC and
each of the guarantors under the Wynn Las Vegas Credit Facilities are secured by: (1) a first priority
pledge of all member's interests owned by Wynn. Las Vegas, LLC in its subsidiaries {other than

‘Wynn Completion Guarantor, LLC) and Wynn Resorts Holdings, LLC’s 100% member's interest in

Wynn.Las Vegas, LLC; (2} first mortgages.on all real property constituting Wynn Las Vegas, its goif
course and Encore at Wynn Las Vegas; and (3) a first priority ‘security interest in substantially ail
other existing and future assets of Wynn Las Vegas, LLC and the guarantors, excluding an aircraft

.beneficially owned by World Travel, LLC.
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!
The obligations of Wynn Las Vegas, LLC and the guarantors:under the 'Wynn Las Vegas Credit
Facilities rank equal‘in.fight of payment with their’ ‘existing and future senior indebtedness, includ-
ing indebtedness-with respect.to the 2017 Notes-the 2020 Notes.and the New 2020:Notes and
ranks senior inright-of payment-to all of their existing-and future subordinated indebtedness.

In‘ addition to scheduled amortization payrménts, Wynn LasVegas; LLC'is required to make manda-
tory prepayments of indebtedness under thé:Wynn Las Vegas Credit-Facilities from the net ‘proceeds
of all'debt offerings {other than-those const&tutmg certain.permitted debt). Wynn Las Vegas, LLC.is
also requrred to make mandatory repaymenits of indebtedness under the Wynn Las Vegas-Credit
Facrhtres from: specrfred percentages of excéss: cash flow, whrch percentages may decrease and/or
expects to make a mandatory repayment of approxrmateiy $88 rnrlllon in March pursuant to this
provision. of the:Wynn Las Vegas:Credit Facilities: Wynn Las Vegas,.LLC has the option to-prepay all
or: any portlon .of the indebtedness under the Wynn Las Vegas Credit Facilities at any time without
premium or penalty.

The credit facilities contains customary negative. coveriants-and. financial covenants, including, but
not: limited to, negative covenants-that restrict:Wynn Las Végas, LLC's ability to: incur additional
indebtedness; including guaraniees; creats, Incur, assume or permit to:exist liens on property and
assets; declare. ot pay dividénds.and make dsstrrbutlons -or restrict'the ability of Wynn Las Vegas,
LLC's.subsidiaries to pay dividends and make drstrlbuttons -eéngage in mergers, inveéstmenis and
acquisitions; enter into transactions with affiliates; enter into,salé-leaseback transactions; éxecute
modifications to material contracts; engage‘in. sales of assets; make capital expenditures; and
make optional prepayments of certain, indebtedness. Thefinancial covenants include maintaining a
Consolidated.Interest Coverage.Ratio, as: défined, not less than 1100 to 1 as of December 31, 2011.
Management ‘believes that: Wynn Las: Vegas, LLC was in. compliance with all covenants at
December 31,.2011."The Consolidated Interest Coverage Ratio.remains at 1.00 to 1 through June
2013. As of December 31,2017, approximately:$1 billion of net assets of Wynn Las Vegas, LLC were
restrrcted from bemg distributed under the terms 6Fits lorig-term debt.

Wynn Macau Credit Facilities

A's of December 31,2011 and 2010, the: Company's Wynn Macau credit facilities, as amended, con-
sisted of 2-$550 million equwalent fully-funded-senior‘term loan facility (the “Wynn Macau Term
Lodn"), and a $1 billion sehior revolving credrt facr]rty {the “Wynn Macau Revolver”) in a combination
of Hong Kong.and'U.S. dollars (together thie, “Wynn Macau Cred[t Facilities”). Wynn Macau, S.A.
also has the ability to increase the'total-facilities-by an additional $50 million pursuant to the terms
and provisions of the Amended Common Terms Agreement. As of December 31, 2011, the Wynn
Macad Term Loan was filly drawn and $150 4 miilion was-outstanding under the Wynn Macau
Revolver. Consequently, there wasravarlabrlrty of approxXimately $849.6 million under the Wynn
Macau Revolver as of December 31, 2011.

The WynnMacau Term Loan matures in June 2014;.and the Wynn Macau Revolver matures in June
2012. The principal amount of the Wynn Macau Term Loan ‘is- required to be repaid in quarterly
installments that commenced in SeptembBer 2071, with $145.9 million due in 2012. Borrowings
under the Wynn Macau Credit Facilities bear interest.at LIBOR ar the Hong Kong Interbank Offer
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Rate ("HIBOR") plus a margin which.was'1.75% through September 30, 2010. Commencing in the
fourth quarter of 2010, the Wynn Macau Credit:Facilities are subject to a margin of 1.25% to 2.00%
depending on Wynn Macau's leverage ratio at the end of each quarter. At December 31, 2011, the
margin was 1.25% to 1.75%.

Collateral for the Wynn Macau Credit Facilities consists of substantially all of the assets of
Wynn Macau, S.A. Certain affiliates of the Company that own interests in Wynn Macau, S.A., either
directly or indirectly through other subsidiaries, have executed guarantees of the loans and
pledged their interests in'Wynn Macau, S.A. as additional security for repayment of the loans.
in addition, the Wynn Macau Credit Facilities'’ governing documents contain capital spending
|Imlt5 and other affirmative and negative covenants.

The Wynn Macau Credit Facilities contain a requirement that the Company must make mandatory
repayments of indebtedniess from'specified percentages of excesscash flow. If the Wynn Macau
subsidiary meetsia Consolidated Leverage Ratio, as defined, of.greater than 4.0 to 1, such repay-
ment is defined as 50% of:Excess Cash Flow, as defined. If the Consolidated Leverage Ratio is less
than 4.0 to 1, then no repayment is required. Based on current estimates the Company does not
believe that the Wynn Macau Consolidated Leverage Ratio dunng the year ending December 31,
2012 will exceed 4.0 to 1. Accordingly, the Company does not expect to make any mandatory
fepayments pursuant to this requirement during 2012,

The Wynn Macau Credit Facilities contain customary covenants restricting certain activities includ-
ing, but not limited to: the incurrence of additional indebtedness, the incurrence or creation of
liens on any of its property, sales and leaseback transactions, the ability to dispose of assets, and
make loans or other investments. In addition, Wynn Macau was required by the financial covenants
to maintain a Leverage Ratio, as defined, of'hot greater than-3.50 to 1 as of December 31, 2011,

and an. Interest Coverage Ratio, as defined, of not less than 2. 00 to 1. _Management beheves that
Wynn Macau was in compliance with-all covenants:at December 31, 2011

ln connection with the initial financing of'the Wynn Macau, Wynn Macau, S.A. entered into a Bank
Guarantee Reimbursement Agreement with Banco Nacional Ultramarino, S.A. (“BNU") for the
benefit'of the Macau government. This guarantee assures Wynn Macau, S.A.'s performance under
the casino concéssion agreement; including:the payment of premiums, fines and indemnity for any
material failure to perform under the terms of the concession agreement. As of December 31,
',2011 the guarantee was in the amount of $300 million Macau patacas (approximately US$37 mil-
lion) and will remain at such amount until 180 days after the end of the term of the concession
agreement (2022) BNU, as issuer of the guarantee, is currently secured by a second priority secu-
rity interest in the senior lender collateral package. From and after repayment of all indebtedness
under the Wynn.Macau Credit Facilities, Wynn Macau,.S.A. is obligated to promptly, upon demand
by BNU, repay any claim made on the guarantee by the Macau government. BNU is paid an annual
fee for the guarantee not to exceed approkimately $5.2 million Macau patacas {approximately
US$0.7 million).
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$42 Million Note Payable for Aircraft

On March 30, 2007, World Travel, LLC, a subsidiary of Wynn Las Vegas, entered into a loan agreement
with a principal balance of $42 million. The loan is guaranteed by Wynn Las Vegas, LLC and secured
by a first priority security interest in one of the Company's aircraft. Principal payments of $350,000
plus interest are made quarterly with a balloon payment of $28. million due at maturity, April 1,
2017. Interest is calculated at:90-day LIBOR plus 125 basis points.

$32.5 Million Note Payable.for Aircraft

On May 10, 2007, World Travel G-IV, LLC, a subsidiary of Wynn Resorts, entered into a $32.5 million
term loan credit facility to finance the purchase of an aircraft. Principal payments of $542,000 plus
interest are made quarterly with a balloon payment of $21.1 million due at maturity, August 10,
2012. Interest is calculated at LIBOR plus 115 basis points.

Fair Value of Long-Term Debt

The net book-value of the Company's outstanding first mortgage notes was $2.2 billion at both
December 31, 2011 and 2010, The estimated fair value of the Company’s outstanding first mort-
gage notes, based on quoted market prices, was approximately $2.4 billion and $2.3 billion as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The net book value of the Company's other debt
instruments was $1.1 billion and $1.1 billion as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
The estimated fair value of the Company's other debt instruments was approximately $1 billion and
$1.1 billion as of December 31, 201t and 2010.

Scheduled Maturities of Long-Term Debt

Scheduled maturities of long-term debt, including the aceretion of debt discounts of $10.4 million,
are-as follows {amounts in thousands):

Years Ending December 31,

2012 $ 407,934
2013 175,449
2014 189,350
2015 253,223
2016 1,400
Thereafter 2,200,710

$3,228,086
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9. Interest Rate Swaps

The Company has entered into floating-for- flxed interest rate swap arrangements in order to
manage interest rate risk relating to certain of its debt facilities. These interest rate swap agree-
ments modify the Company's exposure to interest rate risk by converting a portion of the
Company's floating-rate-debs to a fixed rate. These interest rate swaps essentially fix the interest
rate at the percentages noted below; however, changes in the fair value-of the interést rate swaps
for each reporting period have been recorded in the increase/decrease in swap fair value in the
accompanying Consolidated Statéments of Income, as the interest fate swaps do not qualify for
hedge accounting.

The following table presents the historical fair value of the interest rate swaps recorded in the

accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as of Decembér 31, 2011 and 2010. The Company
utilized Level 2.inputs as.described in Note: 2 to determine fair value. The fair value approximates
the amount the Company would ‘pay if these coniracts were settled at the respective valuation
dates. Fair value is estimated based upon current, and predictions. of future, interest.rate levels
along a yield curve, the remaining duration of the instruments:and other market conditions, and
therefore is subject-to significant estimation and a high degree of variability and fluctuation
between periods. The fair value is adjusted, to reflect the impact of credit ratings. of the counter-
parties or the:Company, as applicable. These adjustments resulted in a reduction in the fair values
as compared to their seftlement values. As of December 31, 2011, the interest rate swap liabilities
are included in other current accrued liabilities. As of December 31, 2010; $5.9 million of the inter-
est rate swap liabilities afe included in‘other current accrued liabilities and $15.6 million are included
in other long-term. liabilities.

Total Interest

{amounis in thousands) Wynn Las Vegas  Wynn Macau  Rate Swaps
Liability Fair Value

December 31, 2011 $4,628 $ 2,670 $ 7.298
December 31, 2010 $8,457 $12,992 $21,449

Wynn Las Vegas Swap. As of December 31, 2011, the Company has-one interest rate swap agree-

;ment to hedge a portion of the underlymg interest rate risk on borrowings under the Wynn Las

Vegas Credit Facilities. Undér this: swap’ agreement; beginning November 27, 2009, the Company

‘pays @ fixed interest rate of 2.485% on. borrowmgs of $250 million incurred under the Wynn Las

Vegas Credit Facilities in exchange for receipts on the same:amount at a variable interest rate
based on the applicable LIBOR at-the.time of payment. As of December 31, 2011, this interest rate

swap fixes the interest rate on such borrowings at 5.485%. This interest rate swap agreement

matures in November 2012,
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Wynn Macau Swaps. As'of December-31, 2011, the Company has one interest rate swap.agreement
to hedge a portion of the underlying interest rate risk- on borrowings under the Wynn Macau
Credit Facilities. Under this swap. agreement, the Company pays a fixed interest rate of 2.15% on
borrowirigs of HK$2.3 billion (approximately US$300 million) incurred under the Wynn Macau
Credit Facilities in exchange for receipts on the same amount at a'variable interest rate based on
the applicable: HIBOR at the time of payment. As of December 31, 2011, this interest rate swap
fixes the interest rate on such borrowings at 3.4%. This interest rate swap agreement matures in
June 2012,

In August 2011, two.of the Company’s interest rate swap agreements_expired. Under the first swap
agreement, the Company paid a fixed interest rate of 3:632% oh U.S. dollar borrowings of $153.8
million incurred under the Wynn Macau Credit Facilities in exchange for receipts on the same
amount at a variable interest rate based on the applicable LIBOR at the time of payment. Under
the second swap agreement, the.Company paid a fixed interest rate of-3.39% on Hong Kong dollar
borrowings of HK$991.6 million (approximately U5$127.9 million} incurred under the Wynn Macau
Credit Facilities in exchange for receipt on'the same amount at a variable interest rate based on
the applicable HIBOR at the time of payment. Until they expired in August 2011, these interest rate
swaps fixed the interest rates on the U.S. dollar and the Hong Kong dollar borrowmgs under the
Wynn Macau Credit Facilities at 4.88%-5.38% and 4.64%, respectively.

10. Related Party Transactions

Amounts Due to Officers. The Company periodically provides services .to Stephen A. Wynn,
Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer (“Mr. Wynn"), and certain other
officers and directors of the Corripany, including the personal use:of employees, construction work
and other personal services. Mr. Wynn and other officers and directors have deposits with the
Company to-prepay any such items, which are replenished on an-ongoing basis as needed. As of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, Mr. Wynn and the other officers and directors had a net deposit
balance with the Company of $0.4 million and $0.3 million, respectively.

Villa Suite Lease..On March 18,2010, Mr: Wynn and Wynn Las Vegas entered into an Amended
‘and Restated Agreement of Lease (the ‘'SW Lease”) for a-villa.suite to serve as Mr. Wynn's personal
,re5|dence The SW Lease amends and restates a prior lease. The SW Lease was approved by the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company. The term of the SW Lease com-
_menced as of March 1, 2010 and runs concurrent with Mr. Wynn's employment agreement with the
Company; provided that either party' may terminate on 90 days notice. Pursuant to the SW Lease,
the rental value of the villa suite will be treated as imputed income to Mr. Wynn, and will be equal
‘to the fair market value of the accommodations provided. Effective March 1, 2010, and for the first
-two years of the term of the SW Lease, the rental value will be $503,831 per year. Eifective March 1,
2012, the rental value will be $440,000 per year based on the current fair market value as estab-
lished by the Audit Committee.of the Company with the assistance of an independent third-party
appraisal. The rental value for the villa suite will be re-determined every two years during the term
of the lease by the Audit Committee, with the assistance of an independent third-party appraisal.
Certain services for, and maintenance of, the villa suite are included in the rental.
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On March 17, 2010, Elaine P. Wynn, a director of Wynn Resorts, and Wynn Las Vegas entered into
an Agreement of Lease {the "EW Lease") forthe lease of a'villa suite as Elaine P. Wynn's personal
residence. The EW Lease was approved by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Pursuant to the terms of the EW Lease, Elaine P. Wynn paid annual rent equal to
$350,000, which amount was determined by the Audit Committee with. the assistance of a third-
party appraisal. Certain services for, and maintenance of, the villa suite were included in the rental.
The EW Lease superseded the‘terms of a prior agreement. The term of the EW lease commenced
as of March 1, 2010 and was scheduled to terminate on December 31, 2010. The lease was extended
on a month-to-month basis after December 31, 2010 until termmated effective March 31, 2011.

Home Purchase. In May 2010, the Company. entered into.an employment-agreement with. Linda
Chen, who is also a director of Wynn Resorts. The term of the employment agreement is through
February 24, 2020. Under the terms of the employment agreement,. the Company purchased a
home in Macau for-use by Ms. Chen for$5.4 million,-and as of December 31, 2011, has expended
$2.1 millioh to;renovate the home. The new-employment-agreement also:prowdes Ms. Chen the
use of an automobile in Macau. Upon the occurrence of certain events set forth below, Ms. Chen
has the option to purchase the hotne at the*then fair market value of the home {as determined by
an independent appraiser) less a discount equal to'ten percentage points multiplied by each anni-
versary of the term of the agreement that has occurred (the “Discount Percentage”). The.option is
exercisable for (a) no consideration at the end of the term, b} $1.00 in the event of termination of
Ms. Chen's employment without “cause” or:termination of Ms. Chen's employment for "good rea-
son” following:a “change.of control” and (c) at a price based on the applicable Discount Percentage
in the event Ms. Chen terminates the agreement'due to material breach by the Company. Upon
Ms. Chen’s termination for “cause,” Ms. Chen will be. deemed to have elected to purchase the
Macau home Based on the applicable Discount Percentage unless the Company determines to not
require Ms..Chen to’puschase the home: If Ms. Chen's:employment terminates for any other reason
before the expiration of the term (e g. because of her death or disability or due to revocation of
gammg license), the-option will terminate.

The “Wynn” Surname Rights Agreement..On August 6, 2004, the Company entered intc agree-
ments with Mr. Wynn that confirm and clarify the Company’s rights to use the “Wynn" name and
Mr. Wynn's persona in connection with its casino resorts. Under the parties’ Surname Rights
Agreement, Mr. Wynn granted the Company an exclusive, fully paid-up, perpetual, worldwide
license to use, and to own and register trademarks and service marks incorporating the “Wynn"
name for casino resorts and related businesses, together with the right to sublicense the name and
marks to its affiliates. Under the parties’ ‘Righ’ts of Publicity License, Mr. Wynn granted the Company
the exclusive, royalty-free, worldwide right to use his full name, persona and related rights of pub-
licity for casino resorts and related buginesses, together with the ability to sublicense the persona
and publicity rights to its affiliates, until October.24, 2017,
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1:1. Property Charges and Other
Property charges and other consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Net loss on assets abandoned/retired for remodel or sold % 19,708 $10,270 $21,69%6
Donation to University of Macau Foundation 109,563 — —
Loss on contract termination — 14,949 6,762

Loss on-show cancellation 1,378 — —
' $130,649 $25219 $28,458

Property charges and other generally include costs related to the retirement of assets for remodels
and asset abandonments. Property charges and other for the year ended December 31, 2011
include the present value of a charitable contribution made by Wynn Macau to the Umversﬁy of
Macau Development Foundation. This contribution consists of a $25 million payment made in May
2011, and a. commitment for additional donations of $10 million each year for the calendar years
2012 through 2022 inclusive, for a total of $135 million. The amount reflected in the accompanying
Consolidlated Statements of Income-has been discounted using the Company's estimated borrow-
mg rate over the time period of the remaining committed paymenits. In accordance with account-
ing standards for contributions, ‘subsequent accretion of 'the discount is being recorded as
additional donation expense and included in Property charges and other. Also included are the
write-off of certain off-site golf memberships by Wynn Las Vegas, miscellaneous renovations and
abandonments at.the Company's resorts, including modifications of the Encore at Wynn Las Vegas
retail esplanade, ciosure of the Blush Nightclub and the write-off of certain costs related to a show
that ended its run in Las Vegas-in April 2011.

Property charges and other for the year ended December 31, 2010 include a contract termination
payment of $14.9 million related to a management ¢ontract for certain of the nightclubs at Wynn
Las Vegas as well as miscellaneous renovations,;abandonments and gain/loss on sale of equipment
at Wynn Las Vegas and Wynn Macau.

Property charges and other for the year ended December 31, 2009 include a $16.7 million charge
for the abandonment of the front“porté-cdchere at:Encore at-Wynn Las Vegas to-make way for an
addition at that property,.a $6.8 million charge for the write-off of two aircraft deposits, and a $5
million charge related to'miscellaneous remodels, abandonments and loss on sale of equipment.
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12. Stockholders’ Equity

Common Stock. The Company is authorized to issue up to 400,000,000 shares of its common
stock, $0.01 par value per share (the ’ ‘Gommion Stock”). As. of December 31, 2011 and 2010,
125,080,998 shares and 124,599,508 shares, respectively, of the Company’s Comrnon Stock were
outstanding. Except as otherwise provided by the Company's afticles of incorporation or Nevada
law, each holder of the Common Stock is entitled to one vote for eachishare held of record on each
matter submitted to a voie of stockholders, Holders of the Common Stock have no cumulative vot-
ing, conversion, redemption or preemptive rights or other rights to subscribe for additional shares.
Subject to any preferences that may be granted to the holders.of the Company’s preferred stock,
each holder of Common Stock is entitled to receive ratably such dividends as may be declared. by
the Board of Directors out of funds legally-available therefore, as well as any distributions to the
stockholders and, in the event of liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Company, is entitled
to share ratably in all assets of the Company remaining after payment of liabilities.

The Board of Directors of Wyhn Resorts has authorized an equity repiirchase program of up to $1.7
billion. The repurchase program may include repurchases from time to time through open market
purchases or negotiated transactions, de_penwding upon market conditions. During 2011, the
Company repurchased a total of 51,136 shares insatisfaction of tax withhelding obligations on
vested restricted stock. No repurchases were made during the years ended December 31, 2010 or
2009. As of December 31, 2011, the Company had repurchased a cumulative total of 12,856,090
shares of the Company's Commbon Stock for a net cost of $1.1 billion. under the program.

Preferred Stock. The Company is authorized to issue up, to 40,000,000 shares of undesignated
preferred stock, $0.01 par value per share (the “Préeferred Stock”). As of Deceriber 31, 2011, the
Company had-notissued any Preferred Stock.. The Board of Directors, without further action by the
holders of Common Stock, may desrgnate and issue shares of Preferred Stock in one or more series
and may fix or alter the rights, prefeiences, privileges and restrictions, including the voting. rights,
redemption provisions {including sinking fund. provisions), dividend rights, dividend rates, liquida-
tion rates, liquidation preferences, conversion rights and the description and number of shares
constituting any wholly unissued series,of Preferred.Stock. The issuance of-such shares of Preferred
Stock could adversely affect the rights of the holders of Common Stock. The issuance of shares of
Preferred Stock under certain circumstancés could'also have the effect of delaying or preventing a
change of control of the Company or other-corporate action.

Redemption of Securities. The Company’s articles of incorporation provide that, to the extent
required by the gaming authority making the determination of unsuitability or to the extent the
‘Board of Directors determines, in its sole discretion, that a'person is likely to jeopardize the
Company's or any affiliate’s application for, receipt of, approval for, right to the use of, or entitle-
‘ment-to, afy gaming license, shares of Wynn Resorts’ capital stock that are owned or controlled by
an unsuitable-person or its affiliates are subject to redemption by Wynn Resorts. The redemption
price will be the amount, if any, required by the gaming authority or, if the gamingauthority does
not determine the price, the sum deemed.by thz Board of Directors to be the fair value of the securi-
ties to be redeemed. If the Company determines the redemption price, the redemption price will
be capped at the closing price of the shares on the principal national securities exchange ‘on which

72

Wynn Resorts, Limited / Wynn PA, Inc. — November 2012




WynwnN RESORrRTS, LIMITED

the shares are listed on the trading day before the redemption notice is given. If the shares are not
listed on a national securities exchange, the.redemption' price will be capped at the closing sale
price of the shares as quoted on The NASDAQ Global Select Market-or if the closing price is not
reported, the mean between the bid and ask prices, as quoted by any other generally recognized
reporting system. The Company’s right of redemptlon is hot exclusive of any other rights that it
may have or later acquire under any agreement, its bylaws or otherwise. The redemption price may
be paid in cash, by promissory note, or both, as-required,-and pursuant to the terms established by
the applicable gaming authority and, if not, as the Board of Directors of the Company elects.

13. Noncontrolling Interest

In October 2009, Wynn Macau, Limited, an indirect’ wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
the developer, owner and operator of Wynn Macau, listed its ordinary shares of common stock on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Through an initial public offering, including the over
allotment, Wynn Macau, Limited sold 1,437,500,000 shares. (27.7%) of this subsidiary's common
stock (the “Wynn Macau, Limited [PO”). Proceeds to the Company as a result of this transaction
were approximately $1.8 billion, net of transaction costs of approximately $84 million. The shares
of Wynn Macau, Limited were not and will not be registered under the Securities Act and may not
be offered or-sold in the United States absent a registration under the Securities Act, or-an appli-
cable exception from such registration requirements. In connection with this transaction, in
October 2009, the Company recorded $107.4 million of noncontrolling interest as a separate com-
ponent of equity in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets and has followed accounting
standards far noncontrolling interest in the consolidated financial statements beginning in October
2009. Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest was $211.7 million, $156.5 million and
$18.5 miiilion for the years ended December, 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respeciively.

On November 16, 2011, the Wynn Macau, Limited Board of Directors approved a HK$1.20 per share
dividend. The total dividend amount was approximately $800 million and the Company's share of
this dividend was $578.3 million. A reduction of $221.6 million was made to noncontrolling interest
in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheéts to reflect the payment of this dividend.

On November 2, 2010, the Wynn Macau, Limited Board of Directors approved a HK$0.76 per share
dividend. The total dividend amount was approximately $508 million and the Company's share of
this dividend was $367 million. A reduction of $140.7 million was made to noncontrolling interest in
the accompanying-Consolidated Balance Sheets to reflect the payment of this dividend.

14. Benefit Plans

Employee Savings Plan. The Company established a retirement savings plan under Section.401(k)
of the Internal Revenue Code.covering its U.S. non-union employees in July 2000. The plan allows
.employees to defer, within prescribed limits, a percentage of their income on a pre-tax basis
‘through contributions to this plan. Prior-to March 16, 2009, the Company matched the contribu-
‘tions, within: prescribed limits, with an amount equal to 100%. of the participant's initial 2%
tax deferred contribution and 50% of the tax deferred contribution between 2% and 4% of the
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participant’s compensation. Effective March 16, 2009, the Company suspended matching
contributions to this:;plan. The Company recorded an expenise for matching contributions of $0, $0
and $1.4 million for the years,ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Wynn Macau also operates a defined contribution retirement benefits plan {the "Wynn Macau
Plan”)..Eligible employees are allowed to contribute 5% of their salary to the Wynn Macau Plan and
the Company matches any contributions. The assets of the Wynn Macau Plan are held separately
from those of the' Company in an independently administered fund. The Company’s matching con-
tributions vest to the-employee at 10% per year with full vesting in‘ten years. Forfeitures of unvested
contributions are used to reduce the Company’s liability for its contributions payable. For the
period from March 1, 2009 through April 30, 2010, the Company suspended its matching. contribu-
tions. The contributions were reinstated effective May 1, 2010. During the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company recorded'an expense for matching .contributions of $6.6 million,
$3.3 million and $0.5 million; respectively.

Multi-Employer Pension Plan. Wynn Las Vegas contributes to a multi-employer defined benefit
pension plan for certain of its union employees under the terms of the Southern Nevada Culinary
and Bartenders Union collective-bargaining agreement. The collective-bargaining agreement that
covers these union-represented employees expires in 2016. The legal name of the muilti- employer
pension plan is the Southern Nevada Culinary’ and Bartenders Pension Pian (the “Plan”)
(EIN: 88-6016617 Plan Number: 001). The Company.recorded an expense of $7.6-million, $6.8 mil-
lion-and $6.2 million for contributions to the Plan for.the years.ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively. For the.2010 plan year, the most recent for which plan data is available, the
Company s contributions were identified by the Plan to exceed 5% of total contributions for that
year. Based on inforfation the Company-received from the Plan, it was certified to be in neither
endangered nor critical status for the:2010 plan year: Risks of participating in a multi-employer plan
differs: from single-employer plans for the following reasons: (1) assets contributed to a multi-
employer plan by one employer may be used to provide benefits to employees of othér participat-
ing employers; (2) if a participating employer stops, contributing to the plan, the unfunded
obligations of the plan may be borne by-the'remaining participating employers; and (3}if a partici-
pating employer stops participating, it may be required to pay those plans an amount based on
the underfunded status of the plan, referred to as a withdrawal liability.

Stock-Based Compensation. The.Company.established the 2002 Stock Incentive Plan (the "WRL
Stock Plan”) 1o provide for the grant of (i} incentive stock options, (i) compensatory (i.e., nonquali-
fled) stock options, and (iii) nonvested shares of Common Stock of Wynn Resorts Limited.
Employees, directors (whether employee“or nonemployee) and independent contractors or consul-
tants of the Company are eligible to participate, in the WRL Stock Plan. However, only employees
of the Company are eligible to receive incentive stock options.
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A;maximum of 12,750,000 shares.of Common Stock are reserved for issuance under the WRL Stock
Plan. As of December 31, 2011, 4,098,336 shares remain available for the grant-of stock options or
nonvested shares of Common Stock.

Options are granted at the current market price at the date of grant. The WRL Stock Plan provides
for a variety of vesting schedules all deterimined at the time of grant. All options expire ten years
from the date of grant.

A summary of option activity under the WRL.Stock Plan as of December 31, 2011, and the changes
during the year then ended is presented below:

Woeighted Weighted
Average Average Aggregate
Exercise Remaining intrinsic
_ Options Price Contractual Term Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2011 3,252,708 $§ 61.97
Granted 25,200 $140.54
Exercised {431,126) $ 55.18
. Canceled/Expired (117.658) § 48.52
Qutstanding-at December 31, 2011 2,729,124 § 43.49 6.8 $129,304,063
Fully vested and expected to vest at .
+ Decernber 31, 2011 2485576 % 63.02 6.7 $120,165,961
Exercisable at December 31,2011 376,924 $ 51.75 4.0 $ 22,419,903

The following information is provided for stock options of the WRL Stock Plan (amounts in thousands,
except weighted average grant daté fair value):

Years Ended December 21,

2011 2010 2009
Weighted:average,grant date fair value $ 4831 %4032 § 28.25
Intrinsic value of stock options exercised $36,776 $63,095 $ 8,249
Net cash proceeds from thelexercise of stock options $23,789 366,186 § 6,347
Tax benefits realized from the exercise.of stock-options and
vesting of restricted stock . 311,176  $10,480 $49,013 -

As of December 31, 2011, there was a total of $55.7 million of unamortized compensation related
to stock options, which is expectedto be recognized over the vesting period of the related grants
through May 2019.
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A summary of the-status of the WRL Stock.Plan’s nonvested shares as of December 31, 2011 and
changes during the year then ended is presented below:

Weighted Average
Shares Grant Date Fair Value

Nonvested at January 1, 2011 861,000 $ 88.75
Granted 101,500 129.55
Vested (168,000) 69.28
Nonvested at December 31, 201 794,500 % 98.08

The following information is provided for nonvested stock of the WRL Stock Plan (amounts in
thousands, except weighted average grant date fair value):

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Weighted average grant date fair value $129.55 %10703 $ —
Fair value of shares vested $24,865 § 2833 $1,685

Approximately $38.6 million of unamortized compensation cost relating to nonvested shares of
Common Stock-at.December 31, 2011 will be recognized as compensation over the vesting period
of the related grants through October 2021.

Wynn Macau, Limited Stock Incentive Plan. The Company’s majority-owned subsidiary Wynn
Macau, Limited adopted a stock incentive plan effective September 16, 2009 (the “WML Stock
Plan"). The purpose of the WML Stock Plan is'to reward participants, which may include directors
and employees of Wynn Macau, Limited who have contributed towards enhancing the value of
Wynn Macau and its shares. A maximum of 518.75:million shares have been reserved for issuance
under the WML Stock Plan. As of December 31, 2011, 1.4 million options have been granted.

- A summary of option activity under the WML Stock Plan as of December 31, 2011, and the changes
during the year then ended is presented below:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average Aggregate
Exercise Remaining Intrinsic
Options: Price Contractual Term Value
Outstanding at January 1, 2013 1,000,000 $1.41
Granted 400,000 $3.34
Exercised (50,000  $1.41
Qutstanding at December 31, 2011 1,350,000 $1.98 8.6 $1,046,374
Fully vested and expected to vest at
December 31, 2011 1,350,000 $1.98 8.6 $1,046,374
-Exercisable at December 31, 2011 150,000 $1.41 8.3 $ 165,217
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The following information is provided for stock options of the WML Stock Plan {amounts in
thousands, except weighted average grant date fair value):

Years Ended
Oecember 31,

_ 2011 2010
Weighted average grant date fair value $0.75 $0.60
Intrinsic value of stock options exercised $99.2 5 —
Net cash proceeds from the exercise of stock options $702 § —

As of December 31, 2011, there was a total of $0.7 million of unamortized compensation refated to
stock options, which is expected to be recognized over the vesting period of the related grants
through May 2016.

Compensation Cost. The Company uses the Black-Scholes valuation model to determine the esti-
mated fair value for each option grant issued, with highly subjective assumptions, changes in which
could materially affect the estimated fair value. Expected volatility is based on implied and histori-
cal factors related to the Company's Common Stock. Expected term represents the weighted aver-
age time between the optlon s grant date and its exercise date. The risk-free interest rate used for
eéach period presented is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve for WRL Stock Plan options or the
Hong Kong Exchange Fund rates for the WML Stock Plan options at the time of grant for the
period equal to the expected term.

The fair value of stock options granted under the WRL Stock' Plan was estimated on the date of
grant using the following weighted average assumptions:

Years Ended December 31,
; : 2011 2010 2009
Expected dividend yield 40% 1.23% 0.12%

Expected stock'price volatility 49.7%  60.9%  54.6%
Risk-free interest rate 2.4% 3.1% 2.7%
Expected average life of options (years) 6.5 6.9 7.6

The fair value of stock options granted under the WML Stock .Plan was estimated on the date of
grant using the following assumptions:

Years Ended
December 31,

2011 2010
Expected dividend yield 4.0% —
Expected stock price volatility 37.8% 40.8%
Risk-free interest rate 21% 2.4%
{Expected average life of options (years) 6.5 6.5

77

W_ynn Resorts, Limited / Wynn PA, Inc. — November 2012




2011

ANNUAL REPORT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The total compensation cost for both the WRL Stock Plan and the WML Stock Plan is allocated as

follows (amounts in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

201 2010 2009 _
Casino $ 8,997 310497 $ 8740
Rooms 383 455 460
Food and beverage 429 301 305
Entertainment, retail and other 24 87 19
General and administrative 14,048 15,828 14,812
Total stock-based compensation expense 23,881 27,168 24336
_Total stock-based compensation capitalized 886 617 585
Total stock-based compensation costs $24,767 $27,785 $24,921

15. Income Taxes

Consolidated income {loss) before taxes for domestic and foreign operations consisted of the

following {amounts in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Domestic $ 49,521 $(239,125) $(229,861)
Foreign 756,046 576,168 271,967
Total $805,567 $337,043 $ 42,106

The Company's benefit {provision) for income taxes consisted 'of the {ollowing {amounts in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Current
Federal S — % — % =
Foreign 3,386 (1,560} (3.,679)
' 3,386 (1,5600 (3,679)
Deferred
Federal 10,809 (9,640) (2,090)
Foreign 5,351 (9,247) 2,770
16,160  (18,887) 680
Total $19,546  $(20,447) '$(2,999)
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The tax effects of significant temporary differences representing net deferred tax assets and
liabilities consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):

As of December 31,

2011 2010
Deferred Tax Assets—U.S.:
Current:
Receivables, inventories, accrued liabilities and other $ 36753 % 34,384
Less: valuation allowance {33,525) (30,430
3,228 3,954
Long-term:
Foreign tax credit carryforwards 1,848,185 1,306,965
Intangibles and related other 31,215 29,069
Stock-based compensation 17,001 16,275
Pre-opening casts 16,671 18,758
Syndication costs 3,780. 3,780
Other credit carryforwards 3,458 3,930
Interest rate swap valuation adjustment 1,620 2,960
Other 615 494
1,922,545 1,382,231
Less: valuation allowance (1,753,667) (1,223,288)
168,878 158,943
Deferred Tax Liabilities—U.5.:
Current:
Prepaidiinsurance, maintenance and taxes’ (6,803) (6,928)
(6,803) (6,928)
Long-term:
Property and equipment , (223,172) {235,824)

(223,172) (235,824)

Deferred Tax Assets—Foreign:
Long-term:

Net.operating loss carryforwards 17,593 24,791
Property equipment and other 5,345 5,819
Accrued charitable contribution 2,222 —
Pre-opening costs-and other 130 1,588
Less: valuation-allowance. ) _ ) (25,290) (32,198)
,Net deferred tax liability ' $ (57,869) $ (79,859
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The income tax (benefit) provision differs from that computed at the federal statutory corporate
tax rate as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

201 2010 2009
Federal statutory rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Foreign tax rate differential {21.3)% (38.8)% {133.3)%
Cther items, net:
Fareign tax credits, net of valuation allowance (80.8% {104.9)% 77.0%
Repatriation of foreign earnings 76.3% 134.9% 113.8%
Excess executive compensation 0.4% 0.7% 5.4%
Non-taxable foreign income (13.0)% (24.8)% (108.6)%
Non-deductible foreign property charges — — 2.4%
General business credits (0.1)% {0.4)% {2.8)%
Other, net 0.1% 1:4% 2.6%
Valuation. allowance, other 1.0% 3.0% 15.6%
. Effective tax rate {2.4)% 6.1% 7.4%

The Company has no U.S. tax loss carryforwards. The Company incurred foreign tax losses
of $73.7 million,:$89.4 million and $74.2 million during the: tax‘years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively. These foreign tax loss carryforwards expire in 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The Company has recorded a valuation allowance against these tax loss carryfor-
wards. The Company incurred a capital loss of $3.6 million during the year ended December 31,
2011. The capital loss carryforward will expire in'2016. The Company recorded tax benefits resulting
from the exercise of nonqualified stock options’and the value of vested restricted stock and-accrued
dividends. of $11.2 mjllion, $10.5 million and $49 million-as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, in excess of the amounts reported for:such iterns as compensation costs under account-
ing standards related to stock-based compensation. The Company uses a ‘with-and-without
approach to determine if the excess fax-deductions associated with compensation costs have
reduced income taxes payable.

Accounting standards require recognition of-a'future tax benefit to the extent that realization of
such benefit’is moré likely than not. Otherwise,.a valuation allowance is applied: During 2011 and
2010, the aggregate valuation allowance for deferred tax assets increased by $526.6 million and
$574.2 million, respectively. The 2011 and 2010 increases are prlmanly related to foreign tax credit
carryforwards that are not considered more: likely than not realizable. As discussed in the succeed-

ing paragraph, the Company does not-consider forecasted future operating results when schedul-
ing the realization of-deferred tax assets and the required valuation allowance but instead relies
solely on the reversal of net taxable temporary differences. The ultimate realization of the
,Company's recorded foreign tax credit deferred tax asset is dependent upon the incurrence of suf-
ficient U.S. income tax liabilities attributable to foreign source income during the 10-year foreign
tax credit carryover period.
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The Macau special gaming tax is 35% of gross gaming revenue. The IRS only allows a credit for
35% of “net” foreign source income. In February 2010, the-Company and the IRS entered into a
Pre:Filing Agreement ("PFA") providing that the Macau Special Gaming Tax qualifies as a tax paid
in lieu of an income tax and could be.claimed as-a U.S. foreign tax credit. The valuation allowance
for foreign tax credits was determined in accordance with accounting standards by scheduling the
existing U.5. "net” taxable temporary differences that are expected to reverse during the 10-year
foreign tax credit carryover'pefiod. The U.S. income tax rules-applicable to foreign tax credit utili-
zation are applied to the scheduling results in order to determine the amount of foreign tax credit
expected to be utilized in the future.

During the.years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company recognized tax benefits
of $647.6 million, $955.2 million and $125.3 million, respectively (net of valuation allowance and
uncertain tax positions), for foreign tax credits applicable to the eamings of Wynn Macau S.A.

A significant portion’of these credits result from the treatment of the' Macau Special Gaming Tax as
a U.S. foreign tax credit: Of the $647.6 million, $955.2 million and. $125.3 million, $640.8 million,

$949.5 million and $121.5 million were used to offset 2011, 2010 and 2009 U.S. income tax expense
incurred as a result of the repatriation of Wynn Macau S:A. earnings and in 2010 and 2009 the
Wynn Macau, Limited IPO proceeds. The remaining $6:8 million, $5:8 million and $3.8 million {net
of valuation allowance ‘and uncertain .tax-positioris)‘were recorded as a deferred tax asset. Of the
Company’s $1,848 million of foreign tax credit carryforwards (net of uncertain tax positions) as’
of December 31, 2011, $665.7 million will expire in 2018, $110.9 milion will expire in 2019, $530.4
million in 2020, and $541.3 million in 2021.

Of the December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 U.S. valuation allowances of $1,787 million, $1,254 mil-
lion and $694.5 million, respectnvely, $1,777 million, $1,246 mI”IOI"l and $689.4 million, respectively,
relate to U.S. foreign tax credits expected to expire unutilized, $1.3 million, $1.3 million and $0
fepresent stock-based compensation:for foreign-based services that may be nondeductible, $3.4
million, $2.7 million and $1.3 million represent stock-based compensation that may be nondeduct-
ible under IRC §162(m), and $3.8 million is. attributable to syndication costs. During the year ended
December 31, 2011, the Company recorded:a valuation allowance-of $1.3 million attributable to a
capital loss carryforward. Subsequent recognition of-income tax benefits associated with syndication
costs will be allocated to additional paid-in capital..

Except for $51 million of accumulated earnings which the Company plans on repatriating, the

-Company has not provided deferred U.S..income taxes or foreign withholdings taxes on temporary

differences of $300.6 million and'$325.1 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectlvely,
which are indefinitely reinvested and will be used to fund future operations or expansion. The
amount of the unrecognized deferred tax Ilablhty without regard to ‘potential foreign tax credits

associated with these témporary differences is-approximately $105.2 million and $113.8 million for
the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. Deférred income taxes are prowded for foreign

earnings planned for repatriation. In connection with the Wynn Macau, Limited PO in 2009 {Note

13), the Company recorded a deferred tax liability net of expected foreign tax credits of $56.1 mil-

lion to the extent that the book basis of ‘the investment exceeded the tax basis and where that
difference was expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. The deferred tax liability was recorded
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as a reduction in additional paid-in capital. In 2009, the Company repatriated $400 million from the
Wynn Macau, Limited 1PO proceeds leaving a deferred tax liability'net of-expected foreign tax cred-
its of $41.5 million as of December31, 2009. During 2010, the Company repatriated an additional
$1,143 million of Wynn Macau,. lelted IPO proceeds resulting in the reversal of the $41.5 miilion
deferred tax liability. In 2011, the Company repatriated $578.2 million from Wynn Macau, Limited.
The amounts repatriated during 2011,.2010 and 2009 were used to fund domestic operations, to
provide additional U.S. liquidity, and to fund dividends to the Cémpany’s shareholders.

Effective September 6, 2006, Wynn Macau, S.A. received a 5-year exemption from Macau’s 12%
Complementary Tax on casino gaming profits. On November 30, 2010, an additional '5-year
Complementary Tax.exemption was approved, thereby exempting the casino gaming profits of
Wynn Macau S.A. through December 31, 2015. Accordingly, the Company was exempted from the
payment of $82.7 million, $64.4 million and $31.7 million in such taxes for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The Company's non-garming profits remain sub-
ject to the Macau Complementary Tax and its casino winnings remain subject to the Macau Special
Gaming tax and other levies inaccordance with its.concession agreement.

In June 2009, Wynn Macau, S.A. entered into an-agreement with the'Macau Special Administrative
Region that provides for an annual payment-of MOP $7.2 million (approximately $900,000 U.S. dol-
fars) to the Macau Special. Administrative Region as Complementary Tax otherwise due by share-
holders of Wynn Macau S.A. on dividend distributions. This agreement was retroactive to 2006.
Therefore, included in the tax provision for the year ended December 31, 2009, are the amounts
, related to the years 2006 through 2009 totaling $3.6 million. This-agreement on dividends is effec-
tive through 2010. On July-19, 2017, Wynn Macau,.S.A. received notification that a S-year extension
of this agreement had been ratified and that.an annual payment of MOP $15.5 million (approximately
$1.9 million U.S. dollars) would be due to the Macau Special Administrative Region for each of the
years 2011 through 2015. As a result of the shareholder dividend tax agreements, income taxes
payable includes $1.9 and $0.9 million accrued for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Effectwe January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the accounting standards related to accounting
for uncertain-tax positions. This standard requires that tax positions be assessed using a two-step
process. A tax position is recognized if it meets.a “more likely than not” threshold, and is mea-
sured at the largest amount of benefit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized.
Uncertain tax positions must;be reviewed at each balarice sheet date. Liabilities recorded as a
result of this analysis must generally be recorded separately from any current or deferred income
‘tax accounts.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecogr;ized tax benefits is as follows
(amounts in thousands):

As of
December 31,
2011 2010
Balance-—-beginning of year $ 83,834  $148,365
Additions based on Lax positions of the current year 12,427 13,164
Additions based on tax positions of prior years — 694
Reductions for tax positions of prior years — —
Settiements — (78,389)
Lapses in statutes of limitations (10,763) —
Balance--~end of year : % 85498 $ 83,834

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company has recorded a liability related to uncertain tax
positions of $25.1 million and $35.9 million, respectively. These amounts are included in Other
Long-Term Liabilities in the accompanying Consclidated Balance Sheets. As of December 31, 2011
a{nd 2010, $60.4 million and $48 million, respectively, of liabilities related to U.S. and foreign uncer-
tain tax positions that increase the NOL and foreign tax credit carryforward deferred tax assets are
classified as reductions of the NOL and foreign tax credit carryforward deferred tax assets in the
net deferred tax asset and liability table above. Other uncertain tax positions not increasing the
NOL and foreign tax credit carryforward deferred tax assets have been recorded as increases in
the liability for uncertain tax positions.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, $24.2 million and $17.9 million, respectively, of unrecognized
tax benefit wodld, if recognized, |mpact the effective. tax rate. The Company recognizes penalties
and interest related to urirecognized tax-benefits in‘the provision for income-taxes. During-the year
ended December 31, 2011, the Company recognized interest and penalties of $0.04 million.
The Company recognized no interest or penalties during the years ended December 31, 2010
and 2009.

The Company anticipates that the 2007 statute of limitations will expire in the next 12 months for
certain foreign tax jurisdictions. Also, the Company's unrecognized tax benefits include certain
incomé tax accounting methods. These accounting methods govern the timing-and deductibility
of income tax deductions. As a result, the. Company's unrecognized tax beneﬁts could decrease by
a range of $0 to $0.5 million over the next.12 months.
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The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, various states and foreign
jurisdictions. The Company’s income tax-returns are subject to examination by the IRS and other
tax authorities in the locations where it operates. As of Decéember 31,2011, the Company has filed
domestic income tax returns for thé years 2002 to 2010 and foreign incorne tax returns for 2002 to
2010. The Company's 2002 to 2005 domestic.income tax returns remain subject to examination by
the IRS to the extent of tax attributes carryforwards to future years. The Company’s-2006.to 2010
domestic income tax returns also remain subject to examination by. the IRS. The Company's 2007
to 2010 Macau income tax returns remain subject to examination by the Macau Finance Bureau.

During 2010, the Company reached an:agreement with the Appellate division of the IRS regarding
issues raised during the examination of its 2004 and 2005 income tax returns. The issues for con-
sideration by the Appelfate division were temporary differences and related to the deduction of
certain costs incurred during the development and construction of Wynn Las Vegas and the appro-
priate.tax depreciation recovery periods applicable to certain-assets. As a result of this settlement
with the Appellate division, the Cogmpany reduced its unrecognized tax benefits by $78.4 million.
This rediction in unrecognized tax benefits resulted in a decrease in the Company's liability for
uncertain tax positions of $55 mllhon The settlement of the 2004 and 2005 examination issues did
not result in a cash tax payment but rather utilized $88.5 million-and $2.5 million.in foreign tax
credit and general business credit carryforwards.

During 2010; the Company received the results of an IRS. examination of its 2006 through 2008
U.S. income tax returns and fi1ed its appeal of the examination’s findings with the Appellate divi-
tations for its 2006 and 2007 tax returns to December 31, 2012. The Company believes that it will
hkely reach an agreement with the IRS with respect to the examination of its. 2006, 2007 and 2008
U.S: income tax returns within‘the.next 12 months. The-issues under examination in these years are
temporary differences and relate to the treatment.of discounts extended to Las Vegas casino cus-
tomers gambling on credit, the deduction of certain costs incurred during the development and
construction of Encore at Wynn Las Vegas and the appropriate tax depreciation. recovery periods
applicableto certain assets. Upon the settlement of these issues, unrecognized tax benefits could
decrease by $0 to $62.1 millian. The resolution of the 2006, 2007 and 2008 examination is not
expected to result in any.significant cash payment but rather the Utilization of a portion of the
foreign tax credit carryforward.

The Company recéived the results of an IRS examination of jts 2009 U.S. income tax return and
filed an appeal of the examination’s findings with the Appellate division of the IRS during 2011.
The Company believes-it.will likely“reéach an agreement with the IRS.with respect to the examina-
tion of the 2009 U.S..income tax.return-within the next 12:months. The issues under examination in
2009 relate to thé impact of prior year IRS audit-adjustments on the computation of 2009 taxable
income. Upon.settlement of these issues, unrecognized tax benefits could decrease by $0 10 $0.2
‘million: The resolution of the 2009 IRS examination is not-expected to result in any significant cash
‘payment, but rather the utilization of’a portion-ofithe foreign tax credit carryforward.
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During 2011, the IRS commenced an examination of the Company's 2010 U.S. income tax return.
Since the examination is in its initial stages the Company is unable to determine if it will be con-
cluded within the next twelve months: The Company believes that its fiability for uncertain tax
positions related to the period covered by this examination is adequate.

The Company is participating in the IRS Compliance Assurance Program (“CAP”) for the 2011 tax
year. Under the CAP programthe IRS and the taxpayer work together in 2 pre-filing environment’
to examine transactions and issues and thus.complete the tax examination before the tax return is
filed. Participation in this program should enable the Company to reduce time spent on tax admin-
istration and enhance tax reserve and financial statement reporting integrity. In January 2012, the
Company received notification that it had been accepted into the IRS CAP for the 2012 tax year.

During 2011, Wynn Macau, S.A. received the results of the Macau Finance Bureau’s examination of
its 2006 and 2007 Macau Complementary Tax returns and filed an appeal related to-the examina-
tion's disallowance of certain deductions claimed in its 2006 Macau Complementary Tax Return.

In August 2011, the 2006 Macaur tax issues under appeal were resolved. As part of the settlement,

the Company paid $1.1 million_in Macau Complementary Tax substantially all -of which was pro-
vided for in prior years. As the result of the resolution of these Macau tax issues and the expiration
of the statute of limitations for 2006. Macau Complementary Tax assessments on December 31,

2011, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits decreased by $10.8 million.

16. Commitments and Contingencies
Wynn Macau

Land Concession Contract. Wynn Macau, S.A. has entered into*adand concession contract for the
land on which Wynn Macau ‘is located. Under the. land concession contract, Wynn Macau, S.A,
leases a parcel of approximately 16-acres from the government for an initial term of 25 years, with
2 right to renew for additional periods with government approval. Wynn Macau, S.A. has made
payments to the Macau governmenit under the land concession contract totaling $42.7 million.
Wynn Macau, S:A. also paid approximately $18.4 million to an unrelated third party for its relin-
quishment -of rights to a portion of the land. In 2009, the: Company and the Macau government
agreed to modify this land concession as a result of the construction of Encore at Wynn Macau and
the additional square footage. that was;added as a result of such construction. In November 2009,
the Company made an additional one-time-land premium payment of $14.2 million. During the term
of the land concession contract, Wynn Macau, S.A. is'required to make annual lease payments of up
to $525,000.

Cotai Development and Land Concession Contract. In September 2011, Palo Real Estate Company
‘Limited and Wynn Resorts (Macau) S.A., -each an indirect. subsidiary of Wynn Macau, Limited,
formally accepted the terms.and condutmns of a draft land concession contract from the Macau
government for approximately 51 acres-of land in the Cotai area of Macau. Following government
approval, the Company anticipates constructing a full-scale integrated resort containing a casino,
+approximately 2,000 hotel suites, convention, retail, entertainment and food and beverage
offerings on this land. The Company continues to finalize the project scope, timeline and budget.
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The initial term of the land concession contract is 25 years, and it may be renewed with government
approval for successive periods. The total land premium payable, as.described in the draft land
concession contract, is $193:4 million. An initial payment of $62.5 million was paid in December
2011, with eight additional semi-annual payments of approximately $16.4 million each {which
includes interest at 5%) due once the Macau government publishes the Company's rights to the
Cotai land in the government’s official gazette. As of December 31, 2011, the Company has
recorded this obligation and related asset with $13.4 million mcluded as a current liability and
$103.9 million included as a long-term liability. Wynn Macau will also be required to make annual
lease payments of $0.8 million during the resort construction period and annual payments of
approximately $1.1 million once the development is completed.

Cotai Land Agreement. On August 1, 2008, subsidiaries of Wynn Resorts, Limited entered into an
agreement with an unrelated third party to make a one-time payment in the amount of $50 million
in consideration of the unrelated third party’s relinquishment of certain rights in and to any future
development on the Cotai land noted above. The payment will be made within 15 days after the
Macau government publishes the Company’s rights to the Cotai land in the government’s official
gazette. With the Company's acceptance of the draft land concession contract noted above, the
Company has accrued this $50 million obligation as a current liability included in other accrued
liabilities as of December 31, 2011.

Leases and Other Arrangements

The Company is the lessor under several retail leases and has entered into license and distribution
agreements for several additional retail outlets. The Company-also is a party to joint venture agree-
ments for the operation of one retail outlet and the Ferrari and Maserati automobile dealership at
Wynn Las Vegas. The lease agreements include minimum base rents with contingent rental clauses.

The following table presents the future minimum rentals to. be received under the operating leases
{amounts in thousands):

Years Ending December 31,

2012 $20,939
2013 13,907
2014 13,130
2015 12,027
2016 8,947
Thereafter . 3,693

$72.643

The total future minimum rentals do not include contingent rental. Contingant rentals were $73.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2011.

In addition, the Company is the lessee under leases for office space in Las Vegas, Macau and cer-
tain other locations, warehouse facilities, the land underlylng the Company's aircraft hangar and
certain office equipment.
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At December 31, 2011, the Company was obligated under non-cancelable operating leases to
make future minimum lease payments'as follows (amounts in thousands):

Years Ending December 31,

2012 $ 5,017
2013 2,775
2014 2,329
2015 1,672
2016 1,602
Thereafter 4,616

$18,011

Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, was $20.2 million, $21.6
million and $17.2 million, respectively.

Self-insurance

The Company's domestic subsidiaries are covered under a self-insured medical plan up to a maxi-
mum of $300,000 per year for each insured person. Amounts in excess of these thresholds are
covered by the Company’s insurance programs, subject to customary policy limits. The Company's
foreign subsidiaries are fully insured. Beginning January 2012, the medical plan covering employees
of the Company's domestic.subsidiaries is:fully insured.

Employment Agreements

The Company has entered into employment agreements with several executive officers, other
members of management and certain key.employees. These agreements generally have three- to
five-year terms and typically indicate a base salary and often contain provisions for discretionary
bonuses. Certain of the executives are also entitled to a separation payment if terminated without
"cause” or upon voluntary termination of employment for “good reason” following a “change of
control” (as these terms are defined'in the employment contracts).

Litigation

On May 3, 2010, Atlantic-Pacific Capital, Inc. ("APC"} filed an arbitration demand with Judicial
Arbitration and Mediation Services regarding an agreement with the Company. The action con-
cerns a claim for compensation of approximately $32 million pursuant to an agreement entered
into between APC and the Company on or about March 30, 2008 whereby APC was engaged to
raise equity capital for an investment vehicle sponsoreéd by the Company. APC is seeking compen-
sation unrelated to the investiment vehicle. The Company has denied APC’s claims for compensa-
tion. The Company filed a Complaint for Damages and Declaratory Relief against APC in the
District Court, Clark County, Nevada, on May 10, 2010, APC removed the action to the United
States District Court, District of Nevada. In March 2011, the court denied APC's motion to compel
arbitration. APC has appealed. Management believes that APC's claim against the Company is
without merit and intends to defend this matter vigorously.
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Sales and Use Tax on Complimentary Meals

In March 2008, the Nevada Supreme Court ruled; in the.matteér captioned Sparks Nugget, Inc. vs.
The State of Nevada Ex Rel. Department of Taxation, that food and non-alcoholic beverages
purchased for use in providing complimentary meals to customers and to employees was exempt
from sales and use tax. In July 2008, the Court'denied the ‘State's motion for rehearing. Through
April 2008, Wynn Las Vegas paid use tax on these-items and has filed for refunds for the periods
from April 2005 to April 2008. The amount subject to these refunds is $5.4 million.

In January 2012, the Nevada Tax Commission upheld the decision of an Administrative Law Judge
{("ALJ") who ruled that complimentary meals provided to patrons and employees of a Nevada
casino operator were retail sales subject to sales tax. The ruling of the ALJ further held that the-use
tax already paid on such items and sought as-refunds-should be credited against the:sales tax due.
Furthermore, the ALJ held that the Nevada Department.of Taxation could not assess additional
taxes, penalties or interest because its regulations and policies at the time only required the
payment of use tax on such complimentary meals. The Company expects that the Nevada Tax
Commission ruling will be appealed through the Nevada courts: As of December 31, 2011, the
Company has neither recorded a receivable associated with its $5:4 million refund claim nor any
sales tax liability for complimentary meals provided to customers and employees.

17. Segment Information

The Company monitors its operations and evaluates earnings by reviewing the assets and opera-
tions of its Las Vegas Qperations and its. Macau Operations. The Company’s total assets and
capital expenditures by segment consisted of the following {amounts in thousands}:

As of December 31,

2011 2010
Assets
Las Vegas Operations $4,035,398 $4,108,516
~ Macau Operations _ 2,202,683 1,777,119
Corporate.and other 661,415 788,862

$6,899,496 36,674,497
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Years Ended
December 31,

2011 2010
Capital Expenditures
Las'Vegas Operations $ 65,207 $157,080
Macau Operations 115,702 120,580
Corporate and other 3,237 6,168

$184,146 $283,828

The Company's results of operations by segment for the years ended ‘December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009 consisted of the following (amounts in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

20m 2010 2009
Net Revenues
Las Vegas Operations $1,480,719 $1,296,064 $1,229,573
Macau Operations ' 3,789,073 2,888,634 1,816,038
Total $5.269,792 $4,184,698 $3,045,611
Adjusted Property EBITDAW
Las Vegas Operations $ 439036 $ 270,299 $ 244,065
Macau Operations 1,196,232 892,686 502,087
Total 1,635,268 1,162,985 746,152
Other Operating Costs and Expenses
Pre-opening costs —_ 9,494 1,817
Depreciation and amortization : 398,039 405,558 410,547
Property charges and other 130,649 25,219 28,458
Corporate‘expenses and other 96,868 96,659 70,246
Equity in income from unconsolidated-affiliates, 1,472 801 121
Total other operating costs and expenses 627,028 537,733 511,189
Operating income 1,008,240 625,252 234,963

{continued)
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Years Ended December 31,

7 2011 2010 2009
Other Non-Operating Costs and Expenses
,Interest income % 7654 % 2498 % 1,740
interest expense, net of amounts capitalized {229,918) (222,863} {211,385}
Increase (decrease) in swap fair value- 14,151 (880} (2,258)
Gain (loss) from extinguishment of debt/exchange offer — (67,990) 18,734
Equity in income from unconsgclidated affiliates 1,472 BO1 121
Other 3,968 225 191
Total other non-operating costs and expenses _(202,67-3) (288,209) (192,857)
licome before income taxes 805,567 337,043. 42,106
Benefit (provision) for income taxes 19,546 (20,447) (2,999)
Net income $ 825113 § 316595 § 39,107

(1) “Adjusted Property EBITDA" is earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization, pre-opening costs, property

' charges-and other, corporate expenses, stock-based compensation, and other. non-operating income and expenses
and includes equity in income from unconsolidated affiliates. Adjusted Property EBITDA is presented exclusively as a
supplemental disclosure because management bélieves that it is widely used to measure the performance, and as a
basisifor valuation, of gaming companies. Management uses Adjusted Property EBITDA as a measure of the operating
performance of its segments and to compare the operating performance of its properties with those of its competitors.
The Company also presents Adjusted Property EBITDA because it is used*by some.investors as a way to measure a
companys.ability to incur and service debt, make capital expenditures and meet-working capital requirements. Gaming
companies have historically reported EBITDA as a supplement.to financial measures in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). In-order 16 view.the operations of their casinos on a more stand-alone basis,
gaming companies, including Wynn Resorts, Limited, have historically excluded from their EBITDA calculations pre-
openmg éxpenses, property charges and corporate expenses, which.do not relate to the management of specific
casino properties. However, Adjusted Property EBITDA should not be cons:dered as an alternative to operating income
as an indicator of the Company's performance;.as an altemative to cash flows from operating activities as a measure of
hqu:d;ty, or as an alternative to any Gther measure determined in accordance with GAAP. Unlike net income, Adjusted
Property EBITDA does not include depreciation or interest expense and therefore does nat reflect currant or future
capital expenditures or the cost of capital. The Company has significant usés of cash flows, including capital expendi-
tures; interest payments, debt principal repaymerits, taxes and other non-recurring charges, which are not reflected in
Adjusted Property EBITDA. Also, Wynn Resorts’:calculation of Adjusted Property EBITDA may be different from the
calculation methods used by other companies and, therefore, comparability may be limited.
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18. Quarterly Financial Information {Unaudited)

The following tables (amounts in thousands, except per share data) present selected quarterly
financial information for 2011 and 2010, as previously reported. Because income (loss) per share
amounts are calculated using the weighted average number of common and dilutive common
equivalent shares outstanding dufing each guarter; the sum of the per share amounts for the four
quarters may not equal the total income per share amounts for the year.

Year Ended December 31, 2011

First Second Third Fourth Year
Net revenues $1,260,272 $1,367,353  $1,298,304 $1,343,863 $5,269,792
Operating income 280,556 213,033 239.845 274,806 1,008,240
Net income 226,335 155,331 185,185 258,262 825,113
Net income attributable to
Wynn Resorts 173,804 122,031 127,063 190,473 613,371
Basic income per share $ 140 3% 098 % 1.02 $ 153 % 4.94
Diluted income per share $ 139 % 097 % 1.1 % 152 % 488
Year Ended December 31, 2010
First Second " Third Fourth Year
Net revenues ) $ 208,918 $1 ,032,643 '$1,005,949 $1,237,188 $4,184,698
Operating income 114,848 148,146 131,949 230,309 625,252
Net income {loss) 57.859 88,917 {2,054) 171,874 316,596
Net income {loss} attributable 1o
Wynn Resorts 26,988 52,405 {33,508} 114,242 160,127
Basic:income {loss) per share % 022 % 043 % {0.27) § 093 & 1.30
Diluted income (loss) per share i) 022 % 042 § 0.27) % 091 % 1.29

19. Subsequent Events (Unaudited)

Determination of Unsuitability and Redemption of Aruze USA, Inc. and Affiliates
and Related Matters

On February 18, 2012, Wynn Resorts' Gaming Compliance Committee concluded a year-iong
investigation after receiving an independent report by Freeh, Sporkin & Sullivan, LLP {the. “Freeh
Report”) detailing numerous prima facie violations of the FCPA by Aruze USA, Inc., at the time a
stockholder of Wynn Resorts, Universal Entertainment Corporation, Aruze USA, Inc’s parent
company, and Kazuo Okada, the majority shareholder of Universal Entertainment Corporation,
who is also a member of Wynn Resorts’ Board of Directors and was at the time a director of
Wynn Macau, Limited.
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Based on the Freeh Repart, the Board of Directors of Wynn Resorts determined that Aruze USA,
Inc., Universal Entertainment Corporation and Mr. Okada are "unsuitable” under Article VIl of the
Wynn Resorts articles of incorporation. The Board was: unanimous (other than Mr. Okada} in its
determination. The Board of Directors also requested that Mr. Okada resign as a director of Wynn
Resorts and recommended that Mr. Okada be removed as a' member of the Board of Directors of
Wynn Macau, Limited. On February 18, 2012, Mr. Okada'was- removed from the Board of Directors
of Wynn Las Vegas Capital Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary-of Wynn Resorts.

Based on the Board of Directors’ finding of “unsuitability,” on February 18, 2012, Wynn Resorts
redeemed Aruze USA, Inc’s 24,549,222 shares of Wynn Resorts’ Common Stock. Following a find-
ing of “unsuitability,” Wynn Resorts’ articles authorize: redemptlon at"fair value” of the shares held
by unsuitable persons. The Company engaged anindependent financial advisor to assist in the fair
value calculation and concluded that a discount to the. current trading price was appropriate
because of, among other things, restrictions on most of the shares which are subject to the terms
of an existing stockholder agreement. Pursuant to the articles of incorporation, Wynn Resorts
issued the-Redemption. Price Promissory Note to Aruze USA, Inc: in redemption of the shares. The
Redemption Price Promissory Note has a principal amount of approximately $1.9 billion, matures
on February 18, 2022 and bears interest at the rate of 2% per annum, payable annually in arrears
on each anniversary of the date of a Redeimption Price Promissory Note. Wynn Resorts may, in its
sole and absolute discretion, at any time.and from time to time, and without penalty or premium,
prepay the whole or any portion of the principal or interest due under the Redemption Price
Promissory Note. In no instance shall any payment obligation under the Redemption Price
Promissory Note be accelerated except in the sole and absolute discretion of Wynn Resorts or as
specifically mandated by law. The indebtedness, evidenced by the Redemption Price Promissory
Note is and shall be subordinated in right of payment, .to the extent and in the manner provided in
the Redemption. Price Promlssory Note, to the prior payment'in full of all existing and future obli-
gations of Wynn Resorts or'any of its affiliates in respect of indebtedness for borrowed money of
any kind or nature.

On February 19, 2012, Wynn Resorts filed a complaint.in the Dtstrlct Court of Clark County, Nevada,
against Mr. Okada, alleging breaches of fiduciary duty and related claims.

On February 24, 2012, the Board of Directors of Wynn Macau, Limited removed Mr. Kazuo Okada
from the board.
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The Company has provided the Freeh Report to applicable regulators and intends to cooperate
with any related investigation that such regulators may undertake. The conduct of Mr. Okada and
his affiliates and any resuilting regulatory investigations could have adverse consequences to the
Company. A finding by regulatory authorities that Mr. Okada violated the FCPA on Company prop-
erty and/or otherwise involved the Company in criminal or civil violations could result in actions by
regulatory authorities against the Company. Relatedly, regulators-could pursue separate investiga-
tions into the Company's compliance with applicable laws, including in response to litigation filed
by Mr. Okada suggesting improprieties in connection with the Company’s donation to the
University of Macau and a related informal inquiry by the SEC into this donation. While the
Company believes that'it is'in full compliance with all applicable laws,. any such investigations could
result in actions by regulators against the Company.

Litigation Commenced by Mr. Okada and Related Matters

In May 2011, Wynn Macau, a majority owned subsidiary of the Company, made a commitment to
the University of Macau Development Foundation in support of the new Asia-Pacific Academy of
Economics and Management. This contribution consists of a $25 million payment made in May
2011 and a commitment for additional donations of $10 million each year for the calendar years
2012 through 2022 inclusive. The pledge was consistent with the Company’s long-standing prac-
tice of providing philanthropic support for deserving institutions+in. the markets in-which it oper-
ates. The pledge was made following an extensive analysis which concluded that the gift was
made in accordance with all applicable laws. The pledge was considered by the Boards of Directors
of both the Company and Wynn Macau and approved by 15 of-the 16 directors who serve on those
boards. The sole dissenting vote was Mr. Kazuo Okada, whose.stated. objection was to the length
of time over which the donation would occur, riot its propriety.

Mr. Okada commenced litigation on January 11, 2012 in Nevada, seeking to compe! the Company
to produce information relating to the donation to the University of Macau, among other things.

On February 8, 2012, foliow:ng Mr. Okada’s lawsuit, the Company received a letter from the

Salt Lake Regional Office of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC”).requesting that,
in connection with an informal inquiry- by the SEC, the Company preserve information relating to,
but not limited to, the donation to’the University of Macau, any donations by the Company to any
other educational charitable institutions, including the University of Macau Development
Foundatlon and the Company’s casino or concession gaming licenses or renewals in Macau.
The Company has informed the Salt Lake Regional Office that it intends to fully comply with the
SEC's request.
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MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal
control over financial reporting, as'defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Projections of any evaluation. of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risks that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management assessed the effectiveness.of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2011. In makingrthis assessment, management used:the criteria set forth by the
Committee -of Sponsering Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("COSQ") in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework.

Based on our assessment, management believes that, as of December 31, 2011, the Company's
internal ‘control ‘over financial reporting was effective.

The Corﬁpany s.independerit registered public accounting firm-has issued an audit report on our
mternal control over financial reporting. This report appears under “Report of Independent
Reglstered Public Accounting Firm”.on page 96.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. There have not been any changes in the
Company's‘internal control ovef financial reporting {as such term 'is defined in Rules 13a-15{f) and
15d-15{f).under the Exchange Act) during our fourth fiscal quarter to which this report relates that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to matenally affect, the Company's‘internal control
over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Wynn Resorts, Limited and subsidiaries:

We have audited Wynn Resorts, Limited and subsidiaries' {the * ‘Company”) internal control over
financial reporting as of December'31; 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). The Company’s management is responsible for maintaining effec-
tive internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control.over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal con-
trol over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluat-
ing the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe
that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliabitity of financial repérting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accouriting principles. A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and.procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and faidy reflect the transactions
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are recorded as necessary.to permit preparation-of financial statements in accordance-with gener-

ally accepted.accounting principles, and that receipts.and expenditures of the company are being

made orily in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding preverition or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

{continued)
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

fn our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based.on the COSQ criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the.standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the 2011 consolidated financial statements of Wynn Resorts, Limitéed and
subsidiaries and our report dated February 29, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

St 4 MLLP

Las Vegas, Nevada
February 29, 2012
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The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Wynn Resorts, Limited and subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Wynn Resorts, Limited and
subsidiaries {the “Company”) as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated
statements of income, stockholdérs’ equity; and cash flows for each of the three years in the.period
ended December 31, 2011. These financial statements and schedules.are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
and schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board. (United States). Those 'standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstate-
ment. An audit includes examining; on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclo-
sures in the. financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present'fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Wynn Resorts, Limited and subsidiaries at December 31, 2011
and 2010, and the consolidated resulis of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 201, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted account-
ing principles. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statement schedules referred to above,
when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly in all
material respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of ‘the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control—!ntegrated Framework issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tréadway Commission and our report dated
February 29, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

St ¥ MLLP

Las Vegas, Nevada
February 29, 2012
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The graph below compares the five-year cumulative total return on our common stock to the
cumulative total return of the Standard & Poor’s 500-Stock Index (“S&P 500"} and the Dow Jones
U.S. Gambling Index. The performance graph assumes that $100 was invested on December 29,
2006 in each of the Company’'s common stock, the S&P 500 and the Dow Jones U.S. Gambling
Index, and that all dividends were reinvested. The stock price performance shown in this graph is
neither necessarily indicative of, nor intended to suggest, future stock price performance.

$150
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—l— Wynn Resorts Ltd.
-@-- S&PS00
—&— Dow Jjones U.3, Gambling
Q0 N . , —
12/29/06 12/31/07 12/31/08 12731009 12/31/10 12430714
7 Wyrin Resorts Ltd.  S&P 500  Oow Jones U.S. Gambling
December 06 ' 100.00 100.00 100.00
December 07 124.92 105.49 114.80
December 08 47.08 66.46 30.87
December 09 68.74 84.05 48.08
December 10 132.87 986.71 83.23
December 11 14%:20 28.75 77.37

The performance graph should not be deemed filed orincorporated by reference into any other of
our filings under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Exchange Act of 1934, unless we specifically
incorporate the performance graph by reference therein.
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Corporate Headquarters

3131 Las Vegas Boulevard South
Las Vegas, Nevada 89109

Web Site

Visit the Company's web sites at:
www.wynnresorts.com
www.wynnlasvegas.com

wWww.wynnmacau.com
www.wynnmacaulimited.com

Annual Report on Form 10-K

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K (including the financial
statements and financial statement schedules relating
thereto) filed with the Securities and Exchange Com-
mission may be obtained upon written request and
without charge Requests should be directed to Samanta
Stewart, 'Vice President of Investor Relations of Wynn
Resorts, Limited, 3131 Las Vegas Boulevard South,
Las Vegas, Nevada 89109, telephone {702) 770-7555
‘or invesﬁorrelations@wynnresorts,com. In addition, the
electronic version of the Annual Repdrt.can be found at

Annual Meeting

Qur Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held an
Friday, Novemmber2, 2012 gt 11:00 a.m., local time, in the
Encore Theater at Wynn Las Vegas, 3131 Las Vegas
Boulevard South; Las Vegas, Nevada 89109. Sepiember
12, 2012 is thé record date for determining the stockhold-
ers entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual
Meeting of Stockholders.

Common Stock

Our ‘common stock -is traded on the NASDAQ Global
Select Market under the symbol “WYNNY

Common Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar

American Stock Transfer & Trust Co.
59 Maiden Lane

New York, New York-10038

{B00) 937-5449

Wynn, Encore and the Wynn Crest are registered trade-
marks or trademarks of Wynn Resorts Holdings, LLC.

Annual Reparl.by Cursan & Connors, Ing, / www,curran:connors.com

www.wynnresorts.com, under Corporate Information.
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